
City of Lowell
Council Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM
City Hall
101 W. First Street
Lowell, North Carolina 28098

1: General

1A. Call To Order

1B. Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance

1C. Adoption of Agenda for this Meeting

1D. Public Comments

2: Approval of Minutes

2A. Approval of Minutes 05-14-2024 (p. 3-24)

3: Special Presentation

3A. Annual Presentation by Lead for NC Fellow Emiyah Watkins (p. 25)

3B. Proclamation 04-2024 - Juneteenth 2024 (p. 26)

4: Consent Agenda

4A. Finance Update (p. 27-28)

4B. Geographic Information System (GIS) Report (p. 29-30)

4C. Stormwater Report (p. 31)

4D. public works update (p. 32)

4E. Police Report (p. 33)

4F. Planning Report (34-35)

4G. Parks and Recreation Report (p. 36-37)

4H. Communications Report (p. 38-39)

5: Unfinished Business

5A. Public Hearing to Closeout the FY17 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood Revitalization 
Program (p. 40)

5B. Public Hearing Spencer Ridge Development Agreement (p. 41-95)

5C. Consideration of Budget Amendment #13 (p. 96-97)

5D. Amended Grant Project Ordinance - Lowell WWTP Planning Grant (SRP-W-ARP-0301) (p. 98-127)

5E. Consideration of Budget Amendment #15 (p. 128-129)

5F. Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Budget Ordinance (p. 130-179)

1



6: New Business

6A. Consideration to Approve the Audit Contract for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024 (p. 180-191)

6B. Consideration of Ordinance 2-2024 To Allow for a Reserve Police Officer/Auxiliary Police Officer Department (p. 192-199)

6C. Consideration of Adopting the Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) (p. 200-203)

6D. Consideration of Budget Amendment #16 (p. 204-205)

6E. Consideration of Budget Amendment #17 (p. 206-207)

6F. Consideration of Budget Amendment #18 (p. 208-209)

6G. Consideration of Budget Amendment #19 (p. 210-212)

6H. Consideration of Budget Amendment #20 (p. 213-214)

6I. Consideration of Budget Amendment #21 (p. 215-216)

6J. Consideration of Budget Amendment #22 (p. 217-218)

6K. Consideration of Budget Amendment #23 (p. 219-220)

6L. Consideration of Budget Amendment #24 (p. 221-222)

7: Reports / Discussions

7A. City Manager Report

7B. City Attorney Report

7C. Mayor and City Council General Discussion

8: Adjournment

8A. Meeting Adjournment

Date Posted: June 7, 2024

2



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Approval of Minutes 05-14-2024

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Approval of Minutes Item: 2A

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Regular-City-Council-Meeting-05-14-2024-minutesdraft

Approval of Minutes for Regular City Council Meeting held on 05-14-2024

3

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Fpdfs%2Fdrafts%2FRegular-City-Council-Meeting-05-14-2024-minutesdraft.pdf?alt=media&token=800682dd-693d-46cc-8bca-8824936306f1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Fpdfs%2Fdrafts%2FRegular-City-Council-Meeting-05-14-2024-minutesdraft.pdf?alt=media&token=800682dd-693d-46cc-8bca-8824936306f1
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Fpdfs%2Fdrafts%2FRegular-City-Council-Meeting-05-14-2024-minutesdraft.pdf?alt=media&token=800682dd-693d-46cc-8bca-8824936306f1


1.General

1A. Call To Order- 5�57 PM

Mayor Larry Simonds called the meeting to order at 6�00pm. City staff present were City Manager Scott Attaway,

City Attorney John Russell, Police Chief Moore, Police Asst. Chief Harrison, Planning Director Tyler Cobb, Interim

Public Works Director Thad Buchanan, Finance Director Lisa Nolen, and City Clerk Cheryl Ramsey. A quorum was

determined at the beginning of the meeting. The meeting was teleconferenced on YouTube for the public and the

agenda and meeting materials were made public on the city's website as well as in person. Members of the public

were also in attendance.

1B. Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance- 6�02 PM

Joe Heffner, Pastor of the Lowell Church of God gave the Invocation. Mayor Simonds then asked for a moment of

silence for the fallen Police Officers in Charlotte, NC. Mayor Simonds then led the audience with the Pledge of

Allegiance. Mayor then welcomed Steve Rhyne back from a military deployment.

1C. Adoption of Agenda for this Meeting- 6�02 PM

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-0-0-0

1D. Public Comments- 6�03 PM

1.Wayne Buchanan of 620 Geer St, Lowell stated we need the audit [additional audit proposed by the Mayor] to

see where our money is going. He said if it was taken care of by the last city council, we wouldn't have to do this.

He said the mayor is trying to help the City of Lowell and he's never seen it as bad as it is right now.

2. Candy Funderburk of 600 Rogosin Blvd, Lowell said an audit is to ensure financial statements are accurate and in

compliance with the county's standards and regulations. She said during her eight year tenure on council [previous

council] they were in compliance and approved by the State. She stated "a forensic audit is an in depth

investigation scrutinizing financial records, transactions to identify fraud or misconduct. He's [pointing to Mayor

** The following document is a draft of the minutes and the not the official approved minutes **

Minutes for the Regular City Council Meeting

101 W. First Street, Lowell, North Carolina 28098

May 14, 2024, 5�57 PM - May 14, 2024, 8�46 PM

Roll Call: (The following members were in attendance)

Larry Simonds, Mayor

Scott Bates, Mayor Pro Temp

Phil Bonham, Councilmember

DeWayne Chitwood, Councilmember

Shane Robinson, Councilmember

Travis Smith, Councilmember

4



Simonds] implying the past council was fraudulent. At that time, Mr. Chitwood was on there [council] and Mr.

Robinson and we accepted the audits as presented and never had a problem." She said it is going to cost $30,000-

50,000 per year or 14 years the mayor has recommended. She said the total is $300,000-$500,000 the city would

have to pay and citizen's tax dollars. She said another audit is ridiculous and mentioned that the current mayor was

mayor in 2014 to 2015 and suggested council do that one year.

She asked about the budget and particularly the bulk pickup suggestion to be changed from quarterly to monthly.

She said that could possibly end up being more money in the long run with more repairs to the trucks, tires and

more gas. She said they also need to be thinking of the employees and how that will be a lot of work on them and

they could be injured. She suggested they [Public Works] needed a big raise.

She said the General Fund revenue is up by 13.7% and that is wonderful and out of that is the Administrative

salaries. She said she heard council wants to cut six (6) positions. She said last year when she was on council she

admitted she didn't agree with about three of them but now that they are here and if they are cut, you're cutting off

their livelihood to their families. She said the COLA was suggested at 3.5% but you want to cut it to 2.5%. She said

that is only $1749 or not a lot difference. She said cutting the positions will make it difficult to get and administer

grants and asked who will do that if they are gone because it will be too much work? She said she saw that the

stormwater fee is going to be reduced from $6.75 to $4.75 and that is going to have to be increased in the future

for the needs of the stormwater repairs. She said the "water bills are going to go up even if those 6% or 7%, even

though some of you guys are out there promising lower bills. That is going to go up. The old saying is 'don't cut

your nose off to spite your face'. The tax cut, tag fee and everything yall are proposing, then with the water rate

increase is only going to save my family $16 a month. Seems like yall want to cut cut cut to make yourself look good

with all the promises you made, but setting up future council to look bad as a tax increase may have to happen to

fund future projects, but I hope not."

3. John Cato 109 Walnut St, Lowell, NC - asked about the audit and if it was passed. Mayor Simonds said it hasn't

been passed. Mr. Cato asked council to do it because the people want to know how much money was spent and

where it is going. He mentioned [previous council] spending $300,000k for church property and he wants to know

where the money is going. He said he heard what Candy just said but he wants to know where the money is. He

also said council needs to vote on making it a three lane road by the middle school for the residents to be able to

get in and out.

4. Bill Knox 5105 Meadow Run Dr. Lowell, NC - stated he is against having a forensic audit. He asked when the topic

comes up that each councilmember express their individual thoughts on the issue for example "yes you believe

criminal activity has taken place and you want an investigation done, or you don't." He said let's put this to rest one

way or another. He said we are all about saving money and the audits are online except the one from this past

January where he said it was up for a motion to accept but not sure why this council did not do so. He said this is a

distraction going back 14 years which is at least $200-300 thousand dollars. He again asked each councilmember

to comment to let the citizens know how they feel.

5. Paul Williams, 703 McAdenville Rd, Lowell NC - he said with the exception of Scott [Bates], all remaining council

members have been on the council at some point in the past 12, 14 years that the forensic audit has been

proposed. He said if you suspect criminal wrong doing then that is going to reflect back on yourselves. He said he

doesn't think anything has been done wrong, even if he doesn't agree with how the money has been spent but to
5



insinuate criminal activity and to pay $250-500 thousand is a bold move. He said he'd love to see his taxes cut but

doesn't see how we can cut everyone's taxes without making significant cuts in fire, police, safety, personnel, etc.

and somehow fund a $250,000 audit for example, That money has to come from somewhere.

He also wanted to thank city officials and personnel for recent tornado and there hard work to help the citizens.

6. Ed Jackson [does not reside in Lowell but has property and pays taxes here] - he wanted to speak on the audit.

He said he has had 60 years of experience with Butler & Stowe (external auditors for the city) and thinks there is no

one better nor ethical than that group. He said Ms. Thornton (of the firm) has had no problems and the State has

already agreed to that audit. He ended with "don't waste our money."

Mayor Simonds said he "asked the Clerk to put the firm [auditing firm] at the beginning of the meeting so we can

talk about it because he came from Lexington, NC. That way you don't have to wait until the end of the meeting to

find out what we are speaking about or what I'm speaking about or asking council to do. It's up to the council to

vote up or down on anything. Here's the thing about it, and I understand that yall have a lot of myths in front of you,

you don't know anything about a budget. I'm not fussing to the citizens, I'm just letting you know. For the past years

since he's [pointing at Mr. Attaway] been here, when he sets a budget, he overstates expenditures and understates

the revenue. If you look at our audit, it justifies what I'm telling you. We take in more money every year than what is

proposed to be taken in. That's what throws a red flag to me. And listen, it's not our place to pass the audit from

last year. They should've passed it instead of doing all these special meetings in December and it should have been

taken care of as business. From what I understand, I have never met Mr. Caric, with the CPA firm from Lexington,

NC but I would like council to have the decency to move it up to the top of the agenda and let's discuss in front of

the people and let's ask questions like the guy said earlier. Here's the thing about it Ed, and I'm not calling you out,

I'm just talking to you directly. I understand Butler and Stowe's a good company but think about this, we paid

$43,000 for the audit for ARPA whatever it was and Mr. Caric charged Ranlo $4000 and for the whole year at Ranlo

from what I understand they were just charged $15,000. Look what we've paid. It's just not, you have to compare

apples...look this is a small town and we're looking on monies that we have. I'm asking the council to allow us to talk

with Mr. Caric about potential audit or whatever. It's up to the council. We don't need to back no further than 5

years in my opinion but it's up to the council. Can I have a motion that we move this to the top of the agenda so we

won't make the man wait until 11 o'clock tonight. Is that feasible. Do we have a motion to do that?" He apologized to

Mr. Caric for the item being at the end of the meeting.

Councilmember Chitwood said it is under New Business and we could've have moved it up... Mayor Simonds

interrupted and said he asked the Clerk to do that two weeks ago. Councilmember Chitwood said "I gave you a

chance to speak." Mayor Simonds told him to go ahead. Councilmember Chitwood said "what I was going to say is

that we could have amended the agenda before we adopted it and you..." Mayor Simonds agreed and said he

admits that when he's wrong, he'll say he is. Councilmember Chitwood said "good let's move onto the next agenda

item." Councilmember Bonham said "that's assuming anyone wants to even have this discussion."

2. Approval of Minutes

The item was motioned To Approve by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 4-0-

1-0 Abstained by Shane Robinson

2A. Approval of Minutes 04-09-2024- 6�17 PM

6



There was a brief confusion by the Mayor on whether the minutes had already been approved. It was determined

that they had not and a motion was made. Councilmember Robinson abstained from the vote since he was absent

during this meeting.

3. Special Presentation

3A. Citizen Academy Graduation- 6�18 PM

Mr. Attaway mentioned that we had four participants this year and three of them are in attendance. He briefly

described the Citizen Academy and some of the things the class got to do and departments they were able to hear

from. Cheryl Ramsey then recognized them all and presented them with a framed certificate signed by the Mayor.

Participants included Tamika Hopper, Laura Lovelace, and Kelly Busher and Scott Wilson (absent). Mayor Simonds

thanked all for participating and wanting to learn more about their city.

3B. Proclamation National Public Works Week May 19-25, 2024- 6�20 PM

Councilmember Robinson made a motion to accept the Proclamation. The Proclamation was then read by Mayor

Simonds. It was then seconded by Councilmember Smith. Mayor Simonds lead the audience to an applause for the

Public Works department and thanked them for their hard work.

The item was motioned To Adopt by Shane Robinson and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 5-0-0-

0

3C. Proclamation of National Police Week - May 12-18, 2024 and Peace Officers Memorial Day May 15, 2024-

6�23 PM

The Proclamation was read by Mayor Simonds. Mayor Simonds lead the audience to an applause for the Public

Works department and thanked them for their hard work.

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-0-0-0

4. Consent Agenda

The item was motioned To Accept by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 5-0-

0-0

4A. Finance Update- 6�26 PM

4B. Stormwater Report- 6�26 PM

4C. Planning Report - 6�26 PM

4D. Police Report- 6�26 PM

4E. Communications Report- 6�26 PM

4F. Public Works Report- 6�26 PM

4G. Geographic Information System (GIS) Report- 6�26 PM

4H. Parks and Recreation Report- 6�26 PM

7



5. Unfinished Business

5A. Public Hearing - Map Amendment (General, Rezoning) - 603 Groves Street - JPFJ LLC- 6�26 PM

Mr. Attaway apologized to the audience for the technical difficulties and stated Mr. Cobb is at the desk with the City

Clerk to help navigate the items being presented. Mr. Tyler Cobb, Planning Director, then discussed the rezoning

application received. He stated this is to have 603 Groves St rezoned for the back five acres of the property from

Mixed Use 2 (MU-2) to Industrial (see agenda packet) so that Choice, USA can expand their business. Mayor

Simonds asked if they are wanting to just add onto the facilities? Mr. Cobb said currently in the Mixed Use criteria,

bottling is not allowed, so in order for them to expand their business, they need to have the back 5 acres rezoned to

Industrial in order to do so. Mayor Simonds asked if the Zoning Board has already approved this. Mr. Cobb said yes.

There were no public comments. Councilmember Chitwood asked if it was just the brown portion (of the map in the

agenda packet) that was being considered. Mr. Cobb said the blue checkered section is the property to be

rezoned. Councilmember Chitwood asked if it only effects this area, nothing around it? Mr. Cobb said yes and that

staff is recommending it as it is consistent with the town's Comprehensive Land Use plan.

Councilmember Robinson asked if they just purchased this land by section. "That full parcel is there, and basically

they are asking to rezone their land. So I'm assuming when we went to the LDO, we took a section of their land and

zoned it to MU-2?" Mr. Attaway said he doesn't recall exactly as it was a few years ago when this was done but the

city found some areas where there were parcels that had split zoning and when they were found, you kept the split

zone. He said we wouldn't have gone in and split a parcel and was not positive this was recombined since then. Mr.

Cobb said to his knowledge it has not been recombined.

Mayor Simonds asked if anyone had any questions. John Russell reminded council that when they make a motion

they need to have a consistency statement noted on pg. 34 of your packets. Basically anytime you are doing a

rezoning to your map, you have to have a statement of consistency. The Mayor asked if that has to be part of the

motion? Mr. Russell said you have to approve the rezoning and also to find that that approval is consistent with the

Comprehensive Land Use plan.

After Councilmember Bonham's motion to approve the rezoning, Mayor Simonds asked if he was combining the two

motions? Councilmember Bonham said yes. Mr. Russel said this was ok. The motion and subsequent vote stands.

The item was motioned To Approve by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

To go into public hearing

The item was motioned To Approve by Phil Bonham and seconded by DeWayne Chitwood with a passing result

5-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To come out of the Public Hearing

The item was motioned To Approve by Phil Bonham and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 5-0-1-0

Abstained by Larry Simonds

To approve the rezoning application and the proposed application is consistent with the City of Lowell's 2040

Comprehensive Land Use Plan and will result in the development of the IND, the Planning and Zoning board

considers and affirmative vote to be reasonable and in the public's interest.

5B. Public Hearing Spencer Ridge Development Agreement - 6�32 PM

Mayor Simonds made a recommendation that since this is so large [of a property] and he can't read the names of

the surrounding neighbors that need to be contacted [to have another meeting]. He said "you can't even make out8



your map and I have to have bifocals to make it out. We need to have another meeting to where the council can first

of all look at this thing and the neighbors need to be involved because it's going to effect them and the citizens

forever. First of all when you approve something this massive, it needs to be done 100% correctly. I can't read the

names, can you [to council regarding the names of the citizens]." Mr. Attaway said "we can definitely provide maps

where you can see that but I will say that the surrounding community were notified when the rezoning came

through when this development was approved but that's not what this is. That was done quite some time ago. This

is a development agreement more so to spell out the phasing and utilities coming there, amenities, etc. but it's up

to the council for what you wish to do." Councilmember Smith asked if this has all been approved with the Catawba

River Keeper with donating the 60+ acres to stay off the river? Mr. Cobb said "going back to everyone being

notified, the surrounding neighbors were notified. It was public.." Mayor Simonds interrupted asking what the date

was on that? One of the Councilmembers said July 2022. Mayor Simonds said "it was a different time back then

and all the promises and things in this agreement...this council is new. All of us are new and I think we need to take

our time and look over this and study it hard and make sure that every 'i' is dotted and every 't' is crossed.

Councilmember Smith asked the mayor to allow the Planning Director to finish what he was saying. Mr. Cobb said

the rezoning request was set March 8, 2022 and the community meeting was set March 30, 2022. It was taken to

the Planning Board on April 2, 2024, the public hearing was requested April 9, 2024 for today.

Mr. Attaway added that council received an edited version of the request late today because it was getting hatched

out between the two attorneys. He thinks the intent was to review this in the public hearing that if there are any

substantial changes in that, that is what will be brought to light for discussion. Mayor Simonds said "we are in a

public discussion about this and in the agreement, in the very beginning, whenever Belmont and (inaudible) came

to council and asked to be brought into Lowell, there was nothing required for us to do anything." Councilmember

Chitwood said "as far as that goes, it's already been said and done. That's not what we are here for, it's said and

done. But what I was trying to say was this was just giving to me today and I would prefer to wait, before I vote on

anything, to read the changes." Mayor Pro Tem Bates agreed. Councilmember Chitwood said he understood

attorneys have to hash out things but he doesn't like getting items the day of the meeting and would prefer getting

them beforehand. Mayor Simonds said there is no need to rush into it and thinks it should be tabled until they had

an opportunity to study it. Councilmember Chitwood said he doesn't have a problem setting it to the next meeting.

Mr. Russel said "to do that, since you are still in the public hearing, you would just need to make a motion to

continue the public hearing until you want to have the date of the June meeting at 6pm at Lowell City Hall. That way

it doesn't need to be re-advertised to do anything further, just have it continued."

After the motion to continue to the June 11th council meeting, Mayor Simonds asked what was the purpose of the

public hearing? He said "if it's already set in place, what the hell are you voting on?" Councilmember Chitwood said

"excuse me." Mayor Simonds asked again "why are you voting on it if it's already set in place? Just because it is a

public hearing, you have an opportunity just like you got blindsided today, I got blindsided." Councilmember

Chitwood said there is a motion on the table to continue it until the next meeting. Councilmember Smith then

seconded the motion. Mayor Simonds said "under the discussion, you look at what all needs to be said, and you

think in your mind you can, but why would we be having a public hearing if this is already passed?" Councilmember

Smith said "do you want us to go over it, [after] just now getting the information?" Mayor Simonds said "it's so

wrong it's not funny and it needs time to be studied because this effects every citizen in Lowell." Councilmember

Smith asked the Mayor if he can't read 30 pages in 30 days? Mayor Simonds said we "got blindsided today and you
9



got a motion and second to table it to the next regular meeting, is that what your are saying?" Councilmember

Chitwood said yes. Councilmember Chitwood said he would like to see if any of the public here wanted to speak on

this. Mayor Simonds asked the audience. There were no public comments.

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-0-1-0

Abstained by Larry Simonds

To go into the public hearing

The item was motioned To Table by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 5-0-

1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To continue the public hearing to the June 11th meeting at 6pm.

5C. Consideration to adopt the City of Lowell 2024 Legislative Advocacy Agenda- 6�39 PM

Mr. Attaway reminded council that this was discussed in the last City Council work session and that there were no

changes recommended. He said he mentioned then that he would bring to council correcting the name misspelling

of a councilmember and it is before you to adopt. During the discussion, Mayor Simonds asked if "this includes all

that new impact money as far as different things you have encompassed in here right?" Mr. Attaway said "this is a

request for federal, state, and county government advocacy . This is an advocacy for certain projects, certain grant

funding to continue at the state level, such as Part F or things that we are currently benefitting from or hope to

benefit from in the future, road improvements, etc." There was no further discussion.

The item was motioned To Adopt by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 5-0-0-0

6. New Business

6A. Presentation of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget- 6�41 PM

Mr. Attaway said he submitted the City Manager's Budget Ordinance and budget document to council today as well

as it was submitted on the city website, social media account. There is a copy available for public review at City Hall

and the Lowell Branch library. He thanked all staff for their help on the FY24-25 goals. He mentioned the dates of

the retreats and Councilmember Chitwood stated that March was skipped due to conflicts. Mr. Attaway agreed and

stated he will amend the City Manager Ordinance. He began to go through the message and budget.

Mayor Simonds interrupted and asked if it is correct [amount] about the Bob Bolick park funding of $1,800,000. Mr.

Attaway said yes. Mayor Simonds asked how we are going to do that, where is that money coming from? Mr.

Attaway said that we are not, it is a project that is not funded. We are just showing that they are outstanding

projects. Mayor Simonds said "you have a lot of stuff on here that we just got today and I don't appreciate this just

coming today. You've had the amendment since the last time we had a meeting to bring stuff to the council. All this

money, every penny in the bank and wherever else belongs to the citizens of Lowell. CIF money, whatever you want

to call it, and to come in here and tell you that they want you to set a public hearing to adopt this budget without

further review and that would be the public hearing, I understand that, but we all need an education on where's our

money, every account we have, our water and sewer. All that stuff you blindsided the citizens with by putting on the

internet, what's been done. Nothing has been done, nothing has been approved and until the budget is approved,

nothing's approved. Councilmember Chitwood said it would be discussed in the public hearing and we have 30

days. He said that is enough time for him to review it. Mayor Simonds said so you want to set a public hearing.

Councilmember Chitwood said no, he wanted the City Manager to finish what he was talking about. Mr. Attaway

continued with the budget breakdown.

10



During the discussion of the line items regarding potential employee COLA and merit increases, Mayor Simonds

interrupted and said "before you get too far, you don't have the car tax for automobiles included. I talked to

(inaudible) and the car tax, a year and a half went by that none of you got the money because it wasn't collected.

So you need to add back into that money coming in. How much did you get for the campers, cars and trucks and all

the stuff you pay taxes on in addition to the homes. It's not included in your total value of Lowell. IT IS NOT

INCLUDED..." Mr. Attaway interrupted and said "the motor vehicle is included in my ad valorem calculations. The

$10 tag fee".. Mayor Simonds interrupted and said the tag fee has nothing to do with it, I'm talking about the taxes

on a vehicle like if your car costs $30,000 and you're paying." Mr. Attaway said we have approximately $40,000,000

of that. Mayor Simonds said "it is not included. I'm telling you, the total value is not in there. Now listen, if you go

house by house, listen I'm not an idiot, you go house by house, land by land, all the properties in Lowell and add

them up, you're taking in over $3 million in just residential property and commercial property and all the growth that

we have is not included in that either. You don't add for that. Just like last year, all the money you took in. Every

penny should be accounted for and the way you do that is when you have your annual audit every year and you're

never in compliance with that. You're always under what it really comes in and to overstate your expenditures and

understate the revenues is a wrong as anything in the world but it needs to be corrected. I'm not the one to correct

it, but I'm not going to sit here and let you do what you do, but the council will do whatever they want to do. But in

my opinion Scott, everything has to be accounted, all the CIF money that you say we have in the bank and different

funds, I don't see it. We have never seen every bank account. How many different facetsof money, I'm talking about

bank holding money, who else?" Councilmember Smith asked if we could get back to the agenda? Mayor Simonds

said this is the agenda. Councilmember Smith said you might get your answer if you just listen. Mayor Simonds

continued asking where are all the revenues in the bank now and where are they? CIF? What bank account? Mr.

Attaway asked Lisa Nolen, Finance Director, if she wanted to answer. Councilmember Chitwood asked if that was

something the mayor could ask prior to these meetings? Mr. Attaway said that that information can be provided.

Mayor Simonds said "that's your money, that's their [citizen's] money. I'm not going to pass it off and you can. Go

ahead Scott."

Councilmember Bonham asked about the Mayor's understanding between a budget and an audit. "They are two

totally separate entities." Mayor Simonds said "what do you think you audit." Councilmember Bonham continued "a

budget is what you think it is, the audit is where your money is. The audit tells you where everything goes and

we've got that and you can see it . When you do a budget you can say that we overestimated this or we

understated that, that does not translate into missing dollars in an audit. Mayor Simonds asked "where's the

money?" Councilmember Bonham said "they are two separate things, the audit takes in what comes in and the

budget is what goes out." Mayor Simonds said "first of all, where is the money?" Councilmember Bonham said look

at the audit. Mayor Simonds said "it's understated as far as revenue and expenditures are overstated. I don't like

being wrong and I don't like being misled." Councilmember Bonham said "you can say I understated my revenue

but if all the money is there..." Mayor Simonds said "you set your tax rate one time a year, look at the money it takes

to own homes and buy property and how much it costs them." Councilmember Bonham said you are suggesting

that there is money missing. Mayor Simonds said the "employees out here don't get paid jack (expletive) and they

work hard. Councilmember Chitwood made a point of order and asked to move on. He said the mayor is not being

professional. Mayor Simonds said "well I'll use the word defecation." He asked Mr. Attaway to continue. Mr. Attaway

11



continued with his budget presentation. He offered that he would answer any questions now or within the next 30

days.

Mayor Simonds said "the money that these people out here. They buy a home, interest has gone up with city and

county taxes and all the reevaluations and everything, they are averaging $400-$500 a month at River View just in

increased house payments and those are the people that you need to look at Scott. You need to include the tax on

automobiles, you need to include every penny that we have and come back with a fair and honest budget where it

represents us, not just you, this whole board. That's why the people elected a new board, they didn't elect us

because they were happy with what was going on, just common sense." Councilmember Smith said "let me stop

you right there. He [Mr. Attaway] set this budget to the new council's agenda. It is not his budget." Mayor Simonds

said "we are just talking and it's not going to be approved tonight. I'm talking about what is going to be

encompassed tonight." Councilmember Smith said "you don't have to hollar, I'm right here." Mayor Simonds

apologized for hollering. Mr. Attaway said "Mayor if you would like to stop by my office, we could schedule that."

There was some inaudible conversation, then the Mayor asked if the board had any other comments. There were no

other comments.

6B. Set Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Ordinance- 7�14 PM

The item was motioned To Set by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 5-0-1-

0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To set for June 11th at 6pm.

6C. Set Public Hearing to Closeout the FY17 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood

Revitalization Program- 7�15 PM

The item was motioned To Set by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-0-0-

0

To set a public hearing for June 11th at 6pm.

6D. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Town of McAdenville to Provide Water Service to Lowell

Elementary- 7�15 PM

Mr. Attaway presented. He stated "the previous agreement we [Lowell] had is with Gaston County where they are

going to extend the city's water line to Lowell Elementary to provide reliable and clean water to the school. Because

this school is in the town of McAdenville city limits, this Interlocal Agreement is between the City of Lowell and

McAdenville basically allowing McAdenville the City of Lowell to put it's utility in it's town limits." He asked John

Russell to add anything or answer any questions as he is working with McAdenville's attorney.

Mr. Russell pointed out that there is a provision in the agreement that if this property is no longer used for public

education purposes, (school system no longer needed the property and the property becomes residential or

commercial for example) then McAdenville is reserving the right to provide water to that property at a future time.

Councilmember Chitwood asked "and we go in and cap that off, according to this agreement?" Mr. Russell said yes.

Councilmember Chitwood said to Mr. Attaway "to be clear, it's coming off of the water main is at River View and

Beaunitt Rd according to what this says?" Mr. Attaway said "that is that side road." Mayor Simonds said "yes, I don't

know how they are going to get it from McAdenville to there." Councilmember Chitwood said "it's not coming from

McAdenville, it's going to be our water." Mr. Attaway asked what page that was on. Councilmember Chitwood said

pg. 110 [of the agenda packet], the fourth 'wheras' down. Mayor Simonds said "they've already met with the Clerk

12



of McAdenville and have everything ready to be signed. I don't know what this is but we're giving up a lot of

property." Councilmember Chitwood said "we are not giving up any property." Mayor Simonds said "we are giving it

up right beside of it. It belongs to us. It's our sewer line. Councilmember Chitwood said we are not talking about

sewer lines. Mayor Simonds said "that's the back door part of it." Councilmember Smith said "that is not even on

the agenda." Councilmember Chitwood said "Mr. Mayor, I wish you would pay attention to what you are reading,

because this is not.." Mayor Simonds said "I know what's going to end up happening, they're going to put those

little warehouses down there." Councilmember Smith called for a point of order and to get back to the agenda.

Mayor Simonds said to go ahead.

Mr. Attaway said Beaunitt is the road on the side of the Mayor's house. Mayor Simonds said that is "Lineberger,

Saxony." Councilmember Chitwood said "it used to be called Lineberger." Mr. Attaway said this is what it shows but

he suspected it was Lineberger. Councilmember Chitwood said [Mayor Pro Tem] Bates is the one who brought it to

his attention that the police maps show it as Lineberger. He said "we either need to change it to say or whatever

the existing sign or what is recognized as the street. I know River View Dr. is recognized but it's either going to

either say Beaunitt or Lineberger." Mr. Attaway said to Mr. Russell that he doesn't think that would need to be a

motion but more of a clerical edit to ensure that is the correct road. Mr. Russell said "I think this wheras clause

came from the agreement that the county drafted and it was approved, so that would be where this location came

from but certainly if that needs to be corrected, administratively, that can be done." Councilmember Chitwood said

"and again, we are servicing this, we are getting paid for this water. After the whole ordeal is done, it's being

serviced by us and paid to the city of Lowell? Not going to McAdenville? If the property goes awry and does not

stay a school, it is cut off and capped off by the City of Lowell?" Mr. Attaway said correct to each part. He said "this

makes Lowell Elementary a customer of the city of Lowell's water system." Councilmember Smith asked "and zero

cost the city...the county is covering all construction costs?" Mr. Attaway said "correct, they are covering it with

their ARPA funds." Mayor Pro Tem Bates asked if Lowell is supplying sewer at this point to the school? Mr. Attaway

asked Thad Buchanan, Interim Public Works Director if we are supplying sewer collection and reading their existing

water meter from the town of McAdenville so we can judge the flow of the sewer coming from it and that's what we

do every month." Mr. Buchanan was nodding yes to Mr. Attaway. Mayor Simonds said "the only way the sewer can

get to the plant is where the existing lines are, where they want to move them to put these junk houses in you got

out here on Church St." Mr. Attaway said to Mayor Pro Tem Bates question "so to that point, we'll have a new water

meter set in there, that's metering the water, therefore the sewer usage."

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by DeWayne Chitwood with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

6E.Ordinance #02-2024 To Allow for a Volunteer Auxiliary Police Department- 7�21 PM

Mr. Attaway said "the City Clerk brought this to his attention that the NC League of Municipalities (NCLM), who is

our insurer has asked if we had an Auxiliary Police Department for computing our property liability and other

insurance. They asked for an ordinance that we did not have, so in front of you is an ordinance to allow for Lowell to

have a Voluntary Auxiliary Police Department to meet this requirement. This is nothing new and the Chief can speak

to this, this is the reserve. I think we have one on reserve?" Chief Moore said "yes, one." Councilmember Chitwood

asked if there is a policy for auxiliary? Chief Moore said "yes, I believe so." Councilmember Chitwood asked "is

there any way council can get a copy of that and we table this until next month so I can look at it if that would be ok

with everyone else?" Council agreed to table the agenda item to the next month. Councilmember Chitwood asked

Mr. Attaway if they can get the policy by this Thursday. Mr. Attaway said yes. No motion was needed.
13



6F. Resolution to Discontinue Collection of Motor Vehicle Tag Tax beginning FY 2024-2025- 7�23 PM

Mayor Simonds asked if "this [agenda item] would not be in the regular budget we are about to adopt."

Councilmember Chitwood said "we still need to have to have a resolution for it to stop." Mayor Simonds said "would

it not be encompassed in the new budget?" "Mayor Pro Tem Bates said "you have to have a resolution, I believe, for

the Finance Officer to turn into the County." Mr. Attaway said correct. Mayor Simonds asked for a motion to

discontinue the collection of the motor vehicle tax. Councilmember Chitwood said "no, what you are needing is a

motion for Resolution to discontinue the collection of the motor vehicle tag tax pursuant to NC General Statues

160A-213. It would Resolution 07-2024." Mayor Simonds said "once you adopt that, it'll go away. Go ahead. I need

a motion." Councilmember Chitwood said he just gave one. It was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bates.

The item was motioned To Approve by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

6G. Amended Grant Project Ordinance- 7�24 PM

Lisa Nolen presented. Mrs. Nolen stated "we had originally completed this in December of 2023. (Mayor Simonds

left at 7�25pm) After conversations with Withers Ravenel, we needed to amend our grant project ordinance to

include the amount of money that local funds were going to come from the City of Lowell to pay for the Wastewater

Pre-Construction planning grant. We received $400,000 in the grant and then we are going to be expending

$188,000 in local funds to take care of the pre-construction for the pre-construction of the Wastewater Treatment

Plant." Mr. Attaway added that "the contract was approved by the previous council in October [2023] when the

contract was signed with Withers Ravenel. We included those old contract minutes from each of these meetings,

the current project ordinance and the recommended one that shows the local funds on pg. 121. ARPA grant

proceeds is the DWI Pre-construction planning grant that I mentioned in the budget message (Mayor Simonds

returned at 7�27pm) about the pump station at the Wastewater Treatment plant. The $400,000 is the maximum of

the grant and the work actually costs $588,000 so the local funds of $188,000 is amending the ordinance for

compliance." Mayor Pro Tem Bates asked if the total of $588,000 is for Withers Ravenel? Mr. Attaway said "yes,

that is the total. They are administering the entire pre-construction planning grant. They are engineering plans for

the conversion of the plant." Mayor Pro Tem said "so far up to this point is the $37,000?" Mr. Attaway said "the

progress building is not there yet. We had a question about this that we just listed the grant amount as $400,000.

When we adopted this we knew that is what the grant was for. We also knew what the out of pocket amount was,

but we were under the assumption the grant project ordinance only needed to list the grant. It also needed to list

that local money in the action and that is what this revision is for."

Mayor Simonds said "this council has the authority to rescind that correct and go back to keep our own sewer

system? There's nothing written in stone that you have to go forward with all this mess and lose our sewer system,

which is a big asset to the city and brings in a lot of revenue. We pay for it, taxpayers paid for it from the 1960's to

2001 when it was paid off. Now you're just gonna up and give it away. I don't understand because another council

has done something, we have the right to rescind it, correct? No prior board can obligate another council, just like

they did in December meeting instead of passing their audit. They were in there protecting different things like

personnel and stuff like that, when they should've been conducting business. Why would you give up your sewer

system?" Mr. Attaway said to answer your question, what we are talking about here is a contract that we signed

with Withers Ravenel and that's it. So we're stuck to the contract." Mayor Simonds interrupted and said "I

understand that, but this is going in and getting rid of the sewer plant." Mr. Attaway said "but as I mentioned earlier
14



we are going to plan a work session with Two Rivers, and you all, and our engineering firm to answer a lot of those

questions that came up during one of the first budget sessions, some of those concerns about what the contract

would look like. This is not a commitment to do that regionalization. This is a commitment to fulfill our contract

that's signed." Councilman Chitwood said "with what we are already owe to Ravenel?" Mr. Attaway said "correct

and to update the grant project ordinance."

Mayor Simonds said the total is $588 [thousand] so that would be $541 more thousand dollars. Are we obligated to

the whole $588 [thousand] or the $37,000?" Mr. Attaway said $588 [thousand], we signed a contract." Mayor

Simonds said why would we want to be obligated to something if we don't really know if we're going to do it or not,

unless the council has already got it in their head to dump your sewer plant. We could stop that if the council voted

for it." Mr. Attaway said "the previous council, in October 2023 approved the contract." Mayor Simonds said "yes

sir, and it can be rescinded. Nothing has been done. Why would we want to give away the biggest asset in Lowell

that we have that helps offset our taxes. Look at all these other towns. When Scott [Bates] and I went down to talk

to, what's the guy's name that runs the sewer plant? He told us point blank 'the dumbest people in the world, give

up their sewer plant and that's what they prey on. Listen, what's the difference, if we do this, why don't we turn the

city of Lowell, listen, how much money we can save... " Councilmember Smith interrupted and said "I'm listening."

Mayor Simonds continued "if we give up our city, just give it to Gastonia. Our tax rate would be $.45 cent, we'll have

water and sewer rates the same as theirs, and we won't have to pay the $.8-1/2 fire tax. That is a lot of money. You

know people, you don't realize, you're sitting out there 'ooohing and ahhhing' every time I open my mouth, but

listen $.57-1/2 cent tax rate is enormous for the people living here. We used to have a fire department. They gave it

away. Listen to this..." Councilmember Bonham interrupted "we didn't have a fire department, it was a contracted

service." Mayor Simonds said "it's stupid...stupidest thing you've ever done was give the fire department away and

now you want to top that by giving away the sewer plant. Stupid is stupid, I don't care how you (inaudible) it."

Councilmember Smith said "John can you explain to the mayor that this is simply...The Mayor interrupted "an

agreement to pay $588,000." Councilmember Smith said "I told you one time Larry. I'm sitting right beside you, you

do not have to holler at me!" Mayor Simonds said "I don't have to holler, but I want you to understand we spent

$588,000 of taxpayers money" "No you don't! I want you to understand" said Councilmember Smith. Mayor

Simonds continued "I want you to understand, whether you're on the moon or not. That's a lot of money for

nothing"

Mr. Russell said "anytime you have a contract, there is no law required that you fulfill it and to go through with it.

There may or may not be damages if you don't fulfill assigned contracts. You really can't answer that without going

back and looking at the contract, getting a sense of how far along is the engineering firm, what's expended, what

those exposures are. I'd be glad to do that. I don't think I can do that tonight, but just like with anything, you've got

a contract that's been signed sitting there. Therefore there's a contractual obligation to do that, but you are not

required to follow through with it. There may be damages." Mayor Simonds said "we're obligated to $37,000,

they've already done the study, I understand that. But as far as going further into crushing our sewer plant, building

a newer sewer plant and give it to Two Rivers, listen, that belongs to us. If we keep on giving, let me ask you

something, in this budget, the only thing in there, the money, is to cover the employees. It's not even 20% to build

things for the city of Lowell." Mr. Russell said "but this is not the decision to disperse (inaudible) funds." Mayor

Simonds "It's the beginning stages of it, this is what it's for. This is the early procedures of getting rid of our plant."

15



Mr. Russell said "correct." Mayor Pro Tem Bates said "we haven't gotten to that point yet, for the council to vote on

that, Mayor."

Councilmember Bonham said "and by the way, we're not building anything to turn it over. I think you're confusing or

you don't understand what the process is over there. It's either build a new plant or we convert the existing to a

pump station, which is even further down the line. We own everything including the pump station. From the pump

station-on, if we regionalize, it's Two Rivers. So the cost of a pump station versus the cost of a new plant; versus

annual operating of the pump station versus versus annual operating of a new plant, if you extrapolate the dollars

out, then what are you looking at as far as the impact onto the tax payer. If you're sitting here saying, like you're

doing right now, we're going to build a new plant and turn it over to Two Rivers. A) that's false." Mayor Simonds said

"that's not what I said. I said (inaudible) existing plant" Councilmember Bonham said "that's exactly what you said,

read the minutes. We are here to do the right thing. You want to kill it because you're afraid of everything, don't

want to give anything up but that's not what we're doing. We're trying to do the best for the city in the long run and

doing our due diligence."

Mayor Simonds said "we own that plant, that's what I'm talking about. They're giving away the biggest asset that

you have in this town is your sewer. It's owned by the citizens of Lowell. To give it away to Two Rivers, let them

come in here and take over our sewer...no one knows how much it will cost us. We set our own sewer rate because

it belongs to us. There's nothing wrong with our sewer plant. We talked to the operator and the operator plainly told

us that we're not at 50% capacity and plus the plant operates beautiful. All we gotta do is take care of what's there,

clean up the place. We got a garbage truck down there, that's been down there probably a year, that needs to get a

little part fixed on it, sitting down there going to pieces. You got tires thrown all over the place. You got garbage. Go

down and look at your biggest asset and understand how it's not being taking care of. I am ashamed of the way

everything is being taken care of in the city. Our people outside, they recommend what needs to be done but they

don't get it. I understand and you understand too. When you see your water sewer bill, understand how cheap your

water and sewer is today but once you turn it over to Two Rivers, understand how much higher it will be. When you

get your tax statement every year, look at how much you're paying in property taxes because these people already

been on the board for a long time." Councilmember Smith said "we already pay Two Rivers for water." Mr. Simonds

said "for water, not for sewer." (Councilmember Bonham said something regarding the sewer but it was inaudible

because of the train horn). Mayor Simonds said "not now because we still own our sewer plant but once you give it

away, it'll automatically increase." Councilmember Bonham asked "did we not just talk about that, am I hearing

things?" Mayor Simonds said "it's the truth. Scott [Bates] what did the guy tell us down there? Is our sewer plant

not in good shape?" Mayor Pro Tem Bates said "yes." Mayor Simonds asked him "do we need to get rid of our

sewer plant?" Councilmember Bonham "(inaudible)...that's going to retire shortly [Wastewater Treatment plant

operator]." Mayor Simonds said "he's not going to retire, unless yall write him off and give it to Two Rivers. That guy

does a great job." Councilmember Bonham said "this is asinine."

Mayor Simonds continued with "just like the Fire Department. Yall gave it away without a public hearing or nothing!

And now look at you smarties, you got a 8 and 1/2 cent fire tax plus a $.49 cent property tax. The Fire Department

is still down there and we should take care of our Fire Department and it should be, listen..." Councilmember

Chitwood interrupted and asked "why are you talking about the Fire Department? Can we point of order and move

on?" Mayor Simonds said "you're point of order is taken care of." Councilmember Chitwood said "I believe you

received the same email that I received, that Mr. Bates, Mr. Robinson, and these two right here [Councilmembers16



Smith and Bonham] about the Fire Department. The Fire Department is a done deal" Mayor Simonds said "in your

mind." Councilmember Chitwood said "oh no, it's a done deal. Unless you are going to get 100% of the City of

Lowell to sign the petition. Are you going to spend all of your money to do that?" Mayor Simonds asked "did they

get 100% to take it off?" Councilmember Chitwood said "I'm asking you a question, are you going to get the whole

city to sign that petition? And then you are going to take it in front of the County Commissioners? Did you read that

email? Probably didn't" Mayor Simonds said "the County Commissioners would be glad to give it back. You're

giving them $800,000 and getting $600,000 back." Councilmember Chitwood said to move on.

Councilmember Smith said "basically, what I get out of it is, and I might be wrong, I'm just speculating. Either we

pass this or more than likely the city of Lowell is going to be sued and we still pay off the money. That's the way I'm

looking I take it. I'm not 100%." Councilmember Chitwood asked Councilmember Robinson if he had an opinion on

this? Councilmember Robinson said "my thing is, have we received the $400,000 ARPA funds." Lisa Nolen said

"we've received a little over $200,000 already. The payout was submitted to the State and the State has already

paid that amount." Councilmember Robinson said "if we are moving on with and getting rid of the sewer plant, then

yeah you should pay this. If you're not, then maybe you look at where they're [Withers Ravenel] at with it, what

work they've done, what they haven't done. Maybe we table this to the next meeting or until we bring in Two Rivers

to discuss the questions that everybody has." Mayor Simonds said "I think that's a good idea. Table it, save the city

and table it please." Mr. Attaway asked Mrs. Nolen if she was aware of any deadline requirements from DEQ on this?

She said she was not aware of any and that they would have to look into.

Mayor Simons said "my biggest question is this. If we had a problem with our sewer plant, I'd be the first one in

agreement with you but everything is up and running beautifully down there, it's just the maintenance that needs to

be done." Councilmember Robinson interrupted and said "I'm not saying that. The local funds of $188,000 is a lot

of money. I know originally ARPA was going to cover it but then the additional $188 [thousand] from tax payer funds

is just..." Mr. Attaway said "before we signed the contract we knew what the amount was and this was from a

different engineer. A different engineer applied for the grant for us and got us the grant. There number was a little

bit higher than this one so we went with this engineering firm. We knew that it was $188 [thousand]. In the minutes

in the packet we mentioned in the approval this was coming from water and sewer fund balance or system

development fees pending General Statutes, compliance, etc. Another question, that we can find out, I would

suspect if you do not deliver on the $400,000 grant by producing engineering drawings, which is what the city

applied for and the city accepted those monies to do that, then the money that the State has already given us, is

probably going to need to be paid back. Mayor Simonds said "I'd rather pay the money back and keep our plant

and save money. That's our plant." Councilmember Bonham said "that's a whole other discussion." There was some

back and forth about the amounts. Mayor Simonds asked Mr. Attaway if the total amount is $588,000. Mr. Attaway

said yes. Mayor Simonds to Councilmember Bonham said "go ahead genius." Councilmember Bonham said "ok,

genius, $400,000 ain't ours, it's grant money." Mayor Simonds said "hell it's still our money. It's taxpayer money.

It's not your money. It's everyone's money all over the United States. You pick and choose where your money

comes from. It still comes from every tax payer in NC." Councilmember Bonham said "there's no question about

that." Mayor Simonds said "thank you, so quit trying to act like it's some kind of deal. It's not. It's a bad deal for the

people of Lowell, understand that." Councilmember Bonham said "I tell you what, why don't we give every grant

dollar we got coming and that we received to date, back and you run it and you turn it to Larry land and you do it

however the hell you want to do it. And you run everybody in City Hall off and replace it with all your little cronies
17



and run this city into the damn dirt in about 30 minutes." Councilmember Chitwood said something about the

cussing. Councilmember Bonham apologized. Mayor Simonds said you can't afford to live here. Mayor Simonds

then complained about Mr. Attaway not living here and paying lower taxes. He was about to talk about the Fire

Department before Councilmembers Smith and Chitwood and Mayor Pro Tem Bates asked if we could move on.

Mayor Simonds said "I'm tired of keep talking about it, just as wrong as two left shoes." Councilmember Chitwood

said "you continue to keep talking about it."

Councilmember Robinson made a motion to table the topic until the July meeting unless there is a deadline. He

then corrected it to the June meeting. Mayor Simonds said "July is good, September would be even better.

Councilmember Chitwood asked to allow him [Robinson] to continue his motion. Mayor Pro Tem Bates asked when

was the meeting with Two Rivers? Mr. Attaway said he'd find out this week. He said he can talk to the Division

Manager of Two Rivers to participate in a work session. He said he doesn't know of a deadline but that this

[amendment] was brought to his attention by Withers Ravenel. He suspect there is enough time until the June 11th

meeting. Councilmember Robinson continued his motion to table it until the June meeting, seconded by

Councilmember Chitwood. The vote passed with Mayor Pro Tem Bates and Councilmembers Chitwood and

Robinson voting yay and Councilmember Smith and Bonham voting nay.

The item was motioned To Table by Shane Robinson and seconded by DeWayne Chitwood with a passing result

3-2-0-0 Opposed by Travis Smith, Phil Bonham

To table it to the June meeting unless there is a deadline.

6H. Discussion of Forensic Audit- 7�43 PM

Mr. Eddie Caric, CPA wanted to discuss some things with Council. He said "there are a lot of misconceptions

about...the term forensic doesn't need to be used because forensic audit normally comes into play only when there

is a suspicion of something else or illegal has happened to the point of..." Councilmember Bonham interrupted and

asked who he was with. Mr. Caric said he is a CPA with Eddie Caric, CPA. He said they currently do the city of

Ranlo, High Shoals, and Bessimer City. Councilmember Smith asked him to explain a forensic audit again. Mr. Caric

said "when there is some kind of suspicion of something illegal that has happened..." Councilmember Smith

interrupted "can I just stop you right there. [Looking at Mayor Simonds] Is that not exactly why you want a forensic

audit. How many times can we go back on the minutes where you've said you want a forensic audit?" Mayor

Simonds said "I do, I did, but I didn't know what a forensic audit was evidently. I'll admit I was wrong, I'm not going

to sit here and lie to you." Councilmember Chitwood called for a point of order to let Mr. Caric continue. Mayor

Simonds said "thank you Mr. Chitwood, that's one time you're right." Councilmember Chitwood said something

inaudible.

Mr. Caric continued saying "I don't know anything about Butler & Stowe. What I do know about them is the fact that

they are a Certified Public Accountant that's been approved by the State of North Carolina to do governmental

audits. One of the things that you have to be able to do to do governmental audits, is you have to be peer reviewed

at least once every three years. That is where another auditor comes in and looks at what you're doing, how you're

doing stuff and approves that yes you are doing what you're supposed to be doing as far as an audit is concerned.

With that having been said, if you want to know what's happened with the City of Lowell for the last five years, go to

their audit reports. If you've got questions about the expenditures...I will tell you this, we do over 30 municipalities

around NC for audits. %90+ of your general revenues are confirmed by outside sources. If I was going to do the

City of Lowell's audit for this coming year, when I come in, I'm going to know how much the State of NC has already
18



paid you in sales tax, it would be posted on a website. What I'm saying is, they would have that all confirmed from

outside sources as far as revenues and property taxes, these kinds of things. They would tie in what your cash

accounts are at the end of the year and if any issues come up, they are going to bring it to your attention. So if you

want to know what money has been spent. If you look at the Police Department for example and want to know why

we spent all that money right here? Go to them [Butler & Stowe], they should be able to give you a detail of what

made up those expenditures and can tell you where they got their information from. If you have questions about

something, and I'm going to use an example because the Mayor had asked me 'I just want to make sure all our

State and Federal funds through all these projects we've been doing have been spent the way that they are

supposed to be spent.' That's what's called an agreed upon procedures audit. Yall would come to me and say 'look,

we want you to go back the last five years. We want you to verify that amount was paid, these are the people it was

paid to.' You see what I'm saying the difference is? You're giving me specifics, directions on what you have

concerns with." Councilmember Chitwood added "we are giving you direction to look for something?" Mr. Caric

said "yes".

Councilmember Bonham said "we are assuming at that point that our contracted CPA is not doing what they are

contracted to do?" Mr. Caric said "well no, let me go one step further. Your CPA is providing a financial statement

audit." Councilmember Bonham asked "is there is an obligation in their scope to, if they find something out of wack,

any red flags, they should come to us under the contract per what they are supposed to do as part of their State

requirement and say 'this'? So if they do not and everything adds up, the planets are all lined up and everything is

good and just because we have somebody in here now that wants to stir the pot and create something, he comes

to you and says come here and let's piss off this guy [pointing at Mr. Attaway] who is already doing a good job, let's

bring you in. If it was the other way around, where would you be right now? You'd be sitting over there pissed off"

Mr. Caric said "let me say this from that stand point and let me preface this with, I'm not interested in doing an audit

for you." Councilmember Bonham said he doesn't blame him. Mr. Caric continued "Mayor, I'm sorry, but there is

internal conflict here or whatever that I'm not sure yall could justify giving me a direction to look at something. If

there are questions on where the money has been spent, what departments it got spent in...just take your audits.

Go back and look at your audits. Like I said, if there questions, if yall do have concerns with where Federal and

State money is spent...I do financial audits just like Butler & Stowe is doing. There is no obligation for me to dig

deep looking for something. Now if I confirm with DEQ [example] that they gave you this amount of money and

that's not the amount of money that is showing up on your book, then I have an obligation to figure out what

happened." Councilmember Bonham said "it's not your obligation to dig deeper, but it is your obligation to say 'hey,

I'm gonna stop right here, because this is where my scope ends BUT, I think on this line item or whatever you want

to call it, I think it deserves more attention?'" Mr. Caric said "in that case I am obligated to dig deeper. If I do come

across something that doesn't agree or look right, then yes I am obligated to look further, even though I'm doing a

financial statement, I've got an obligation at that point in time to dig deeper and figure out why this is not making

sense."

Mayor Simonds asked "the city of Ranlo for the whole year and whatever work you did, audit, take care of their

books, CPA work, I hope I'm not putting you on the spot, but what do they pay you?" Mr. Caric said "you're not

putting me on the spot, because you can go on the State Treasurer's website to see every fee for every town in NC

as far as the audit is concerned. Our base fee is $15,000." Mayor Simonds asked if that was for a year. Mr. Caric

said yes. Mayor Simonds said "and then like a special audit, we just paid Butler & Stowe $40 some thousand dollars
19



to audit ARPA. What did it cost Ranlo?" Mr. Caric said $4,000. Mayor Simonds said "see that's the thing that gets

me, you know, this is money that we can save. I'm not doing anything wrong. I've never met you in person, we've

only had phone conversations. I'll admit I didn't know what a forensic audit was and didn't mean to misquote

anyone but I think it's a good idea for this council and let him, if he would, do our audits, I mean do our work every

year. Would you be interested in doing it?" Councilmember Chitwood said "did you not just hear what he said?"

Mayor Simonds said "he said he wouldn't do an audit for us." Councilmember Chitwood asked Mr. Caric to repeat

what he said. Mr. Caric said he was not interested. Mayor Simonds said I thought he said he's not interested in

forensic. Mr. Caric said "I did say I'm not interested in any kind of forensic or agreed upon procedures audits but no,

I don't think am interested in the financial statement audit either." Councilmember Chitwood asked "so you are not

interested in any part of looking at any audit, taking over for Butler & Stowe for the city of Lowell?" Mr. Caric said

"no sir." Councilmember Chitwood said "thank you, and I apologize for you having to wait so long tonight."

Councilmember Bonham said "sorry you've waisted your time. So right now you [to the Mayor] are the point you

don't know what a forensic audit is, you called this man in unfortunately wasting his time and what you really want

to do is renegotiate terms of our annual audit."

Mayor Simonds said "I want to renegotiate the whole Butler & Stowe deal. I do want to do that because that's way

over." Councilmember Chitwood asked if that was something that can be done. Mr. Attaway said he can provide you

with it. He said he believes we are in the middle of a three year contract right now. If council would like him to look

at another auditing firm and consider that contract with the attorney. He added "when we selected Butler & Stowe,

I was here, not as Manager, but when we selected Butler & Stowe [before selecting them], we consistently had late

audits being submitted from our prior CPA. I'm sure this gentleman [Mr. Caric] can attest that there is not enough

auditors doing local government audits in NC right now." Mr. Caric said "not at all." Mr. Attaway said "the League of

Municipalities has noticed that and is trying get some of the accounting assistance to ready smaller localities to get

their ducks in a row as they find an auditor so they can get them the information they need. If we want to do that

[renegotiate], then you would instruct the Manager to go out and do a request for proposals for CPA contracts but

we're in the middle of one right now."

Mayor Simonds asked Mr. Caric "just like whenever we, every year, set the budget, when the Manager gives us the

budget and council approves it, and then when the audit comes in and it's throwing away more money that's been

taken in, that what was projected, is that a red flag or not or when the audits are not turned in on time?" Mr. Caric

said "when an audit has not been turned in on time, in fact the State of NC, if you're consistently late with your

audit, they are going to start withholding some taxes that they will be distributing out, so that is a point of emphasis

that they are looking at. Actually your budget is a legal document from the expenditure side. So I would say 90% of

the towns that I deal with, the revenue is going to exceed what was budgeted revenues are BUT you can not spend

one dollar more than what your budgeted expenditures are or you're going to be in violation." Mayor Simonds said

"and the money is supposed to go back to the citizens...I did make a mistake on the forensic side but I did not make

a mistake as far as when he gives us a budget, it should be the budget. It should be, maybe in the realm of 5-6%,

not 25%, 30%, 35%. That's what hurts because that kills the tax payers because you get charged for what he [Mr.

Attaway] says is not true. You can't overstate the expenditures and understate the revenues and say it's ok. That's

wrong. I can't do it. when you turn your taxes in, it better be what it's supposed to be. You're [Mr. Caric] a CPA,

that's why you have one. I'm glad that you came in."

20



Mr. Caric asked council if they had any questions. Mayor Simonds asked "do you not have enough staff to do

another city?" Mr. Caric said he had plenty of staff. Mayor Simonds asked "if we advertise for a new CPA, could you

do it?" There was some commotion in the audience. Councilmember Chitwood asked them to quiet down. Mr. Caric

said "Mr. Mayor, I'm sorry but no. Without some internal resolutions, no I would not be [interested]." Mayor Simonds

said "it would be up to the council. If the council would get together and ask you, in an understanding way, rather

than spend this exorbitant amount of money we're spending, we need to save all we can. This is a poor town with

poor people and I do appreciate you coming. It's my fault for saying forensic audit but thank you."

Councilmember Bonham stated he needed to leave and excused himself to the Mayor and Council at 7�58pm.

6I. Consideration of Budget Amendment #13- 7�58 PM

Presented by Lisa Nolen. She said "this was for a Water AIA grant back in FY22 and we just received the final

payment for that. This budget amendment is recognizing that revenue and that's the reason for the amendment

because we did not originally budget for it." Councilmember Chitwood said "we're bringing in $67,521?" Mrs. Nolen

said yes. Mayor Simonds asked what the grant money was for? Mrs. Nolen said it was the Water AIA grant from

FY22 and was not exactly sure what all is included as she was not employed here then. She said she started in late

2021. Mayor Simonds asked "so the money has just been lying dormant?" Mrs. Nolen said "no, the State did not

release the funds until recently." Mayor Simonds said "so we need an amendment to take the money, which makes

sense." He asked for a motion.

Mr. Attaway asked if she had it in front of her and to look for the 1.755 million number where there looks like there is

an extra digit [shows 1,755,7093.24]. She said there is an apologized. There was some silent review of the amounts

of the amendment. Mayor said we need a motion to accept the amendment. Councilmember Robinson said "we are

looking at the amounts to make sure." Mayor Simonds said "we need to add it correct[ly] to start with."

Councilmember Robinson said from what he could figure it was the three and just a typo. Mrs. Nolen said it was a

typo. Mayor Simonds asked what should the total be? Councilmember Smith made a motion to accept the funds

with the typo being fixed, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bates.

Under discussion, Mayor Simonds asked "how much is that line item going to go to?" Councilmember Smith said

"it's on your paper." Mayor said "well that's not what it says, it says $1million, 779 right? What did you have to start

with Lisa, $1 million, 779. Mrs. Nolen said it was $1,755,709. Accepting that grant money it goes to $2,155,709.

Mayor Simonds said that's $67 thousand. That amount adds to over $1million, bout $2million something. $1million

779 plus $67 [thousand] is $1,853,000 so how can it be $2 million something? I made my living out of reading

people's faces." It was mentioned that the amendment says $67 thousand in one place and $400,000 in another.

Mrs Nolen stated that is an error. Mayor Simonds said "so let's get it right before we leave here, no use in passing

something that's not right. It's simple math." Councilmember Chitwood said "we'll table it until June, when we get it

right. That way it's written on the paper and Mr. Simonds maybe won't be speaking on it too much. I say we table

6I, Budget Amendment #13 until June 11" Mayor Simonds said "in the meantime Scott, can you get us the correct

figures sometime tomorrow?" Councilmember Chitwood said "in the meantime, we don't need it until June." Mayor

Simonds said "I need it. You can tolerate all the mistakes you want." The motion to table was seconded by

Councilmember Robinson. The vote was unanimous.

The item was motioned To Table by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by DeWayne Chitwood with a passing

result 4-0-1-1 Abstained by Larry Simonds Absent was Phil Bonham
21



6J. Consideration of Budget Amendment #14- 8�03 PM

Presented by Lisa Nolen. She said this is from Gaston County to receive funds in the amount of $31,000 from their

Township Grant. She said we used those funds for repairs to the Community Center. Mr. Attaway added that "this is

for the CDBG-NR that we did the neighborhood revitalization grant. We had monies from CDBG to do the exterior,

the repairs, the painting, etc. at the community center. In that grant, we had to have local match. When the

Township grants came out in the late teens [years] from Gaston County, what they did, if you all recall when you

were on the council [to Councilmembers Robinson and Chitwood], the County distributed money from the

Caromont lease, I think it was, to all the municipalities based on population. We did the cross walk improvements

out here at the Main St. section with the pedestrian beacons and purchased some other things relative to

beautification and then it was slated that we were going to utilize that needed CDBG match. We received our final

invoice from MAN Construction at the Community Center and this is the maximum amount of what we need to

match with those local funds. $31,000, there was about $43 thousand and some change sitting at the county. We

requested the $31,000 to assist in paying MAN Construction, leaving a balance of a little over $12,000 that we can

then request from the county to zero out our Township Grant. I'd say that would be a wise use of coupling that with

the $75,000 if we want to continue using those funds at the Community Center for interior repairs and that will

come at a later time. This is just to amend it for the $31,000."

The item was motioned To Approve by Shane Robinson and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 4-0-

0-1 Absent was Phil Bonham

7. Reports / Discussions

7A. City Manager Report- 8�05 PM

1. Glad everyone is safe from the recent tornado here in Lowell. Thanked Thad, Interim Public Works Director, and

staff and the councilmembers that helped feed staff and the Police Department after working over.

2. Police Officer's Memorial is tomorrow [15th] at 10�00 am at Woodlawn Baptist Church and a procession following

that will travel to the cemetery on New Hope Rd in Gastonia.

3. Mentioned the Notice of Intent to fund earlier.

7B. City Attorney Report- 8�07 PM

Nothing at this time.

7C.Mayor and City Council General Discussion- 8�07 PM

1. Councilmember Robinson also thanked Public Works for their work during the tornado.

2. Mayor Pro Tem Bates had no comment

3. Councilmember Chitwood thanked Public Works during tornado

4. Councilmember Smith thanked Public Works, Police and everyone that helped during tornado.

Mr. Attaway added that Town of Ranlo helped Lowell Public Works, as well as Gaston County Emergency

Management brought a pull behind generator. Also Woodlawn Baptist fed everyone well and he wanted to thank all

of them.
22



5. Mayor Simonds [to Thad Buchanan] "the town of Ranlo helped you guys out. It would be crazy if you weren't our

Public Works Director but that is the Boards recommendation to Mr. Attaway...The Community Center, is it open

now?" Mr. Attaway said "it is not." Mayor Simonds asked why not? Mr. Attaway said "we still have a bathroom to

repair on the main floor before we can open it." Mayor Simonds asked how many years has it been closed? Mr.

Attaway said "the Community Center has been closed since Covid." Mayor Simonds said "all this stuff has taken a

toll. "People think that I'm mean, but you got the wrong idea, I love everyone, but in this case, this is (inaudible)

tonight. If I wasn't so healthy, like I am, I'd probably be over here throwing up in the floor after listening to all the

misappropriations of money and I'll tell you, just like the auditor told you.

"You can't keep what you're doing, overstating the expenditures and understating the revenues, just like weaving

out the actual car tax money. Do you not realize how much money that would help reduce property taxes? And

listen to this part, and I know people are shaking their heads, shake your head, I don't care. The truth's the truth.

$.8-1/2 cent fire tax, a $.8-1/2 cent fire tax, the money doesn't go to our Fire Department, maybe 72-75% goes to

them. They [former council] let them leave here without a public hearing. They say now we gotta have 100% of the

citizens to allow them to come back. We're not crazy and I guarantee you, when I go before the County

Commissioners next month and talk with them about the situation of how, listen, that is so wrong, to give up $.8-1/2

cent tax rate from us and only get back maybe 4%, 6% tops. That's bad management and I don't care if it's your

cousin, your brother, your sister, me. If I did you that way, I would be wrong. Listen, we have to honor what this City

Manager says. He is the leader. He's supposed to be the one that keeps everyone informed. I'm talking about

citizens and the board. To get all this crap today Scott, is slap in my face. The other people [council] may say it's ok

but Larry tells you the truth. I would strongly recommend at this time that we advertise for a new City Manager

(loud chatter/noises from the audience) and he can also include his resume and I'm not firing no one." Candy

Funderburk was asked to stop hollering by Councilmember Chitwood. She apologized.

Mayor Simonds continued "I can recommend anything I want to and you're out of order but that's alright. That's my

recommendation because I don't like misappropriation of money. I don't like for two things to be different year after

year after year after year. If you think that's right, that's your opinion. Vote for who you want to, I'm not running for

nothing. But I can't respect wrong and that is wrong when you tell the figures are wrong and you [hits desk] see

this crap on the day of the meeting less than an hour from the meeting, I have no respect for you, because you

showed me no respect. But that's my recommendation. The council can vote it up or down or never vote on it but

that's my recommendation and the council has that authority, I don't. We need a new City Manager in this town,

that's my opinion." Someone hollered from the audience "we need a new mayor." Mayor Simonds said "that's good,

you can get one of them too. You like paying higher taxes and too much money? Go ahead. Do you have a motion to

advertise for a new City Manager?" Councilmember Chitwood said "I make a motion that we do not even consider

that." Mayor Simonds said "well then is there a motion to adjourn?" Councilmember Smith made a motion to go into

closed session. Mayor Simonds said "yall go into Executive Session and all in favor, go ahead." Councilmember

Chitwood said "don't you think you might need to listen to it." Mayor Simonds said "you know what's wrong, you're

a grown man. I know what's wrong, he's wrong."

City Clerk asked who made the motion and 2nd to go into closed session. Mayor Simonds said "all in favor, go

ahead." Councilmember Robinson stated that the Statute had to be said. Mayor Simonds asked John Russell who

said the statute was 143-318.11 Section 3. Councilmember Chitwood made a motion that we go into closed session

23



for General Statute 143-318.11 Section 3 pursuant to consult with the City Attorney on a specific matter in order to

preserve the attorney-client privilege with respect to the matter discussed. It was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem

Bates.

The mayor then left at 8�15pm. There was a brief 2 minute break. Everyone returned at 8�17pm

8. Closed Session

8A. 143-318.11 (3) Pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(3) to Consult with the City Attorney on a Specific Matter in

Order to Preserve the Attorney-Client Privilege with Respect to the Matter Discussed- 8�12 PM

There was no action taken during the Closed Session.

The item was motioned Convene into Closed Session by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a

passing result 4-0-0-2 Absent was Phil Bonham, Larry Simonds

To go into closed session for General Statute 143-318.11 Section 3 pursuant to consult with the City Attorney on

a specific matter in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege with respect to the matter discussed.

The item was motioned ReConvene into Regular Session by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates

with a passing result 4-0-0-2 Absent was Phil Bonham, Larry Simonds

9. Adjournment

9A.Meeting Adjournment- 8�45 PM

Meeting adjourned at 8�45pm

The item was motioned To Adjourn by Travis Smith and seconded by Shane Robinson with a passing result 4-0-

0-2 Absent was Phil Bonham, Larry Simonds

24



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Annual Presentation by Lead for NC Fellow Emiyah Watkins

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Special Presentation Item: 3A

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 6-6-2024

Re: Presentation by Emiyah Watkins, City of Lowell Lead for NC Fellow 2023-2024

Emiyah will present her work, projects, and experiences in Lowell.

 

25



 

CITY OF LOWELL 

PROCLAMATION  

Proclamation 02-2024 
WHEREAS, President Abraham Lincoln signed the Emancipation Proclamation on January 1, 1863, 
declaring the slaves in Confederate territory free, paving the way for the passing of the 13th Amendment 
which formally abolished slavery in the United States of America; and 
 
WHEREAS, the celebration of the end of slavery, which became known as “Juneteenth”, is the oldest 
known celebration commemorating the ending of slavery in the United States, when Union soldiers led by 
Major General Gordon Granger arrived in Galveston, Texas on June 19, 1865 bringing news that the Civil 
War had ended, and that the Emancipation Proclamation had declared all enslaved people free nearly two 
and a half years earlier; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first Juneteenth celebration was a time for reassurance, prayer, and the gathering of 
family members and neighbors and today is a time of remembrance and celebration within communities 
throughout the country that promotes and cultivates knowledge and appreciation of African American 
history and culture, while encouraging continuous self-development and respect for all people and cultures; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this year’s Juneteenth celebrations take place in Gaston County during the period of 
Saturday, June 15th  through Wednesday June 19th.  On Saturday, there will be a Juneteenth Celebration at 
Centennial Park in Bessemer City, a Juneteenth Celebration at Stowe Park in Belmont, a Juneteenth 
Celebration on Main St also in Belmont, the 6th Annual EbonyFest Juneteenth Festival at the Rotary 
Pavillion in Gastonia, which will be held on the 15th , 16th and the 19th.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Larry Simonds, Mayor, and the City Council of the City of Lowell, do hereby 
declare June 19, 2024, as  
 

JUNETEENTH 
 

in the City of Lowell, North Carolina and urge all citizens to join in celebrating a day so significant in the 
history and heritage of our nation and city. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Lowell to be 
affixed, this the 11th day of June in the year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-four. 
 

       ____________________________________ 
       Larry Simonds, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk PR04-2024 

26



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Finance Update

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4A

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  5-31-2024

Re:  Finance Update

Utility Billing:

Answer questions from Utility Billing staff.
Provide assistance as needed answering phones, troubleshooting technical issues, and reviewing
documentation for staff.
Provide back-up when staff is out of the office.

Finance:

Issue purchase orders for staff.
Process and pay bills.
Ensure transactions are entered correctly and reconcile bank accounts.
Complete tasks as needed for the agenda related to Council meetings.
Complete reporting requirements for SCIF Grant and update spreadsheet for SCIF related transactions.
Complete needed documentation and tasks for other grants.
Continuous training for Accounts Payable/Payroll clerk on duties to assist Finance Director.
Review A/P for accuracy, advise A/P clerk of corrections needed, and review again to ensure all is correct.
Compiling information requested by CPA from NCLM.
Review draft engagement letter from NCLM for MAS assistance regarding Black Mountain Software
transition.
Provide assistance to other staff as needed.
Other duties as needed/requested.

Other:

Attend Department Head meetings.
Attend Leadership Gaston Classes and graduation.
Attend other meetings as needed.

 

27



 

 

City of Lowell, North Carolina
FY 2024 Revenue Dashboard
3/31/2024

Type Budget
YTD thru 

03/31/2024
Budget 

Remaining
Percent 

Remaining
Percent of FY24 

Remaining

General Fund 5,040,073.98     4,748,734.13     291,339.85       6% 33%
Water/Sewer Fund 2,316,662.24     1,651,140.46     665,521.78       29% 33%
Stormwater Fund 423,774.44        308,857.91        114,916.53       27% 33%
Total 7,780,510.66     6,708,732.50     1,071,778.16    14% 33%

Notes:  Pre-Construction Grant and FY 2021 Waterwater AIA Grant revenues included in Water/Sewer Fund.

Funds

City of Lowell, North Carolina
FY 2024 Expenditure Dashboard
3/31/2024

Department Budget
YTD thru 

03/31/2024
Budget 

Remaining
Percent 

Remaining
Percent of FY24 

Remaining

Administration 2,652,310.85 1,305,797.38      1,346,513.47      51% 33%
Public Safety 1,335,955.27 926,301.88        409,653.39         31% 33%
Public Works-Streets 318,185.88    200,600.39        117,585.49         37% 33%
Sanitation 345,633.72    237,126.67        108,507.05         31% 33%
Parks & Rec 289,888.22    161,596.79        128,291.43         44% 33%
Powell Bill 100,000.04    20,118.30          79,881.74          80% 33%
Total 5,041,973.98 2,851,541.41      2,190,432.57      43% 33%

Water/Sewer 1,530,721.44 1,098,923.59      431,797.85         28% 33%
Wastewater Treatment 785,940.80    536,308.35        249,632.45         32% 33%
Total 2,316,662.24 1,635,231.94      681,430.30         29% 33%

Stormwater 423,774.44    266,575.49        157,198.95         37% 33%
Total 423,774.44    266,575.49        157,198.95         37% 33%

Notes:  Pre-Construction Grant expenditures included in Water/Sewer Fund.

General Fund

Water/Sewer Fund

Stormwater Fund

28



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Geographic Information System (GIS) Report

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4B

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Todd Stroupe, GIS Analyst

Date: 5-31-2024

Re: Geographic Information System (GIS) Report

GIS and Mapping 

Updated Official Zoning map to reflect Choice USA Beverage rezoning
Updated Future Land Use map to reflect land use change from Choice USA Beverage rezoning
Updated Powell Bill Map for 2024 NCDOT Municipal Street Aid program submission
Updated Street Listing for 2024 NCDOT Municipal Street Aid program submission
Updated add/delete mileage sheet for 2024 NCDOT Municipal Street Aid program submission
Updated City’s Water Distribution Map with valves and associated blocking for a vertical relocation at
Church/Aberdeen
Generated Mapped Phase II Outfalls map for Stormwater website
Assisted with five outfall inspections for stormwater IDDE requirements
Assisted with municipal vehicle inspections for stormwater pollution prevention and good housekeeping
requirements.
Provided Gaston County GIS is correct City Park boundary information
Calculated wastewater daily flow estimates for seven potential development properties.
Generated map showing wastewater daily flow estimates for seven potential development properties
Continue to work on lead service line inventory and map
Continue to work on Phase 2 of MS4/stormwater infrastructure mapping

Other Tasks and Assignments

Assisted in traffic control at the LEO Memorial service at Woodlawn Baptist Church
Assisted in placing American flags for veterans at Edgewood Cemetery for Memorial Day Service

Meetings and Events

Attended Lowell Memorial Day service at Edgewood Cemetery
Attended monthly department head meeting

Completed Edgewood Cemetery Mapping Project

29



Completed grave inventory of approximately 1,552 graves and 101 family headstones in May 2023
Entered veteran branch of service and wars fought in information into grave inventory
Completed development of the public-facing interactive web map, which will include information pop-ups, a
search by name bar, a military filter, and navigation functions like pan and zoom
Generated a large (34 x 44) PDF map of the cemetery with names on graves labeled
Generated four quadrant graves of veterans in Edgewood Cemetery maps

 

 

30



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Stormwater Report

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4C

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jamie Watkins, Stormwater Administrator 

Date: 5-31-2024

Re: Monthly Report

Worked with Mr. Stroupe to update all things GIS and Stormwater in preparation for his impending departure.
Updated vehicle and site inspections in Survey 123.
Followed up with several developers regarding questions.
Updated project files.
Continued working on the self-audit for Permit Year 3.
Attended training at Gaston County Schools regarding their Summer Lunch Program with Ms. Nixon.
Further collaborated with Ms. Nixon regarding upcoming programming.
Continued research to clarify various standards and benchmarks regarding PY3 Audit.
Presented my research to an audience of 200 people at the RSPC’s Spring Tech Talk
Followed up on reported stormwater issues
Updated outreach, IDDE, and training tracking files
Made preparations for Riverfest
Visited each active construction site during rainfall event, documented erosion and reported to county
Continued updating records and streamlining processes
Stakeholder on-site meeting with Willow Creek project group.
Quarterly meeting of South Fork Collective.
RSPC Quarterly Meeting.
Water Education Zoom Meeting.

 

 

31



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

public works update

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4D

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Thad Buchanan, Interim Public Works Director

Date:  6-4-2024

Re: Monthly Report

City crews repaired the following water leaks, 307 White Oak, 517 Oakland Dr. 314 Rankin Ave. We continued storm
debris pickup, we are now at 105.38 tons, 810 cubic yards, $1906.14 fee's, the trash truck has been down due to
main seal in the compactor cylinder blew out should be back in service by 6/10/2024, the chipper has been down
due to the shoot being offset causing it to clog, hoping to have it back in service by 6/7/2024, trash route has been
on schedule, Street department has been on schedule with mowing city properties and right of ways, brush route
should be back to somewhat normal starting 6/6/2024 residents continue to put out big piles after we go thru so
we continue to pickup brush with the backhoe and dump truck.

 

32



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Police Report

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4E

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jeff Harrison, Assistant Chief of Police

Date: 6-4-2024

Re: June 2024 Police Report

 

Minus special checks, officers responded to 641 calls in May 2024 compared to 507 for May 2023. There were 91 traffic stops
conducted for the month and officers set up to enforce speeding 7 times. Officer Lowery participated in a saturation campaign
in Belmont as part of the Governors Highway Safety Program. His participation brought in points as part of the STEP program.
Monthly campaigns also yield points for the program. Points can be cashed in fall time of each year to get equipment used for
traffic control and enforcement. There were 9 felony arrests, and 7 misdemeanors arrests for May.

The Police Department building was used as a local headquarters in the wake of the severe thunderstorm and tornado. The
generator failed to start. However, once started, the building provided a place for officers and public works employees to cool
off, take a break and get some much-needed nutrition. Woodlawn Baptist Church brought a baked potato bar and fed many
public works and police employees.

Chief Moore received Alex Moore’s certification from the Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission. He
was sworn in as a full-time police officer. He filled a vacancy created when Officer Mulkern left Lowell Police Department.
Blake Farmer and Eric Cruz were hired and started last month. They have both completed all the necessary paperwork and
testing. Their applications for certification were submitted to the Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards
Commission the last week of the month. Recently certifications have returned much faster than the past couple of years, we
expect to receive certification for both officers within a month. Once sworn in, these officers will fill positions vacated by Jon
Fulbright and Jacob Springs.

For the first time, the Lowell Police Department planned and hosted the Gaston County Law Enforcement Memorial Service
and Wreath Laying Ceremony. The Memorial service was held at Woodlawn Baptist Church. The church and its volunteers
were gracious and accommodating. The Memorial service went smoothly, and all participants did a great job. Woodlawn sent
the service out on their YouTube live stream and the it can be found on their You Tube channel. Most of the agencies from
Gaston County assisted in some way for the Memorial Service or the Wreath Laying Ceremony. Fire Department’s from
Belmont, Dallas, Cramerton, Ranlo, and Gastonia also participated.   

 

33



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Planning Report

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4F

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planning Director

Date: 6-5-2024

Re: Planning Report

Code Enforcement:

Multiple nuisance violation letters issued.

Enforcement Action:

Corrected by public works

 

Zoning:

Processed (15) zoning permits in May. 

Permit count (66) for calendar year 2024 to-date. 

Reviewed Site Plan for Lowery Oaks 

Meeting regarding Lowell Woods Construction Inspection 

Pre-Application meeting for 4114 E. Franklin Blvd. 

Meeting regarding Willow Creek 5th Review

Site Plan/ Ordinance Review 4114 E. Franklin Blvd. 

Meeting regarding Willow Creek DA

 

 

Planning:

34



HWY 7 Project review 

Attended Lowell City Council Meeting, 5/14/2024.

Meeting regarding River Heights Retaining Wall

Meeting regarding Spencer Ridge water/sewer line alignments. 

Aberdeen Final Walk 

 

 

Other:

Attended monthly department head meeting.

Attended GCAMP

Meeting regarding Gaston County Downtown Business Partnership 

 

 

 

 

35



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Parks and Recreation Report

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4G

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Andrea Nixon, Parks and Recreation Director

Date: 6-5-2024

Re: Parks and Recreation Report

GENERAL

-Worked on Music in the Park series (Notice of Music in the Park/Fall Fest distributed to Downtown businesses,
Train Slow Order Request, Bands, Set up, Vendors)
-Created program calendar for June for youth & adults and active adults 50 & up (ordered and purchased materials)
-Corresponded with Bands-available dates, contracts and deposits
-Communication with Public Works-needs for upcoming events
-Worked on Memorial Day Service program-participants, layout, set up, flags out at cemetery, banners,
advertisement, Public Works, Holbrook(stage), weather backup plan
-Thank you emails to Memorial Day participants
-Worked on BBQ Cookoff- recruitment of cook teams, band, judges, staff, Public Works, trophies, scorecards, pick
up of meat and items needed
-Corresponded with Customer Service-Ball field and shelter rentals
-Communication with Public Works Director-needs for events
-Communication with Communications Director- regarding programs/events and general questions
-Communications with public-reservations for Community Center, Harold Rankin picnic shelter and ball field
-Scanned and submitted receipts and invoices
-Answered phone calls and returned voicemails 
-General cleaning and picked up trash in park 

MEETINGS
-Thomas Retirement Party 5/1
-Farmers Market-Gastonia 5/4
-Attended Gaston County Law Enforcement Memorial Service and Wreath Laying Ceremony 5/15
-Gaston County Parks & Recreation (Skull Camp Trail Ridge Trail) 5/17
-PARTF 6 month Visit 5/22
-LCC Meeting (cancelled due to holiday)
-Department Head Meeting 5/28

36



TRAININGS
-Carolina Thread Trails 5/7-5/8
-Summer Lunch Program Training 5/29

EVENTS
-BBQ Cookoff Competition & Music in the Park
Saturday, May 11 at 12 pm
McCord Family Park
(150 attendees, 3 cook teams)

-Memorial Day Service
Friday, May 24 at 12 pm
Edgewood Cemetery 
(50 attendees)

ATHLETICS
-Baseball medals and pictures distributed to teams
-Communicated with coaches and parents: schedules, games, practices, end of season parties
-Set up and prepped ball fields for game days
-Supervised practices and games at Harold Rankin Park/CB Huss Field-Cramerton
-Communication with Parks & Recreation Maintenance regarding ball fields and needs for games 

 

 

 

37



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Communications Report

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4H

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Cristy Cummings, Communications Director

Date: 6-1-2024

Re: May Communications Report

Added Proposed Budget to website and created news alert on homepage
Created news alert for AI phone number

Weather alerts
Public Works Yard Debris Pick-Up Updates
Recognized National Weeks for Public Works, Police, and City Clerk

Memorial Day Service and Memorial Day office closing

Took updated photos around town for photo inventory for future posts
Assisted Parks and Rec Director with transition by answering questions and sending over
contacts/vendor information
Helped PD with Gaston County Law Enforcement Memorial Service by handing out programs and taking
photos of the event
Attended City's Memorial Day Service to take photos of the event

City website updates
Updated Quick Links on the Homepage
Added documents as requested by Department Heads
Finalized and published Edgewood Cemetery page on website, added map from GIS Department

Creation of social media content for Facebook and Instagram
Event artwork and promotions
Holiday/office closing posts
General posts to keep residents in-the-know

CodeRed
Updated CodeRed contacts
Sent out City alerts (phone, email, text)

BBQ Cookoff & Music in the Park

General
Set up agenda link and ran test meetings for Special City Council meeting
Ran agendalink for Special City Council meeting & troubleshooted video issues (visual) for broadcast

Attended meetings with:
Staff Department head meeting

38



Attended Internal Communications webinar

 

 

Council meeting

39



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Public Hearing to Closeout the FY17 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood Revitalization
Program

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5A

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk

Date: 6-4-2024

Re: Closeout for the Community Development Block Grant - Neighborhood Revitalization (CDBG-NR)

This public hearing is to closeout the Community Development Block Grant Neighborhood Revitalization (CDBG-NR) grant as
it was completed on May 1, 2024.

In the FY17  grant, the City received $750,000 in grant funds from the NC Department of Commerce.  With these funds, the
City provided housing rehabilitation to eight low-and-moderate-income (LMI) households and rehabilitation repairs to the
Community Center including exterior repairs consisting of new doors, window repairs, painting and mortar repair. 

Representatives with Withers Ravenel will review and assess the performance of the City's FY17 Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood Revitalization Program during this public hearing.

 

40



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Public Hearing Spencer Ridge Development Agreement

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5B

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager 

From: Tyler Cobb, Planning Director 

Date: 6-6-2024

Re: Spencer Ridge Development Agreement 

STAFF REPORT

Spencer Ridge Development Agreement

Overview:

As part of our ongoing efforts to promote responsible growth and development within our community, we have been in
negotiations with LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC regarding a proposed project within our jurisdiction. This project has
reached a critical stage where a formal development agreement is necessary to outline the terms, conditions, and
responsibilities of both the developer and the city.

Purpose:

The purpose of this development agreement is to establish a clear framework for the project, ensuring that it aligns with our
community's values, goals, and regulatory requirements. By formalizing our expectations and commitments, we can effectively
manage the development process and mitigate any potential risks or conflicts that may arise.

Key Components:

1. Project Description: The agreement will define the scope and nature of the proposed development, including the type
of structures, their intended use, and any associated amenities or infrastructure.

2. Timeline: A detailed timeline for the project will be outlined, specifying milestones, deadlines, and key
deliverables to ensure timely completion and adherence to established schedules.

3. Responsibilities: Clear description of responsibilities between the developer and the city will be established,
covering areas such as construction, maintenance, compliance with regulations, and provision of necessary
services.

4. Compliance and Enforcement: Provisions for monitoring, compliance, and enforcement mechanisms will be
included to uphold the terms of the agreement and address any deviations or non-compliance issues.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff and planning board recommend the approval of the proposed Development
Agreement. The Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend APPROVAL.

41



 

 

Attachments

Version 2.0 202022-08-30 - Spencer Mountain - Rezoning Plan.pdf
ORDINANCE NO 3-24 Spencer Ridge DA ordinance 6-2024.pdf
Spencer Ridge - Development Agreement v13 RL.pdf

42

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FVersion%202.0%20202022-08-30%20-%20Spencer%20Mountain%20-%20Rezoning%20Plan.pdf?alt=media&token=0ddec5d3-1a95-4b26-9666-2264e77d0d65
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FVersion%202.0%20202022-08-30%20-%20Spencer%20Mountain%20-%20Rezoning%20Plan.pdf?alt=media&token=0ddec5d3-1a95-4b26-9666-2264e77d0d65
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FVersion%202.0%20202022-08-30%20-%20Spencer%20Mountain%20-%20Rezoning%20Plan.pdf?alt=media&token=0ddec5d3-1a95-4b26-9666-2264e77d0d65
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FORDINANCE%20NO%203-24%20Spencer%20Ridge%20DA%20ordinance%206-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1d995acb-a60d-4aed-ba15-7814881141ae
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FORDINANCE%20NO%203-24%20Spencer%20Ridge%20DA%20ordinance%206-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1d995acb-a60d-4aed-ba15-7814881141ae
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FORDINANCE%20NO%203-24%20Spencer%20Ridge%20DA%20ordinance%206-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1d995acb-a60d-4aed-ba15-7814881141ae
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FSpencer%20Ridge%20-%20Development%20Agreement%20v13%20RL.pdf?alt=media&token=a986fa7b-556a-4e3a-9ee7-4ab625cbe14a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FSpencer%20Ridge%20-%20Development%20Agreement%20v13%20RL.pdf?alt=media&token=a986fa7b-556a-4e3a-9ee7-4ab625cbe14a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607dedff577a00442ff45b%2FSpencer%20Ridge%20-%20Development%20Agreement%20v13%20RL.pdf?alt=media&token=a986fa7b-556a-4e3a-9ee7-4ab625cbe14a


20
'

T

T

T

T

TT

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:3
0:

25
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

1" = 300'

SITE LEGEND
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

OWNER
DORIS B TALLENT
DORIS B TALLENT
TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
DORIS B TALLENT
EUNICE H CARPENTER & CATHY J SNYDER
GAIL REDDICK BARKER
DANIEL A DAVIS
JEFFREY A LITTLE
TAMMY S SCHRONCE
RACHEL MANN MOORE
FRANKLIN CHARLES & MARSHA B MORROW
EDITH C MAY HEIRS
DOROTHY MAY BROWN
THOMAS GERALD & TERI LYN FLOWERS

PARCEL
136566
136565
136557
136558
135132
135137
135141
135134
135133
135138
135129
135128
135127
135108

DEED
2133-708
2411-777
1891-116
1454-363
4963-030
4514-2463
4684-697
4975-2031
4693-2468
2286-634
2371-490
0010-551
1432-802
4467-1512

NOTE: PROPERTY INFORMATION BASED ON GASTON COUNTY GIS

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
ZONING
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
C-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 150 300 600

1 inch = 300 ft.

NC GRID (NAD83)

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

68' OVERHEAD
POWER EASEMENT

SOUTH FORK CATAWBA RIVER

SO
U

TH FO
RK CATAW

BA RIVER

AMENITY
AREA

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

SWMF
± 1.02 AC

SWMF
± 0.94 AC

SWMF
± 2.55 AC

SWMF
± 1.41 AC

SWMF
± 0.64 AC

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

SITE DATA

TAX PARCEL NUMBER:

PROPOSED ZONING:

136564, 210660 + PORTIONS OF 135144,
202166, 202774
SFR-4 (CZ)

PREPARED BY:
MCADAMS

3430 TORINGDON WAY, SUITE 110
CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
AREA:
PERIMETER BUFFER:
PUBLIC ROW WIDTH:
SINGLE FAMILY (60' x 130')
DENSITY:
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED (5% OF SITE AREA):

NATURAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:
STORMWATER DETENTION PROVIDED:
TREE SAVE REQUIRED (6% OF EXISTING TREES):
TREE SAVE PROVIDED:

± 226.29 AC
20'
60'
422 LOTS
1.86 LOTS/AC
11.31 AC

7.71 AC
± 9.16 AC
13.58 AC
13.58 AC

NOTES:
1. ALL INTERNAL STREETS WILL BE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS

20' AT&T EASEMENT

20' AT&T
EASEMENT

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

PHASE #
1
2
3
4
TOTAL

LOT COUNT
99
133
101
89
422

POCKET
PARK

+/- 1.0 AC TO BE SUBDIVIDED
TO ADJACENT PROPERTY
OWNER

RZ.01
REZONING PLAN

AMENITY
AREA

ROAD 'G'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'E
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'E'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'G'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'A'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'A
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'A'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'B'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'C'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'C'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'D
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

ROAD 'D'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'H'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'F
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

RO
AD 'J'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'K'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'L'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'M'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'P
'

(6
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'Q

'
(60' PUBLIC R/W

)

13
0'

 L
O

T 
DE

PT
H

60' LOT WIDTH

RIGHT-OF-WAY

5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK

TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1' = 40'

23.5' GARAGE
SETBACK

NOTE: CORNER LOTS REQUIRE A 10' SIDE
YARD SETBACK WITH AN 11.5' GARAGE
SETBACK.

PHASE 1
± 55.12 AC

PHASE 2
± 59.99 AC

PHASE 3
± 47.38 AC

PHASE 4
± 63.80 AC

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

7,800 SF MIN. LOT

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: 3.60 AC

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF
TERMINATING VISTA.
PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

SWMF
± 1.74 AC

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

CREEK CROSSING B

CREEK CROSSING A

IN THE EVENT POTENTIAL
PHASE 4 CONNECTION.
REFER TO DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS

POCKET PARK

PROPERTY LINE TO BE VACATED
THROUGH SUBDIVISION PROCESS

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PROPOSED PUMP STATION. FINAL
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED
DURING CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

43



CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:2
0:

52
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

RZ.02
REZONING NOTES

Pulte Lowell
Development Standards

July 12, 2022
Spencer Mountain Rezoning Petition

Post Planning Committee

Post Adjusted Site Boundary

Site Development Data:

--Acreage: ± 226.29 acres
--Tax Parcel #:  136564 and 210660
--Tax Parcel #:  135144, 202166, and 202774 NOTE WHICH ARE “A PORTION OF”
--Existing Zoning:  SFR-3 and SFR-2
--Proposed Zoning:  SFR-4(CZ)
--Existing Uses:  Vacant
--Proposed Uses:  Up to 422 single-family detached dwelling units as allowed by right and under
prescribed conditions in the SFR-4 zoning district as further described in Section 2 below.

1. General Provisions:

a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of  the Rezoning Plan associated with the
Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the development of  up to four hundred
and twenty-two (422) single-family detached dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.
The proposed development will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain
Road (the "Site").

b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance.  Development of  the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan as
well as the applicable provisions of  the Lowell Land Development Code (the “Ordinance”).  Unless the
Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for
the SFR-4 zoning classification shall govern.

c. Graphics and Alterations.  The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and buildings,
building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and site elements (collectively the
“Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the
provisions of  these Development Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of  the
Development/Site Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of  the
Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by the Rezoning Plan
will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the Ordinance. 

Since the project has not undergone the design development and construction phases, it is intended that
this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic
representations of  the Development/Site Elements.  Therefore, there may be instances where minor
modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance.  These instances would include changes to graphics if
they are minor and don't materially change the overall design intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The Planning Director will determine if  such minor modifications are allowed and if  it is determined that
the alteration does not meet the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in
each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the Ordinance.

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas:

a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family detached
dwelling units to the west side of  the ultimate drainage line.  The ultimate drainage line location will be
determined as part of the overall grading plan during the land development process.

3. Transportation and Connectivity:

a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if  required by Ordinance.  Any required
improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by NCDOT.

b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, Creek
Crossing B may be eliminated.

c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the
most recently adopted version of  the North Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines
subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval.

4. Architectural Standards:

a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a combination of
portions of  the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, synthetic stone, cementitious fiber
board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative block and/or wood.

b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be used on
windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof  overhang elements, handrails/railings, and/or other
miscellaneous trim elements.

c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal.

d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments:

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of  the garage door or one large wall sconce above the
garage door,

ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door,

iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and

vi. windows

5. Environmental Features and Open Space:

a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality requirements as set forth in
the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code.

b. The location of  the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact size and
location of  these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, product allocation, and/or other
site plan elements.  The overall layout and unit count may be altered as a result of  final stormwater
locations.

c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction stormwater containment
measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters.

ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed.

iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) capable of

treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater runoff  from pre-development and post
development conditions for the one-year, twenty-four-hour storm.

iv. SCMs capable of  limiting peak flow from the site at each point of  discharge to the predevelopment
conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour storm events

v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used.

vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm.

vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly explained to the
responsible party.

viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff  should be minimized through site design and Low
Impact Development (LID) measures such as downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green
roofs, planter boxes, etc.

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject to the provisions
set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water bodies.

ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges.

iii. Retention basins capable of  conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall sized to maximize
drawdown time.

iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after grading.

v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'.

vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site.

vii. Implementation of  devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity during construction and
provide alerts to regulators and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels.

viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers and owners.

ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of  any downstream coves before and after construction to
document off-site sedimentation.

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the Site.

f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as follows:

i.  One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J.

ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road.

The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the permitting process.  It is
understood the easements may be used to provide access to future amenities to be provided by others.

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots west of  the drainage
divide line.  Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's association.  Land disturbance is
permitted within the buffer during development of the site.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of  three license plate readers to be operated for a minimum
of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City Manager.  The license plate readers shall be installed
at the primary entrance for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective phase.

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan:

a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these Development Standards) may be
applied for by the then Owner or Owners of  the applicable portion of  the Site affected by such
amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application:

a. If  this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the development of  the Site
imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be
binding upon and insure to the benefit of  the Petitioner and subsequent owners of  the Site and their
respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest or assigns.

44



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3-2024 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LOWELL 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 

OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2021 the Lowell City Council adopted the 
Lowell Development Ordinance, also known as the LDO, and the City 
of Lowell Zoning Map to promote the health, safety, and general welfare 
of the residents of the City of Lowell by regulating the use of buildings 
and land, land development, planned developments, manufactured 
housing, development of subdivisions, signs off-street parking and 
loading, planting yards, watershed protection, flood damage protection, 
and/or undertaking other consistent action as provided in the Ordinance; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 5 of the LDO allows the Lowell City Council 
to amend, supplement, modify, or repeal any provision of the 
Ordinance or to amend the Zoning Map pursuant to the procedures 
established by N.C. Gen. Stat. §160D-601 through §160D-605 and 
upon a finding of compliance with the City of Lowell Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2024, the Lowell Planning Board unanimously voted to 
approve a Development Agreement between LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC and the 
City of Lowell. Major Subdivisions proposing the development of new street 
infrastructure are required to enter into a Development Agreement in accordance 
with LDO Section 7.15 of Article 7. 

WHEREAS, the Lowell City Council, after conducting a public 
hearing which was duly advertised as provided by the foregoing 
statutes, has found this Amendment to the City of Lowell LDO be in 
the public interest, in furtherance of the general purpose and 
objectives of the LDO, and in compliance with the City of Lowell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

45



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of 
Lowell, North Carolina that: 
 

Passed and Approved this _________ day of June, 2024. 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________   

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

 

_____________________________ 

Larry Simonds, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

    

 
 

46



  

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Drawn by and mail to: 

 

St. Amand & Efird PLLC (JSE)  

Lincoln at Belle Grove  

3315 Springbank Lane, Suite 308   

Charlotte, North Carolina 28226 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GASTON 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), is made and entered into this 

____ day of ____, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and among LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company (“Lennar” or “Developer”), and THE CITY OF LOWELL, 

a municipal corporation, created, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 

State of North Carolina (the “City”).  Developer, and the City may be collectively referred to 

herein as “Parties.” 

AUTHORITY 

 

The North Carolina General Statutes ("N.C.G.S.") §l60D-l001 through §l60D-1012, as it 

exists on the Effective Date of this Agreement (the "Development Agreement Act"), enables 

cities and towns to enter into binding development agreements with entities intending to develop 

real property under certain conditions set forth in the Development Agreement Act.  

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001(a)(l) provides that "Development projects often occur in multiple 

phases over several years, requiring a long-term commitment of both public and private resources." 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001(a)(3) provides that "Because of their scale and duration, such 

projects often require careful coordination of public capital facilities planning, financing, and 

construction schedules and phasing of the private development." 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 (a)(4) provides that "Such projects involve substantial commitments 

of private capital, which developers are usually unwilling to risk without sufficient assurances that 

development standards will remain stable through the extended period of development." 

47



  

2 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 (a)(6) provides that "To better structure and manage development 

approvals for such developments and ensure their proper integration into local capital facilities 

programs, local governments need flexibility to negotiate such developments." 

In view of the foregoing, N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 through §160D-1012 expressly authorize 

local governments and agencies to enter into development agreements with developers pursuant 

to the procedures and requirements of N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 through 1012. 

In addition to the authority under the N.C.G.S, Sections 7.15-1 through 7.15-4 the Lowell 

Development Ordinance as adopted on May 11, 2021 (the “LDO”) authorize and require the City 

to enter into development agreement for any development project (i) that will be classified as 

Traditional Neighborhood Development Overlay (TNDO) District, Main Street (MS) District, and 

Mixed Use (MU-1 and MU-2) District or (ii) Major Subdivisions in any district where new street 

infrastructure will be developed. 

Section 7.15-2 of the LDO sets forth the contents of any development agreement entered 

into the by the City, in addition to any requirements under the N.C.G.S., including the time period 

for completion, the description of the property subject to the development agreement, all terms 

and conditions for development that differ from the LDO, and the delivery date of public facilities. 

The City on April 13, 2021 adopted its comprehensive land use plan (the “CUP”) to 

promote orderly growth within the City. 

In addition to the CUP, on August 10, 2021 and later amended on March 14, 2023, the City 

adopted its policy for managing utility allocations and extensions to establish sound policy for the 

management of water and sewer capacity (the “Utility Allocation Process”), the terms of which 

are attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit E. 

In addition to any force of law conferred upon this Agreement by North Carolina law 

related to local governments, the terms of this Agreement are also contractual in nature, are a result 

of good and valuable consideration and mutual covenants, and may be enforced as contractual 

terms. 

W I T N E S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire from 

Belmont Land and Investment Company, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company 

(“BLIC”) that certain real property located in Gaston County, North Carolina as more particularly 

described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”).  Following Developer’s acquisition of 

the Property, Developer intends to develop the Property into a single-family residential community 

(the “Intended Development”), subject to Developer’s receipt of all required permits and 

approvals from applicable governmental authorities (collectively, the “Approvals”). 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned CZ (Conditional Zoning) and subject to those Zoning 

Conditions set forth in RZ22-03 which conditions were approved by the City Council for the City 

of Lowell following a public hearing on April 12, 2022, and which, by the terms of the Conditional 

Zoning Approval, are binding upon and insure to the benefit of the Petitioner and subsequent 

owners of the Site and their respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in 

48



  

3 

interest or assigns. The Conditions of Approval in connection with the Conditional Zoning are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C.  

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Intended Development in phases (each a 

“Phase” and collectively the “Phases”) according to the development schedule attached hereto as 

Exhibit B. 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct an amenity center to serve the Intended Development (hereinafter, the “Amenity 

Center”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct a landscape buffer around the Intended Development as required by the LDO 

(hereinafter, the “Landscape Buffers”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct stormwater control measures within the Intended Development as required by the 

LDO (hereinafter, the “SCMs”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals for Phase 1 (the “Phase 1 Approvals”) 

Developer has agreed to plan, engineer and construct a waterline extension along Lowell Spencer 

Mountain Road ((hereinafter, the “Phase 1-3 Waterline”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals for Phase 4 (the “Phase 4 Approvals”), 

Developer has agreed to plan, engineer and construct a waterline to serve Phase 4 which will create 

a connecting loop of the City’s water main system (hereinafter, the “Phase 4 Waterline”). 

WHEREAS, the Phase 4 Waterline requires an easement from the adjacent property 

owner, Gaston County (herein the “County”) for the development and installation of the same. 

WHEREAS, the Phase 4 Waterline requires the County grant Developer an easement for 

to allow for the extension of an existing waterline, currently located down Lowell Spencer 

Mountain Road (the “Existing City Waterline”) through Gaston County PID # 148012, 

commonly known as “George Poston Park.” 

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to grant Developer the County Waterline Easement 

(as defined herein) as necessary for Developer to extend the Existing City Waterline, through the 

“George Poston Park” in exchange for providing a metered connection to any waterline extended 

upon the property of the County. 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct a trail within an easement for access to the Carolina Thread Trail (the “Trail”) within 

the Intended Development (hereinafter, the “Trail and Trail Easement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 

contained herein, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the later of (i) the date on 

which this Agreement is executed by the City and Developer or (ii) Developer’s acquisition of the 

49



  

4 

Property (the “Commencement Date”), and shall terminate on the date which is six (6) years 

thereafter (the “Term”).  Notwithstanding such termination date, provided that the Developer is 

not in default of this Agreement, Developer has pursued the Intended Development, and the 

Intended Development has not been completed, at the conclusion of five years from the 

Commencement Date the termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for 

one (1) additional five (5) year term.  At the conclusion of the initial five (5) year extension of the 

Term, provided that the Developer is not in default of this Agreement, Developer has pursued 

development of the Property, and the Intended Development has not been completed, the 

termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for a second and final 

additional five (5) year term. 

2. Development Schedule.  The Property shall be developed in accordance with the 

development schedule, attached as Exhibit “B” (the “Development Schedule”). Developer shall 

keep the City informed of its progress with respect to the Development Schedule as a part of the 

inspection process set forth in Section 21 below.   Pursuant to the Development Agreement Act, 

the failure of the Developer to meet the development schedule shall not, in and of itself, constitute 

a material breach of this Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the Development Schedule 

shall be judged by the totality of circumstances, including but not limited Force Majeure (as 

defined herein), and the Developer’s good faith efforts made to attain compliance with the 

Development Schedule. As further provided in the Development Agreement Act, if the Developer 

requests a modification of the dates set forth in the development agreement and is able to 

demonstrate that there is good cause to modify those dates, such modification shall not be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed by the City. 

3. Construction of the Amenity Center.  Following Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall complete the Amenity 

Center which shall include: (i) a pool and clubhouse and (ii) any required environment permits to 

complete the project (collectively, the “Amenity Center Improvements”). The construction of 

the Amenity Center Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in 

accordance with the Rezoning Plan (the “Amenity Plans”) as prepared by Developer’s project 

engineer (“Project Engineer”).  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this 

Agreement, pursue the substantial completion of the Amenity Center Improvements prior to that 

date which is the later  of (i) the date on which the two hundred fiftieth (250th) certificate of 

occupancy (“CO”) is issued for the Intended Development or (ii) the date on which the first CO is 

issued for Phase 4(the “Amenity Completion Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the 

Amenity Center Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the 

certification of substantial completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are 

substantially complete in accordance with the Amenity Plans.  

4. Installation of Landscape Buffers.  Following Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall install Landscape 

Buffers around the Property which shall include: (i) code required plantings, (ii) any required 

environmental permits to complete the same, and (iii) any related rezoning conditions 

(collectively, the “Landscape Buffer Improvements”). The installation of the Landscape Buffer 

Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in accordance with the Rezoning 

Plan, (the “Buffer Plans”) as prepared by the Project Engineer and approved/stamped by City 

Staff.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement, complete the 

Landscape Buffer Improvements prior to that date on which the final CO is issued for the 

50



  

5 

respective Phase in which the Landscape Buffer Improvements are located (the “Buffer 

Completion Deadline”).  The completion of the Landscape Buffer Improvements shall be 

evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of completion from the Project 

Engineer, certifying that the same are complete in accordance with the Buffer Plans. Following 

completion of the Landscape Buffer Improvements, and inspection by the City to confirm 

compliance with the Lowell Development Ordinance (“LDO”)and all conditions of the 

Conditional Zoning Approval, Developer shall be permitted in accordance with the rezoning 

conditions and the LDO (see open space requirements and Article 2) to convey its rights and 

obligations for the maintenance of the Landscape Buffer Improvements to a property owners 

association established for the ownership, maintenance, and upkeep of common area facilities 

located on the Property (the “Property Owners Association”). Upon such conveyance or 

designation, all duties and obligations of Developer hereunder shall transfer to the Property 

Owners Association and Developer shall be released from the rights, duties and obligations 

assigned immediately upon such assignment. 

5. Construction of Stormwater Control Measures. Following Developer’s acquisition 

of the Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall install SCMs 

around the Property which shall include: (i) those stormwater control measures as designed and 

approved on the construction drawings for each Phase of the Intended Development (ii) any 

required environment permits to complete the same (collectively, the “SCM Improvements”). 

The installation of the SCM Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in 

accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ Requirements (the “SCM Plans”) as prepared by 

the Project Engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement, pursue 

the substantial completion of the SCM Improvements prior to that date on which is the later of (i) 

six  (6) months following the issuance of the final CO for the respective Phase in which the SCM 

Improvements are located  or (ii) six (6) months following the issuance of the final CO for the 

respective drainage area in which the SCM Improvements are located (the “SCM Completion 

Deadline”),The substantial completion of the SCM Improvements shall be evidenced by 

Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of substantial completion from the Project 

Engineer, certifying that the same are substantially complete in accordance with the SCM Plans. 

Following completion of the city/plan approved SCM Improvements, Developer shall be 

permitted, in compliance with in compliance with the LDO Article 19to convey its rights and 

obligations for the maintenance of the SCM Improvements to a Property Owners Association,  

provided that prior to the date of Substantial Completion, SCM’s used as erosion and sediment 

control measures during construction shall be properly maintained in accordance with the issued 

erosion control permit until successfully converted to the permanent SCM facility.   An Operation 

and Maintenance Agreement for each SCM shall be recorded with the final plat for each phase of 

the development and  completed prior to the Developer’s conveyance of its rights and obligations 

for maintenance of the SCM Improvements.  Upon such conveyance or designation, all duties and 

obligations of Developer hereunder shall transfer to the Property Owners Association and 

Developer shall be released from the rights, duties and obligations assigned immediately upon 

such assignment. 

6. The Developer agrees to use good faith efforts to procure all offsite easements from 

the owners of Gaston County Parcel IDs# 136566, 136565, 136563, 136562, 136561, 136560, 

136558, 136557 and 136559 as necessary for the installation of the utilities, including waterline 

extension through “George Poston Park” water main and force main along Lowell Spencer 

Mountain Road to serve the Intended Development (collectively, the “Offsite Easements”). In the 

51



  

6 

event that Developer successfully acquires all Offsite Easements, Developer shall notify the City 

in writing of the same (each an "Easement Acquisition Notice"). In the event that the Developer 

is unable to obtain any of the Offsite Easements within forty-five (45) days following recording of 

this Agreement (the “Offsite Easement Deadline”) in the Office of the Gaston County Register 

of Deeds, the Developer shall notify the City in writing of the same (each an "Offsite Easement 

Notice").  

7. Construction of Waterline Phase 1; Phase 4 Waterline; Extension of Utilities. 

Following Developer’s acquisition of the Property and in connection with the development of 

Phase 1, Developer shall complete the following improvements: installation of approximately 

6215 linear feet of 12” waterline along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, as shown on Exhibit “G” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Phase 1-3 Waterline Improvements”) to the 

northernmost end of the property / development boundary. In connection with the development of 

Phase 4, only in the event that a capacity and flow review results in a determination that an 

extension of the existing waterline through George Poston Park is necessary, Developer shall 

complete the following improvements: (i) installation of 1,780 linear feet of 12” waterline along 

through George Poston Park, as shown on Exhibit “G” in accordance with Section 7(a), and (iii) 

any other encroachment or third party agreements as necessary along with any required 

environment permits to complete the Phase 4 Waterline ( the “Phase 4 Waterline 

Improvements”)(the Phase 1-3 Waterline Improvements and Phase 4 Waterline Improvements 

collectively and individually, where applicable, are the “Waterline Improvements”). The 

construction of the Waterline Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in 

accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ Requirements (the “Waterline Plans”).  Developer 

shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement and the City’s Utility Extension Policy, 

pursue the substantial completion of the Waterline Improvements, including acquisition of the 

County Easement, if required, prior to the later of (i) that date on which the first (1st) CO is issued 

for each Phase and (ii) ___ months following the approval of the Waterline Plans (the “Waterline 

Phase Completion Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the Waterline Improvements shall 

be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to Town of the certification of substantial completion and 

Final Approval from the NCDEQ Public Water Supply Section and from the Project Engineer, 

certifying that the same are substantially complete in accordance with the Plans. 

a. Subject to a capacity and flow determination regarding the necessity of the 

extension of the waterline through George Poston Park, Developer has entered into a 

separate agreement pursuant to which, on or before December 31, 2025, the County shall 

grant and convey to Developer an easement over and upon the property of the County, 

including George Poston Park,  as necessary for the construction of utilities, including 

without limitation, multiple waterlines, as well as to tie into Existing City Waterline, 

together with all necessary temporary construction and grading easements to complete the 

utility work, as more particularly shown and depicted on that drawing entitled “County 

Waterline Easement” attached hereto as Exhibit D  as necessary for the  installation of the 

extension of the Existing City Waterline through George Poston Park. and, as necessary 

for Developer to connect into the Existing City Waterline, as extended (collectively, the 

“County Waterline Easement”). In any event, the County Waterline Easement shall be 

recorded prior to Developer’s commencement of Phase 4, and shall provide Developer the 

right to complete the extension of the Existing City Waterline and construction of a sight 

triangle. Furthermore the County Waterline Easements shall provide that the Developer 

shall have the option to dedicate the same for maintenance to the City, upon the completion 

52



  

7 

of all Waterline Improvements contemplated therein. In the event that a determination is 

made regarding Phase 4 capacity, pressure and flow, such that the extension of waterline 

through George Poston Park not necessary or needed to provide sufficient capacity to the 

Project, Developer shall have no obligation with regard to this Section 7(a) or to install any 

waterline through George Poston Park.  

8. Construction of Force Main. Following Developer’s acquisition of the Property and 

in connection with the development of the Phases, Developer shall complete the following 

improvements: installation of approximately 6,150 linear feet of 4” force main along Lowell 

Spencer Mountain Road (collectively, the “Force Main Improvements”). The construction of the 

Force Main Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in accordance with 

the City, County and NCDEQ Requirements (the “Force Main Plans”) as the Project Engineer.  

Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement and the City’s Utility 

Extension Policy, pursue the substantial completion of the Force Main Improvements, prior to the 

later of (i) that date on which the first (1st) CO is issued for Phase 1 (the “Force Main Completion 

Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the Force Main Improvements shall be evidenced by 

Developer’s delivery to Town of the certification of substantial completion and Final Approval 

from NCDEQ and from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are substantially complete 

in accordance with the Plans. 

9. Grant of Trail Easement; Trail Access Point Construction. Following Developer’s 

acquisition of the Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall design 

and plan a location for neighborhood access to the Trail as part of the Construction Drawings), 

including having the Trail Easement surveyed or platted (the “Trail Survey”). Developer shall 

deliver a copy of the Trail Survey to the City for City’s written approval and consent to the 

location, and City shall approve the location of the Trail Easement within ten (10) days of receipt 

of the Trail Survey, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Following approval, the  

Parties shall enter into a written easement for the Trail Easement in the location as approved on 

the Trail Survey, and the Developer shall proceed with construction of all neighborhood 

connectors as shown on the Construction Drawings.  The Parties agree that the Trail Easement 

shall be granted prior to that date on which the fiftieth (50th) CO is issued for the applicable Phase 

in which the Trail and Trail Easement are located (the “Easement Grant Deadline”). The trail 

access points will be constructed as part of the development of Phases 2 and 4.  The completion of 

the Trail Easement shall be evidenced by Developer’s recording of an easement agreement in the 

Office of the Register of Deeds for Gaston County in favor of the City for access to the Trail. The 

completion of the Trail Access Construction Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s 

delivery to City of the certification of completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the 

same are complete in accordance with the Construction Drawings, and inspection by the City to 

confirm compliance with the LDO and all conditions of the Conditional Zoning Approval. 

10. Provision of Potable Water by City. Subject to the Preliminary Capacity Assurance 

Review (“PCAR”), Full Capacity Assurance Review (“FCAR”) and all applicable fees paid in 

association with the granting of the utility allocation with the required deadline stated in the City 

of Lowell Policy for Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions, as those procedures are described 

and detailed in the Utility Allocation Process, along with the terms and conditions of the City of 

Lowell Utility Extension Policy, potable water will be supplied to the Property by the City upon 

request of the Developer and subject to the provisions of this Section 10. Developer will construct 

or cause to be constructed at Developer’s cost all necessary water service infrastructure to, from, 

53



  

8 

and within the Property per City specifications which will be maintained by City or the provider. 

The Developer shall be responsible for maintaining all related internal water infrastructure until 

offered to, and accepted by, the City for public ownership and maintenance. To the extent 

easements are required to connect the improvements within the Property to the City’s existing 

improvements, the Developer will be responsible for providing such easements.  Upon final 

inspection and acceptance by the City and Final Approval from the NCDEQ Public Water Supply 

Section, the Developer shall provide a twelve (12) month warranty period for all water 

infrastructure constructed to serve the Intended Development. 

11. Provision of Sewage Treatment and Disposal by City. Subject to the PCAR and 

FCAR, as those procedures are described and detailed in the Utility Allocation Process (attached 

hereto as Exhibit E), sewage treatment and disposal will be supplied to the Property by the City 

upon request of the Developer and subject to the provisions of this Section 11. Developer will 

construct or cause to be constructed at Developer’s cost all necessary sewer service infrastructure 

to, from, and within the Property per City specifications and the terms and conditions of the City 

of Lowell Utility Extension Policy, which infrastructure will be maintained by it or the provider. 

The Developer shall be responsible for maintaining all related internal sewer infrastructure until 

offered to, and accepted by, the City for public ownership and maintenance. To the extent 

easements are required to connect the improvements within the Property to the City’s existing 

improvements, the Developer will be responsible for providing such easements.  Upon final 

inspection and acceptance by the City and Final Approval from the NCDEQ, the Developer shall 

provide a twelve (12) month warranty period for all sewer infrastructure constructed to serve the 

Intended Development. 

The City covenants that it has, will have, will construct or will acquire sufficient additional 

capacity so as to meet all reasonably foreseeable needs, of current and projected future customers 

of the sewage system, as reflected in or determined from the information provided by the 

Developer in its PCAR Application of May 23, 2023, as approved by the City Council on July 11, 

2023. 

 

12. System Development Fees/. Within forty-five (45) days following FCAR approval 

Developer shall pay all “System Development Fees” imposed by the City at the time of this 

Agreement, or following the date of this Agreement, provided such fees are applied consistently 

and in the same manner to all similarly-situated property within the City limits. In particular, the 

Developer agrees that it shall not seek any exemptions for any portions of the Property from any 

current development impact fees (so long as such development impact fees are applied consistently 

and in the same manner to all similarly-situated property within the City limits) for any reason. 

13. The delivery date of such public facilities as may be provided by Sections 8 and 9 

above shall be conditioned on the successful performance by the Developer in implementing the 

proposed development and compliance with all terms of this Agreement. 

14. Transportation Improvements.   The Developer shall (a) improve Lowell Spencer 

Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the most recently adopted version of the North 

Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines, subject to the recommendations of the 

Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval; and (b) make any required improvements to 

Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as indicated by the TIA and required or approved by NC 

54



  

9 

DOT. The construction of the Transportation Improvements shall occur in accordance with 

drawing and plans approved by NC DOT (the “Transportation Construction Documents”) as 

prepared by Developer’s project engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of 

this Agreement, pursue the substantial completion of the Transportation Improvements in 

accordance with the time frames set forth of Exhibit “F”, attached hereto an incorporated by 

reference herein (each a “Transportation Improvements Completion Deadline” and 

collectively, the “Transportation Improvements Completion Deadlines”). Completion of the 

Transportation Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the 

certification of completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are complete in 

accordance with the Transportation Construction Documents, and the completion of inspection 

and approval by NC DOT. 

15. Sidewalks. As a public benefit, Developer shall install a sidewalk, as required by 

the LDO in accordance with City standards, along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road in accordance 

with the approved site plan. All Sidewalks installed along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, outside 

of the North Carolina Department of Transportation maintained portion, shall be maintained by 

the City, after inspection and approval by the City Engineer. In the event that additional Sidewalks 

are required to be installed within the margin of or within the North Carolina Department of 

Transportation maintained portion of Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, shall be dedicated to the 

City for maintenance, after inspection and approval by the City Engineer. 

16. Terms and Conditions that differ from the provisions of the LDO, provide however, 

that any plans or construction drawings once approved by the City shall be deemed to have met all 

applicable requirements, provided that all conditions of approval as contained in the Conditional 

Rezoning and set forth in RZ22-03 shall remain in effect and may not be altered without the 

approval of the City Council. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement 

and the Conditional Zoning Approval, the Conditional Zoning Approval shall control.  

17. Only the uses appearing in Table 8.1 of the Lowell Development Ordinance (LDO) 

shall be allowed in the “Single Family Residential 4 District Conditional Zoning” (SFR-4/CZ) 

created herein. 

a. Minimum lot widths shall not be less than sixty linear feet (60’) in width as 

measured at the minimum required setback line per LDO Art./Sect. 8.4-2.  This 

condition exceeds the minimum requirement of the LDO art. Sect. 8.4-2. 

b. All applicable standards and specifications of the LDO shall be met. 

c. Stormwater conditions for design and post construction stormwater 

containment on this project: 

i. 200 Feet or 100-year Floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface 

waters. 

ii. For all projects with >10% BAU, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) 

capable of treating the greater of 1.5” or the difference in stormwater 

runoff from pre-development and post-development conditions for the 

1-yr, 24-hour storm. 

55



  

10 

iii. SCMs capable of limiting peak flow from the site at each point of 

discharge to the predevelopment conditions for the 1- and 10-yr, 24hr 

storm events.   

iv. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) 

used.   

v. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-yr design storm.   

vi. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans shall be clearly 

explained to the responsible party.   

vii. Developer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize BUA 

and runoff through site design and Low Impact Development (LID) 

measures such as downspout disconnection. 

d. Stormwater conditions for active construction: 

i. The use of high hazard and/or double row silt fencing along surface 

water bodies. 

ii. Retention basins capable of conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall 

sized to maximize drawdown time. 

iii. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains, at the top of slopes 

with a greater than 3:1 gradient or greater than 10’ elevation change,  

per the approved Erosion Control Plan within 7 days after grading. 

iv. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10’,in height, 

at a gradient greater than 3:1. 

v. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site. 

vi. Implementation of devices on the two main tributaries running through 

the property before they enter the South Fork River to numerically 

monitor turbidity during construction and provide alerts to regulators 

and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels. 

vii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the 

designers and owners, as needed.    

e. The general schematic development plan sheet RZ.01 appearing below 

establishes general layout and connectivity patterns. 

18. Cooperation.  The City agrees to cooperate with Developer in connection with the 

construction of the Improvements, including without limitation, including executing, within three 

(3) business days after Developer’s written request therefor, any and all documents, easements, 

encroachment agreements, instruments and plats, which are required to be executed by the City. 

56



  

11 

19. Costs and Bond.  Developer shall be solely responsible for the expenses to construct 

the Improvements, which shall include all items defined by this Agreement as “Improvements” 

including but not limited to the Trail Improvement and the Landscape Buffer Improvements. As 

guaranty and security for performance of its obligations under this Agreement, Developer shall 

deposit with the City a bond or letter of credit covering the estimated cost of the Improvements 

(“Bond”) in accordance with LDO Section 16.1-9 This Bond shall be posted with the City within 

five (5) business days of the date on which the first plat of the Intended Development is recorded. 

The Bond may be used to pay for completion of the Improvements as the sole and exclusive 

remedy of the City in the event of default by Developer under this Agreement.  The Bond shall 

auto-renew yearly. 

20. Engineers, Contractors and Consultants.  The parties acknowledge that Developer 

shall have the right to engage, consult and otherwise use engineers, contractors and consultants, 

including but not limited to the Project Engineer, without the consent or release of the City, in 

order to complete the Improvements.  

21. Development Standards.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, City 

acknowledges and agrees that Developer’s completion of the Improvements in accordance with 

the Plans, shall be subject to all faults and defects and without any expressed, implied or statutory 

warranties or representations of any kind, and Developer hereby disclaims any such 

representations and warranties.   

22. Notices. All notices required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be 

in writing and either (a) hand-delivered, (b) sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, (c) sent 

via FedEx or similar overnight service, or (d) sent via electronic mail, so long as notice is also 

provided through either method (a), (b) or (c) as herein described.  All notices shall be addressed 

to the party being noticed, and shall be deemed to have been given (i) when delivered, if by hand 

delivery, (ii) three (3) business days after deposit in a U.S. Post Office or official letter box, if sent 

by certified mail, (iii) one (1) business day after timely deposited in a FedEx or similar overnight 

service depository, or (iv) upon transmission by sender if sent via electronic mail. All notices shall 

be delivered or sent prepaid for the specified service by the party giving notice, and shall be 

addressed as follows: 

CITY: City of Lowell 

 ____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

 

57



  

12 

 

LENNAR:  LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC 

6701 Carmel Road, Suite 425 

Charlotte, NC 28226  

Attn: Mark Henninger 

E-Mail: mark.henninger@lennar.com  

 

Copy To: LENNAR CORPORATION  

700 NW 107th Avenue - 4th Floor 

Miami, Florida 33172 

Attn: General Counsel 

E-Mail: mark.sustana@lennar.com  

 

Copy To: ST. AMAND & EFIRD, PLLC 

3315 Springbank Lane, Suite 308 

Charlotte, NC  28226 

Telephone No.:  (704) 837-2670 

Attn:  Scott Efird 

E-Mail:  sefird@stamand-efird.com  

23. Other Approvals. To the extent that any county or other local government, state or 

federal approvals are required in connection with the Improvements, City shall use reasonable 

efforts to assist Developer in obtaining such approvals. 

24. Inspection, Default and Remedies. During the Term of this Agreement the City 

shall have the right to enter the premises in order to conduct reasonable inspections, including 

inspections necessary to confirm or assure Developer’s compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement. In addition to any other remedies provided herein, the City shall have the right to 

withhold permit or other approvals in the event of material noncompliance with the terms of this 

Agreement. City shall take no action with respect to a default by Developer until the non-defaulting 

party has given written notice to the defaulting party and the defaulting party has failed to cure the 

default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice (the “Cure Period”). 

25. Relationship of the Parties. This Agreement creates a contractual relationship 

between the parties. This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create the relationship 

of master/servant, principal/agent, association, partnership, joint venture, or any other relationship 

where one party may be held responsible for acts of the other party. This Agreement does not 

impose any partnership obligation or liability upon either party. Further, this Agreement is not 

intended to create, nor does it create, a relationship whereby the conduct of Developer constitutes 

"state action" for any purposes. The Parties agree and acknowledge that pursuant to N.C. Gen. 

Stat. § 160D-1006(c), the City will be responsible for the overall administration of the Agreement. 

26. Acquisition Contingency. The Parties hereby acknowledge, affirm and understand 

that as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Developer has not yet acquired the Property and 

is not the record owner thereof. As a result, the Parties hereby agree, covenant, and acknowledge 

that the obligations of the Parties hereunder shall be expressly conditioned upon Developer’s 

acquisition of the Property and taking record title thereto. In the event that the purchase and sale 

agreement is terminated and Developer does not acquire the Property, then Developer shall deliver 

58



  

13 

written notice to the County the City and upon delivery thereof, this Agreement shall automatically 

terminate and the Parties shall be released from any obligations hereunder and any Bond paid shall 

be promptly returned to Developer.  

27. Official Act. This Agreement constitutes an official act of the City and has been 

adopted following procedures required by applicable law. 

28. Enforceability. The unenforceability or invalidity of any particular provision of this 

Agreement, in whole or in part, shall not affect the enforceability and validity of the remainder of 

this Agreement. 

29. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with other writings signed by the 

parties expressly stated to be supplementary hereto and together with any instruments to be 

executed and delivered pursuant to this Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties and supersedes all prior understandings and writing, and may be changed only by a writing 

signed by the parties hereto. 

30. Applicable Laws. This Agreement shall be governed and construed under the laws 

of the State of North Carolina. 

31. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall run with title to the Property and shall be 

binding on all persons having any right, title or interest therein.  

32. Estoppel. Each party agrees, from time to time, within thirty (30) days after request 

of another party, to deliver to the requesting party or such party's designee, an estoppel certificate 

stating that this Agreement is in full force and effect, the unexpired term of this Agreement, and 

whether or not, to such party's knowledge, there are any existing defaults or matters which, with 

the passage of time, would become defaults under this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that 

the party's obligations to furnish such estoppel certificates in a timely fashion is a material 

inducement for execution of this Agreement. 

33. Assignment. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the Parties agree that Developer, or any 

subsequent developer, shall be entitled to assign and delegate the rights and duties of the Developer 

under this Agreement (the “Developer Rights”) to a subsequent purchaser of all or any portion of 

the Property. Such assignment shall be evidenced by a recorded assignment and assumption of 

development rights (the “Assignment of Developer Rights”), executed by the Parties and the 

subsequent purchaser, and shall be effective as the date of recording in the Office of the Register 

of Deeds for Gaston County. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any such assignment or 

transfer by the developer of the Developer Rights shall be non-recourse as to the assigning 

developer. From and after the effective date of the Assignment of Developer Rights, the assigning 

developer shall be released from all responsibility or liability under this Agreement. 

34. Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision herein contained 

shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof, or of any other covenant 

or provision herein contained.  No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act shall 

be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligation or act. 

35. Severability.  If any term, covenant or condition of this Easement Agreement or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be illegal, invalid or 

59



  

14 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Easement Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall 

be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by law. 

36. Force Majeure.  In the event that the performance by either party of any of its 

obligations hereunder is delayed by natural disaster, adverse weather, acts of God, terrorist activity, 

war, labor dispute, pandemic, epidemic, governmental delay or other matter beyond the control of 

such party, without such party’s fault or negligence, (“Force Majeure”) then the deadline for 

completion of such obligation shall be extended by a like number of days.  

 

37. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in multiple parts as 

originals or by facsimile or scanned copies of executed originals and may further be executed by 

counterpart signature pages. 

30. Recordation. Pursuant to NCGS §160D- 1011 and Section 7.15-3(F) of the LDO, 

this Agreement shall be recorded by the Developer with the Gaston County Register of Deeds 

within 14 days of the date of execution by the Developer and the City.   

60



  

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed 

and sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

By:       

Name: Mark Henninger 

Title: Vice President 

 

 

  

  
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
  
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 
 I certify that the following person personally appeared before me this day, each 
acknowledging to me that he or she voluntarily signed the foregoing document for the purpose stated 
therein and in the capacity indicated: Mark Henninger as Vice President of Lennar Carolinas, LLC. 
         

 

Date:              
 Official Signature of Notary Public 
 

  
Notary printed or typed name 

  
[OFFICIAL SEAL]     My commission expires:________________ 

 

 

61



  

16 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City caused this Agreement to be duly executed and 

sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF LOWELL, 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

BY: ______________________________ 

 

Name: ____________________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST 

 

 

BY: ______________________________ 

 

Name: ____________________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF       

 

 I, a Notary Public of such County and State, certify that _________________________ 

and ____________________ personally appeared before me this day, each acknowledging to me 

that they are the _____________________ and ___________________, of the City of Lowell, 

North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the City of Lowell, North 

Carolina, the foregoing document was signed in the City’s name by such 

_____________________, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by such 

___________________________. 

 

Date:              

 Official Signature of Notary Public 

 

  

Notary printed or typed name 

 

[OFFICIAL SEAL/STAMP]    My commission expires:________________ 

  

62



 

17 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

PROPERTY 

 

BEING ALL OF “TRACT 1” as shown on that plat entitled “SPENCER MOUNTAIN 

RECOMBINATION PLAT” prepared by The John R. McAdams Company, Inc. , dated November 

13, 2023 and recorded February 1, 2024 in Book 102, Pages 116-121, in the Office of the Register 

of Deeds for Gaston County, North Carolina. 

  

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



  

 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 

 

 
 

  

70



EXHIBIT C 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

71



 

 

 

Planning Department 

  

September 14, 2022 
 
The Pulte Group 
c/o Mellissa Oliver  
11121 Carmel Commons Blvd 
Suite 450 
Charlotte, NC  28226 
  

Dear Ms. Oliver: 

On September 14, 2022, the Lowell City Council voted to approve your request (File # RZ22-03) to 
conditionally rezone approximately 226 acres from SFR-2 & SFR-3 (Single-Family Residential 2 & 
3) to SFR-4 CZ (Single-Family Residential 4, Conditional Zoning District).  The approval is for the 
development of a single-family residential subdivision and is subject to a list of conditions and the 
Lowell Development Ordinance.  The properties are known by tax parcel identification number(s) 
13564, 210660, and portions of 135144, 202166 and 202774.  The SFR-4 CZ (Single-Family 
Residential 4, Conditional Zoning District) zoning is now effective as requested in the application. 

Next Steps – Development Agreement 

Due to the size and scope of the proposed development, this project will be subject Section 7.15 
Development Agreements. Per subsection 7.15-3(F.) The development agreement shall be recorded 

in the office of the Register of Deeds of the county in which the subject property is located within 

fourteen (14) days of execution and prior to the issuance of any development permits authorizing 

development activities to commence. Please note that this process will include a public hearing.  

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  I can be reached at 704-617-0141 or via email at 
jgates@lowellnc.com. 

 Sincerely, 

 Joe Gates 

 Joe Gates, CZO 

Planning Director 

  

enclosure 

City of Lowell 
101 W. First Street 
Lowell, North Carolina 28098 

Phone: 704-824-3518 
www.lowellnc.com 

72

https://www.lowellnc.com/documents/article-7-permits-and-procedures/
https://www.lowellnc.com/documents/article-7-permits-and-procedures/
mailto:jgates@lowellnc.com


  

  

  

  

  

cc:  Belmont Land & Investment CO 

Attn: Bill Carstarphen 

PO Box 1939 

McAdenville, NC  28101-1939 

  

Moore & Van Allen 

c/o Bridget Grant 

100 North Tryon Street 

Suite 4700 

Charlotte, NC 28202-4003 

 
 

 

73



City of Lowell Conditional Zoning # RZ22-03 Planning Department 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONDITIONAL ZONING 

RZ22-03 
 

CITY OF LOWELL 
GASTON COUNTY  

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT The Pulte Group., having applied to 

the City of Lowell to establish a Conditional Zoning designation on the property hereinafter 

described, and said zoning designation having been granted by the Lowell City Council on 

September 13, 2022 the terms of said Conditional Zoning being as follows:  

 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 
 
Location: East and west side of Lowell Spencer Mountain Rd, just north of George Poston Park. 
Street Address: Lowell Spencer Mountain Rd 
Tax Map Reference Number(s): 136564, 210660 and a portion of 135144, 202166 and 202774 

 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Zoning Classification: SFR-4 (CZ-2022-03) (Single-Family Residential 4) 
 
Conditions: 

1. General Provisions: 
a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan 
associated with the Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the 
development of up to four hundred and twenty-two (422) single-family detached 
dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan. The proposed development 
will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain Road (the 
"Site"). 
b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance. Development of the Site will be governed by the 
Rezoning Plan as well as the applicable provisions of the Lowell Land Development 
Code (the “Ordinance”). Unless the Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent 
standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for the SFR-4 zoning 
classification shall govern. 
c. Graphics and Alterations. The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and 
buildings, building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and 
site elements (collectively the “Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning 
Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the provisions of these Development 
Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of the Development/Site 
Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of the 
Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by 
the Rezoning Plan will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the 
Ordinance. Since the project has not undergone the design development and 
construction phases, it is intended that this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in 
allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic representations of the 
Development/Site Elements. Therefore, there may be instances where minor 
modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance. These instances would include 
changes to graphics if they are minor and don't materially change the overall design 
intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan. The Planning Director will determine if such 74



City of Lowell Conditional Zoning # RZ22-03 Planning Department 

minor modifications are allowed and if it is determined that the alteration does not meet 
the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in 
each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the 
Ordinance. 

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas: 
a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family 
detached dwelling units to the west side of the ultimate drainage line. The ultimate 
drainage line location will be determined as part of the overall grading plan during the 
land development process. 

3. Transportation and Connectivity: 
a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if required by Ordinance. Any 
required improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by 
NCDOT. 
b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer 
Mountain Road, Creek Crossing B may be eliminated. 
c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross 
Section per the most recently adopted version of the North Carolina Complete Streets 
Planning and Design Guidelines subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact 
Analysis and NCDOT approval. 

4. Architectural Standards: 
a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a 
combination of portions of the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, 
synthetic stone, cementitious fiber board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative 
block and/or wood. 
b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be 
used on windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof overhang elements, 
handrails/railings, and/or other miscellaneous trim elements. 
c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal. 
d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments: 

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of the garage door or one large wall 
sconce above the garage door, 
ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door, 
iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and 
vi. windows 

5. Environmental Features and Open Space: 
a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality 
requirements as set forth in the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code. 
b. The location of the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact 
size and location of these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, 
product allocation, and/or other site plan elements. The overall layout and unit count 
may be altered as a result of final stormwater locations. 
c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction 
stormwater containment measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject 
to approval by Gaston County: 

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters. 
ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed. 
iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures 
(SCMs) capable of treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater 
runoff from pre-development and post development conditions for the one-
year, twenty-four-hour storm. 
iv. SCMs capable of limiting peak flow from the site at each point of discharge 
to the predevelopment conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour 
storm events 
v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used. 
vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm. 
vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly 
explained to the responsible party. 
viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff should be minimized 
through site design and Low Impact Development (LID) measures such as 
downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green 
roofs, planter boxes, etc. 

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject 
to the provisions 75



City of Lowell Conditional Zoning # RZ22-03 Planning Department 

set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County: 
i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water 
bodies. 
ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges. 
iii. Retention basins capable of conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall 
sized to maximize drawdown time. 
iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after 
grading. 
v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'. 
vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site. 
vii. Implementation of devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity 
during construction and provide alerts to regulators and site operators when 
turbidity levels exceed action levels. 
viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers 
and owners. 
ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of any downstream coves before and 
after construction to document off-site sedimentation. 

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the 
Site. 
f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as 
follows: 

i. One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J. 
ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road. 
The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the 
permitting process. It is understood the easements may be used to provide 
access to future amenities to be provided by others. 

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots 
west of the drainage divide line. Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's 
association. Land disturbance is permitted within the buffer during development of 
the site. 
6. Miscellaneous Provisions 

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of three license plate readers to be 
operated for a minimum of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City 
Manager. The license plate readers shall be installed at the primary entrance 
for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective 
phase. 

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan: 
a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these 
Development Standards) may be applied for by the then Owner or Owners of 
the applicable portion of the Site affected by such amendment in accordance 
with the provisions of the Ordinance. 

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application: 
a. If this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the 
development of the Site imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless 
amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be 
binding upon and insure to the benefit of the Petitioner and subsequent owners 
of the Site and their respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, 
successors in interest or assigns. 

************************************************************ 
I, the petitioner, consent to the conditions proposed 
for petition RZ22-03 and approved by the Lowell 
City Council.  
 
 
___________________________   
     
The Pulte Group 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, the property owner, consent to the conditions 
proposed for petition RZ22-03 and approved by the 
Lowell City Council.  
 
 
___________________________   
     
Belmont Land Investment Co 

76



20
'

T

T

T

T

TT

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:3
0:

25
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

1" = 300'

SITE LEGEND
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

OWNER
DORIS B TALLENT
DORIS B TALLENT
TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
DORIS B TALLENT
EUNICE H CARPENTER & CATHY J SNYDER
GAIL REDDICK BARKER
DANIEL A DAVIS
JEFFREY A LITTLE
TAMMY S SCHRONCE
RACHEL MANN MOORE
FRANKLIN CHARLES & MARSHA B MORROW
EDITH C MAY HEIRS
DOROTHY MAY BROWN
THOMAS GERALD & TERI LYN FLOWERS

PARCEL
136566
136565
136557
136558
135132
135137
135141
135134
135133
135138
135129
135128
135127
135108

DEED
2133-708
2411-777
1891-116
1454-363
4963-030
4514-2463
4684-697
4975-2031
4693-2468
2286-634
2371-490
0010-551
1432-802
4467-1512

NOTE: PROPERTY INFORMATION BASED ON GASTON COUNTY GIS

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
ZONING
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
C-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 150 300 600

1 inch = 300 ft.

NC GRID (NAD83)

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

68' OVERHEAD
POWER EASEMENT

SOUTH FORK CATAWBA RIVER

SO
U

TH FO
RK CATAW

BA RIVER

AMENITY
AREA

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

SWMF
± 1.02 AC

SWMF
± 0.94 AC

SWMF
± 2.55 AC

SWMF
± 1.41 AC

SWMF
± 0.64 AC

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

SITE DATA

TAX PARCEL NUMBER:

PROPOSED ZONING:

136564, 210660 + PORTIONS OF 135144,
202166, 202774
SFR-4 (CZ)

PREPARED BY:
MCADAMS

3430 TORINGDON WAY, SUITE 110
CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
AREA:
PERIMETER BUFFER:
PUBLIC ROW WIDTH:
SINGLE FAMILY (60' x 130')
DENSITY:
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED (5% OF SITE AREA):

NATURAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:
STORMWATER DETENTION PROVIDED:
TREE SAVE REQUIRED (6% OF EXISTING TREES):
TREE SAVE PROVIDED:

± 226.29 AC
20'
60'
422 LOTS
1.86 LOTS/AC
11.31 AC

7.71 AC
± 9.16 AC
13.58 AC
13.58 AC

NOTES:
1. ALL INTERNAL STREETS WILL BE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS

20' AT&T EASEMENT

20' AT&T
EASEMENT

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

PHASE #
1
2
3
4
TOTAL

LOT COUNT
99
133
101
89
422

POCKET
PARK

+/- 1.0 AC TO BE SUBDIVIDED
TO ADJACENT PROPERTY
OWNER

RZ.01
REZONING PLAN

AMENITY
AREA

ROAD 'G'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'E
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'E'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'G'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'A'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'A
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'A'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'B'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'C'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'C'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'D
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

ROAD 'D'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'H'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'F
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

RO
AD 'J'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'K'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'L'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'M'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'P
'

(6
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'Q

'
(60' PUBLIC R/W

)

13
0'

 L
O

T 
DE

PT
H

60' LOT WIDTH

RIGHT-OF-WAY

5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK

TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1' = 40'

23.5' GARAGE
SETBACK

NOTE: CORNER LOTS REQUIRE A 10' SIDE
YARD SETBACK WITH AN 11.5' GARAGE
SETBACK.

PHASE 1
± 55.12 AC

PHASE 2
± 59.99 AC

PHASE 3
± 47.38 AC

PHASE 4
± 63.80 AC

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

7,800 SF MIN. LOT

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: 3.60 AC

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF
TERMINATING VISTA.
PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

SWMF
± 1.74 AC

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

CREEK CROSSING B

CREEK CROSSING A

IN THE EVENT POTENTIAL
PHASE 4 CONNECTION.
REFER TO DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS

POCKET PARK

PROPERTY LINE TO BE VACATED
THROUGH SUBDIVISION PROCESS

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PROPOSED PUMP STATION. FINAL
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED
DURING CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

77



CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:2
0:

52
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

RZ.02
REZONING NOTES

Pulte Lowell
Development Standards

July 12, 2022
Spencer Mountain Rezoning Petition

Post Planning Committee

Post Adjusted Site Boundary

Site Development Data:

--Acreage: ± 226.29 acres
--Tax Parcel #:  136564 and 210660
--Tax Parcel #:  135144, 202166, and 202774 NOTE WHICH ARE “A PORTION OF”
--Existing Zoning:  SFR-3 and SFR-2
--Proposed Zoning:  SFR-4(CZ)
--Existing Uses:  Vacant
--Proposed Uses:  Up to 422 single-family detached dwelling units as allowed by right and under
prescribed conditions in the SFR-4 zoning district as further described in Section 2 below.

1. General Provisions:

a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of  the Rezoning Plan associated with the
Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the development of  up to four hundred
and twenty-two (422) single-family detached dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.
The proposed development will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain
Road (the "Site").

b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance.  Development of  the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan as
well as the applicable provisions of  the Lowell Land Development Code (the “Ordinance”).  Unless the
Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for
the SFR-4 zoning classification shall govern.

c. Graphics and Alterations.  The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and buildings,
building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and site elements (collectively the
“Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the
provisions of  these Development Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of  the
Development/Site Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of  the
Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by the Rezoning Plan
will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the Ordinance. 

Since the project has not undergone the design development and construction phases, it is intended that
this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic
representations of  the Development/Site Elements.  Therefore, there may be instances where minor
modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance.  These instances would include changes to graphics if
they are minor and don't materially change the overall design intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The Planning Director will determine if  such minor modifications are allowed and if  it is determined that
the alteration does not meet the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in
each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the Ordinance.

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas:

a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family detached
dwelling units to the west side of  the ultimate drainage line.  The ultimate drainage line location will be
determined as part of the overall grading plan during the land development process.

3. Transportation and Connectivity:

a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if  required by Ordinance.  Any required
improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by NCDOT.

b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, Creek
Crossing B may be eliminated.

c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the
most recently adopted version of  the North Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines
subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval.

4. Architectural Standards:

a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a combination of
portions of  the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, synthetic stone, cementitious fiber
board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative block and/or wood.

b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be used on
windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof  overhang elements, handrails/railings, and/or other
miscellaneous trim elements.

c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal.

d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments:

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of  the garage door or one large wall sconce above the
garage door,

ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door,

iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and

vi. windows

5. Environmental Features and Open Space:

a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality requirements as set forth in
the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code.

b. The location of  the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact size and
location of  these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, product allocation, and/or other
site plan elements.  The overall layout and unit count may be altered as a result of  final stormwater
locations.

c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction stormwater containment
measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters.

ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed.

iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) capable of

treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater runoff  from pre-development and post
development conditions for the one-year, twenty-four-hour storm.

iv. SCMs capable of  limiting peak flow from the site at each point of  discharge to the predevelopment
conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour storm events

v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used.

vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm.

vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly explained to the
responsible party.

viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff  should be minimized through site design and Low
Impact Development (LID) measures such as downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green
roofs, planter boxes, etc.

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject to the provisions
set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water bodies.

ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges.

iii. Retention basins capable of  conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall sized to maximize
drawdown time.

iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after grading.

v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'.

vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site.

vii. Implementation of  devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity during construction and
provide alerts to regulators and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels.

viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers and owners.

ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of  any downstream coves before and after construction to
document off-site sedimentation.

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the Site.

f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as follows:

i.  One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J.

ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road.

The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the permitting process.  It is
understood the easements may be used to provide access to future amenities to be provided by others.

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots west of  the drainage
divide line.  Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's association.  Land disturbance is
permitted within the buffer during development of the site.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of  three license plate readers to be operated for a minimum
of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City Manager.  The license plate readers shall be installed
at the primary entrance for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective phase.

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan:

a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these Development Standards) may be
applied for by the then Owner or Owners of  the applicable portion of  the Site affected by such
amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application:

a. If  this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the development of  the Site
imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be
binding upon and insure to the benefit of  the Petitioner and subsequent owners of  the Site and their
respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest or assigns.

78



  

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

COUNTY WATERLINE EASEMENT 
 
 

  

79



REBAR

REBAR

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

TRACT 2

REBAR

DOYLE D. & DORIS
TALLENT

PARCEL 136558
DB 1454, PG 0363

LOWELL - SPENCER

MOUNTAIN RD

S 57°09'18" E   1650.91'  IPS TO REBAR

N 54°17'08" E
   4

43.99'

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 S 84°21'23" E 164.85'
L2 S 44°42'47" E 200.67'
L3 S 27°04'27" W 92.91'
L4 S 23°42'16" W 156.33'
L5 S 33°59'20" E 226.21'
L6 S 32°13'11" E 258.50'
L7 S 29°52'51" E 158.90'
L8 S 30°37'16" E 74.40'
L9 S 27°02'56" E 143.53'

L10 S 31°06'12" E 172.18'
L11 N 68°39'36" E 191.92'
L12 S 80°40'33" E 24.31'
L13 N 80°40'33" W 19.05'
L14 S 68°39'36" W 203.29'
L15 N 31°06'12" W 189.74'
L16 N 27°02'56" W 143.62'
L17 N 30°37'16" W 73.91'
L18 N 29°52'51" W 158.62'
L19 N 32°13'11" W 257.78'
L20 N 33°59'20" W 236.92'
L21 N 23°42'16" E 28.06'
L22 N 66°17'44" W 159.53'
L23 N 23°42'16" E 20.00'
L24 S 66°17'44" E 159.53'
L25 N 23°42'16" E 119.87'
L26 N 27°04'27" E 95.52'
L27 S 57°09'18" E 20.10'
L28 N 57°09'18" W 20.00'

L1

L2

458.74'  ESMT. TIE

CURVE TABLE
CURVE LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEARING CHORD

C1 20.00' 454.33' S 08°41'45" W 20.00'

L27

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11
L12

L13
L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L2
1

L22

L2
3

L24 L2
5

L2
6

10.0'

10.0'

PROPOSED 20' PERMANENT UTILITY
EASEMENT WITH 10'
TEMP. CONST. EASEMENT BOTH SIDES

EYEBOLT
NC GRID (NAD83-2011)
N: 566,980.61'
E: 1,370,546.21'

L28

22" POST
OAK BELMONT LAND AND

INVESTMENT
COMPANY

PARCEL 136564
DB 3253, PG 175

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

PROPOSED
UTILITY EASEMENT

33,645 SF
0.77 AC.

PROPOSED
TEMP. CONST.

EASEMENT
33,649 SF
0.77 AC.

E/
P

E/
P

APPROX. ROAD
CENTERLINE

S 45°56'02" E   425.63'  TIE TO CL

C1

20.0'

VICINITY MAP

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION
FROM  DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT
THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AND DRAWN
FROM  INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE
RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT
WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.
WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _____________________, A.D. 2024.

___________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS    L-4275

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR RECORDATION,
CONVEYANCES OR SALES

NC GRID (NAD83)

1 inch = 200 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

Charlotte, NC 28203
PROJECT NO. LEN23006
FILENAME LEN23006-Q7
CHECKED BY KSB
DRAWN BY JC
SCALE 1"=200'
DATE 4.2.2024

PLAN INFORMATIONPROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT
AND TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
PROPERTY OF GASTON COUNTY

1101 LOWELL-SPENCER MOUNTAIN ROAD
GASTONIA TWSP., GASTON CO., NORTH CAROLINA

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS
DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:
(1)CLASS OF SURVEY: CLASS A
(2)POSITIONAL ACCURACY: < 0.100'
(3)TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: VRS
(4)DATE OF SURVEY: 09/16/2021
(5)DATUM/EPOCH: NAD 83(2011)
(6)PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USED: GAST
(7)GEOID MODEL: GEOID12A
(8)COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S): 0.999835694
(9)UNITS: METERS CONVERTED TO US SURVEY FEET

SITE

GEORGE
POSTON

PARK

7

LOWELL

GENERAL  NOTES
1.) BEARINGS BASED ON NC GRID NAD-83(2011).
2.) ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES.
3.) FLOOD NOTE: THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD

ZONE AS DEFINED BY FEMA F.I.R.M. MAP NUMBER 3710357600J DATED
SEPTEMBER 28, 2007.

4.) REFERENCES: DB 2030, PG 246 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTRY.
PARCEL NO. 148012

5.) NO GRID MONUMENTS FOUND WITHIN 2000' OF SITE.

LEGEND
EXISTING IRON AS NOTED
IRON PIPE SET
CALCULATED POINT

SURVEYED PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE NOT SURVEYED

PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT
PROPOSED TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE WITH POLE

80



  

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

UTILITY ALLOCATION PROCESS 
 

  

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



  

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS & COMPLETION DEADLINES 
 

A. PHASE 1 Transportation Improvements 
1. Access B – including Northbound Left Turn Lane with 100’ storage 

i. Will be commenced simultaneously with Phase 1 
2. Access D (no required  

i. Will be commenced simultaneously with Phase 1 
B. PHASE 1 Transportation Improvements Deadline – On or before the issuance of the fiftieth (50th) 

CO for Phase 1. 
C. PHASE 2 Transportation Improvements 

1. Access C – including Northbound Right Turn Lane (the “Access C NBRTL”) with 100’ 
storage 

i. Access C -Will be commenced simultaneously with Phase 2 
ii. The Access C NBRTL will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the 

issuance of the fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 2. 
2. Access E - including Northbound Right Turn Lane (the “Access E NBRTL”) with 100’ 

storage 
i. Access E - will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the issuance of the 

fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 2 or (ii) the issuance of the 180th CO for the Project. 
ii. The Access E NBRTL will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the 

issuance of the fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 2. 
3. Northbound Left Turn Lane transition tapers will be remarked at this time to provide a 

50’ Southbound Left Turn Lane into Access C. 
D. PHASE 3 & 4 

1. Access A including Northbound Left Turn Lane (the “Access A NBLTL”) with 100’ 
storage 

i. will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the issuance of the first (1st) CO 
for Phase 3 or (ii) the issuance of the 231st CO for the Project. 

2. N. Main St. and W. 1st St. – Southbound Right Turn Lane Remarking 
i. The remarking exercise to provide a 100’ Southbound Right Turn Lane will be 

completed by the issuance of the fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 3. 
 

 
 

93



  

 

EXHIBIT G 

 

Waterline Improvements 

 

94



20
'

30'
30'

LEN-23006
LEN23006-OAS1 

MDD

JMG

04. 01. 2024

SP
EN

CE
R 

RI
DG

E
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
RA

W
IN

GS
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\L
EN

\L
EN

23
00

6\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Dr
aw

in
gs

\C
ur

re
nt

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\L

EN
23

00
6-

O
AS

1.
dw

g,
 4

/1
/2

02
4 

1:
10

:3
3 

PM
, N

at
al

ie
 M

et
z

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE

N0. DATE

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

CONSTRUCTION DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28203

JASON GALLOWAY
LENNAR
6701 CARMEL ROAD SUITE 245
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 100 200 400

1 inch = 200 ft.

STREET 'A':
STREET 'B':
STREET 'C':

3,861'
363'
876'

LINEAR FOOTAGE OF STREETS:

1" = 200'

TAX PARCEL NUMBER:

PROPOSED ZONING:

136564, 210660 + PORTIONS OF 135144,
202166, 202774
SFR-4 (CZ) (Zoning Case:
CZ2022-03 – Approved 5-2022)

PREPARED BY:
MCADAMS

2100 SOUTH TRYON STREET, SUITE 400
CHARLOTTE, NC 28203

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
AREA:
SINGLE FAMILY (60' x 130')
DENSITY ALLOWED:
DENSITY PROVIDED:
MIN. LOT SIZE REQUIRED:
MIN. LOT SIZE PROVIDED:
MIN. LOT WIDTH REQUIRED:
MIN. LOT WIDTH PROVIDED:

± 223.41 AC
406 LOTS
4.00 LOTS/AC
1.82 LOTS/AC
7,800 SF
7,800 SF
60'
60'

SETBACK REQUIREMENTS
MIN. FRONT YARD SETBACK REQUIRED:
MIN. FRONT YARD SETBACK PROVIDED:
MIN. REAR YARD SETBACK REQUIRED:
MIN. REAR YARD SETBACK PROVIDED:
MIN. SIDE YARD SETBACK REQUIRED:
MIN. SIDE YARD SETBACK PROVIDED:
MIN. CORNER YARD SETBACK REQUIRED:
MIN. CORNER YARD SETBACK PROVIDED:
MIN. GARAGE FRONT SETBACK REQUIRED:
MIN. GARAGE FRONT SETBACK PROVIDED:
MIN. GARAGE CORNER SETBACK REQUIRED:
MIN. GARAGE CORNER SETBACK PROVIDED:

20'
20'
5'
5'
5'
5'
10'
10'
23.5'
23.5'
11.5'
11.5'

PARKING REQUIREMENTS (SECTION 12.3 OF LDO)
MIN. OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIRED:
OFF-STREET PARKING PROVIDED:
MIN. ON-STREET PARKING REQUIRED:
ON-STREET PARKING PROVIDED:

812 (2/UNIT (406X2))
812 (2/UNIT (406X2))
0
56

OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS
MIN. OPEN SPACE REQUIRED:
MIN. OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE:
NATURAL OPEN SPACE:
PASSIVE OPEN SPACE:
INACCESSIBLE OPEN SPACE:

MIN. TREE CONSERVATION AREA REQUIRED:
MIN. TREE CONSERVATION AREA PROVIDED:
STORMWATER DETENTION PROVIDED:

11.17 AC (5% OF SITE AREA) SECTION 21.2-1
111.44 AC
3.20 AC
63.52 AC
44.72 AC
5.08 AC
13.40 AC (6% OF EXISTING TREES) SECTION 11.8-2
63.51 AC
±5.13 AC

13
0'

 L
O

T 
DE

PT
H

60' LOT WIDTH

5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK

TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1' = 40'

23.5' GARAGE
SETBACK

*NOTE: CORNER LOTS REQUIRE A 10' SIDE YARD SETBACK
WITH AN 11.5' GARAGE SETBACK.

7,800 SF MIN. LOT

22
'

26
'

BO
C-

BO
C

60
'CENTERLINE (TYP.)

20'

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

OWNER
DORIS B TALLENT
DORIS B TALLENT
TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
DORIS B TALLENT
EUNICE H CARPENTER ETAL
GAIL REDDICK BARKER
DANIEL A DAVIS
JEFFREY A LITTLE ETAL
TAMMY S SCHRONCE
RACHEL MANN MOORE
CHARLES FRANKLIN MORROW ETAL
EDITH C MAY ETAL
DOROTHY MAY BROWN
GERALD THOMAS FLOWERS & TERI LYN FLOWERS

PARCEL
136566
136565
136557
136558
135132
135137
135141
135134
135133
135138
135129
135128
135127
135108

DEED
2133-708
2411-777
1891-116
1454-363
4963-030
4514-2463
4684-697
4975-2031
4693-2468
2286-634
2371-490
0010-551
1432-802
4467-1512

NOTES:
· PROPERTY INFORMATION BASED ON GASTON COUNTY GIS
· ALL PROPOSED STREETS HAVE A 60' PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND ARE CITY MAINTAINED, MAINTANANCE WILL

ONLY OCCUR AFTER ACCEPTANCE AND RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION, BY CITY COUNCIL PER SECTION 16. 1-8
· T = TURNDOWN
· B = BASEMENT
· THE MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE FOR PRIMARY STRUCTURE SHALL BE 30% OF THE LOT AREA
· BALCONIES, STOOPS, STAIRS, OPEN PORCHES, BAY WINDOWS, AND AWNINGS ARE PERMITTED TO ENCROACH

INTO THE FRONT SETBACK AREA UP TO 8'.
· MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT EXCEEDING 16 SQUARE FEET SHALL NOT ENCROACH INTO ANY REQUIRED SETBACK

ZONING
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
C-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1

CUL-DE-SAC
VALLEY CURB AND GUTTER

N.T.S

STREET 'D': 3,788'
STREET 'E': 666'
STREET 'F': 1,656'
STREET 'G': 548'
STREET 'H': 210'
STREET 'I': 2,203'
STREET 'J': 206'
STREET 'K': 1,054'
STREET 'L': 598'
STREET 'M': 2,260'
STREET 'N': 225'

ADDRESS
2306 RYAN CONLEY CT , GASTONIA, NC 28056
2306 RYAN CONLEY CT , GASTONIA, NC 28056
PO BOX 675 , LOWELL, NC 28098-0000
2306 RYAN CONLEY CT , GASTONIA, NC 28056
129 SUTTON CARPENTER RD , GASTONIA, NC 28056-7852
2940 ALARKA RD , BRYSON CITY, NC 28713-
1405 LOWELL SPENCER MTN RD , GASTONIA, NC 28056-7841
1421 LOWELL SPENCER MTN ROAD , GASTONIA, NC 28056
2408 MALLOTTE LN , GASTONIA, NC 28054-6407
1429 LOWELL SPENCER MTN RD , GASTONIA, NC 28056-7841
104 FLOWERS RD , GASTONIA, NC 28056
C/O JEFFERY SCOTT BEASLEY 114 FLOWERS RD, GASTONIA, NC 28056-6647
126 FLOWERS RD , GASTONIA, NC 28056-0000
138 HALL RD , GASTONIA, NC 28056-7825

GENERAL NOTES:
1. BASED ON AN ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY COMPLETED BY MCADAMS.

2. BEARINGS ARE RELATIVE TO NC GRID NORTH NAD 83 (2011).

3. FLOOD NOTE: FLOOD ZONE INFORMATION IS PER FEMA F.I.R.M. MAP NO. 3710357600J, DATED
SEPTEMBER 28, 2007.

4. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION
AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.
THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN
THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY ARE LOCATED AS
ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY
LOCATED THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

5. ANY PROPERTY DEDICATED AS COMMON OPEN SPACE SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY A DULY CREATED
HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION. DEDICATED PROPERTY MUST COMPLY WITH SECTION 16.1-11
LOWELL DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.

6. COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS MADE A PART OF DEVELOPMENT SHALL NOT RESTRICT VEHICLE
TYPES IN CONFLICT WITH ADOPTED CITY POLICIES.

7. STREET TREES ALONG GROVES STREET AND INTERNAL SUBDIVISION STREETS WILL BE PLANTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 11.6-3 OF THE LOWELL UDO.

8. DESIGN OF THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY OF
LOWELL’S STORM-WATER REGULATIONS, AS CONTAINED IN THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPEARING IN ARTICLE 19 OF THIS ORDINANCE.

9. THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM DESIGN SHALL COMPLY WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS SET
FORTH IN THE STORMWATER SECTION OF ARTICLE 19 OF THIS ORDINANCE AND THE CITY OF
LOWELL TECHNICAL STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL.

10. ALL SUBDIVISION PROPOSALS WITHIN THE CITY OF LOWELL JURISDICTION SHALL BE CONSISTENT
WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY'S FLOOD PROTECTION REGULATIONS SET FORTH IN ARTICLE
18 OF THIS ORDINANCE AND WITH THE NEED TO MINIMIZE FLOOD DAMAGE.

11. ALL SUBDIVISION PROPOSALS SHALL HAVE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES AND FACILITIES SUCH AS
SEWERAGE SYSTEMS, GAS LINES, ELECTRICAL, TELECOMMUNICATIONS (TELEVISION, INTERNET,
TELEPHONE, ETC.), AND WATER SYSTEMS LOCATED AND CONSTRUCTED TO AVOID FLOOD DAMAGE.

12. ADEQUATE DRAINAGE SHALL BE PROVIDED TO AVOID EXPOSURE TO FLOOD HAZARDS.

13. BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSALS WHENEVER ANY
PORTION OF THE PROJECT SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN A DESIGNATED FLOOD HAZARD AREA.

14. PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLATS SHALL NOTE THE LOCATION OF FLOODPLAIN AND FLOODWAY
BOUNDARIES AND THE 100-YEAR FLOOD (BASE FLOOD) ELEVATION.

15. IF THERE IS A WATER COURSE OR DRY BRANCH RUNNING THROUGH OR WITHIN 150 FEET OF THE
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION, THE PROSPECTIVE SUB-DIVIDER SHALL FURNISH EVIDENCE THAT
RESIDENTIAL LOTS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION WILL NOT BE FLOODED. LOTS LOCATED IN FLOOD
PLAINS SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 16.2-3(D) OF THIS ARTICLE AND THE FLOOD PREVENTION
STANDARDS SET FORTH IN ARTICLE 18.

16. RETAINING WALLS WILL BE PERMITTED BY GASTON COUNTY. IT IS PREFERRED THAT WALL HEIGHT
BE LIMITED TO 8' OR LESS.

17. GRADING SHALL PROVIDE FOR SMOOTH GRADE TRANSITIONS TO AVOID "V" DITCHES, SWALES AND
OTHER DISRUPTIONS TO THE LANDSCAPE, PARTICULARLY BETWEEN BUILDINGS WHERE OPEN
SPACE ENHANCEMENTS FOR USE BY PERSONS ACTIVELY UTILIZING THE LANDSCAPE AND/OR YARD
AREA. THE USE OF EITHER CRAWL-SPACE AND/OR STEM-WALL CONSTRUCTION TECHNIQUES IN
DETACHED RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES, OR PROFESSIONAL LANDSCAPE DESIGN IS REQUIRED TO
MEET THIS CHARACTERISTIC OF SITE DEVELOPMENT.

18. WHERE SUBDIVISIONS HAVE COMMON AREAS OR FACILITIES SERVING MORE THAN ONE DWELLING
UNIT, THE DEVELOPER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF THESE COMMON AREAS
AND FACILITIES. THIS RESPONSIBILITY MAY BE TRANSFERRED TO ANOTHER ENTITY, PROVIDED THE
DEVELOPER PREPARES A DOCUMENT FOR RECORDATION SHOWING THE TRANSFER OF THE
PROPERTY AND THE MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES TO A SUCCESSOR. A COPY OF THE RECORDED
DOCUMENT MUST BE PROVIDED TO THE PLANNING, ZONING & SUBDIVISION ADMINISTRATOR. IN
SUCH CASE, THE SUCCESSOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF THE COMMON
ACCESS AND FACILITIES.

SITE DATA ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS

C2.00
OVERALL SITE PLAN

SITE LEGEND

PHASE 1
PHASE 4

PHASE 1
PHASE 4

PHASE 2

PHASE 1

PHASE 2
PHASE 1

PHASE 3

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

PHASE 2

EXISTING LEGEND

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

SITE

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

S.R. 2201
NCDOT MAINTAINED

35MPH POSTED SPEED LIMIT

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

NCDOT MAINTAINED
35MPH POSTED SPEED LIMIT

SCM 'B'

SCM 'C'

SCM 'D'

SCM 'E'

SCM 'F'

SCM 'G'

LIBERTY LANE

WENTWORTH
AVENUE

WENTWORTH
AVENUE

WINTHROP
AVENUE

ROCKINGHAM
AVENUE

MERRIMACK
LANE

DUTTON DRIVE

MONTGOMERY
AVENUE

APPLETON
AVENUE

FLETCHER
STREET

PAWTUCKET
STREET

WOODLAWN
MILL DRIVE

WOODLAWN
MILL DRIVE

BELVIDERE DRIVE

SCM 'A'

WESTFORD
AVENUE

SUFFOLK
DRIVE

PAWTUCKET
STREET

CAMBRIDGE STREET

LOT CONDITON KEY
NOTE LEGEND:

T
B

TURNDOWN
BASEMENT

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY "NC811" (811) OR (1-800-632-4949)  AT
LEAST 3 FULL BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION
OR EXCAVATION TO HAVE EXISTING UTILITIES LOCATED.
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ANY LOCAL UTILITIES THAT PROVIDE
THEIR OWN LOCATOR SERVICES INDEPENDENT OF "NC811".
REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

Provide a Hydrant on
stub past the intersection

6,215 LF of 12" Water Main Extended
on Lowell Spencer Mountain Road
(Ex Line to Fletcher Street Intersection)

~1,780 LF of Water Main extension through
the County's Park to tie into Phase 4
(Property Line to Lowell Spencer Mountain
Road)

95



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #13

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5C

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-5-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #13

Please see the attached revised Budget Amendment #13. This is to receive funds from the FY 2021 Wastewater
AIA Grant. This is the final payment for this grant from FY 2021.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #13 FY 2023-2024 Revised.pdf

96

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ec506a59310044ac0e89%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2313%20FY%202023-2024%20Revised.pdf?alt=media&token=0281c84e-d61a-4ab2-90b0-7ce6f3d7a57e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ec506a59310044ac0e89%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2313%20FY%202023-2024%20Revised.pdf?alt=media&token=0281c84e-d61a-4ab2-90b0-7ce6f3d7a57e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ec506a59310044ac0e89%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2313%20FY%202023-2024%20Revised.pdf?alt=media&token=0281c84e-d61a-4ab2-90b0-7ce6f3d7a57e


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #13 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
30-3303-0000 Wastewater AIA Grant-FY 2021                            $67,521.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $67,521.00 in the Water/Sewer Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $1,905,709.24 to $1,973,230.24. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
30-8200-0400 WWTP Professional Services                $67,521.00 
 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $67,521.00 in the WWTP appropriations for Professional 
Services in FY 23-24 from $10,000.00 to $77,521.00. 
 
This amendment is to receive funds from a FY 2021 Wastewater AIA Grant. 
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

97



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Amended Grant Project Ordinance - Lowell WWTP Planning Grant (SRP-W-ARP-0301)

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5D

Reference File Presented By

To:  Lowell Mayor and City Council

From:   Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date:  6-4-2024

Re:  Consideration of Amended Grant Project Ordinance - Lowell WWTP Planning Grant (SRP-W_ARP-0301)

Please see the attached Amended Grant Project Ordinance for the Lowell WWTP Planning Grant. Also attached is
the signed contract with Withers Ravenel, the previous Grant Project Ordinance dated 12/04/2023, and the minutes
from the previously approved Grant Project Ordinance.

Information gathered since the City Council meeting on May 14, 2024:

We have spent out approx. $343,432.00 of this grant to date. The resulting engineered drawings will likely be ready
for permitting by early June and Withers Ravenel has completed approximately 80% of the project now. The
Engineering Report (ER) has been submitted and we have received comments back from DWI and Withers is
working on those comments now.

As noted in the initial City Council approval of the Withers Ravenel task order contract in 2023, there are a few
options to fund the $188,000 of cost that needs to come from the City of Lowell and the current recommended
option is to utilize current year System Development Fees paid by new developments already to the City of Lowell.

Additionally, the following information was ascertained during a web meeting with DWI on June 4, 2024:

If the Council selected to stop the project, the State may accept a report of what has been done and might consider
bringing the total value of the grant down to near that current amount. This possible avenue was not fully promised
by DWI personnel because of the hypothetical nature of this situation. This amount would likely not be the
$343,432.00 cost mentioned above as Withers Ravenel is still performing work with addressing comments from
the ER.

General Funding Info:

98



Funding is much more competitive than it used to be for Water and Sewer projects. The State Water Infrastructure
Authority (SWIA) awardee list is much longer than it typically is. Conversely, wastewater treatment plant
expansion/new builds receive lower grant scoring and DWI personnel were not confident that it would be applicable
for funding in Lowell's situation. If this Pre-Construction Grant stops, the SRF Grant/Loan for the construction of
this project will likely be reappropriated to another municipality. Additionally, the EPA has warned DWI of
expeditious funding with a recent memo and they require not delaying State Revolving Fund (SRF) funded projects.
This is the construction loan/grant that Lowell has been approved for regarding the regionalization of the WWTP
with Two Rivers Utilities, or what this Pre-Construction Planning Grant prepares the City to accomplish. Staff
discovered on this web meeting that the City of Lowell was highlighted to receive additional discretionary which
has brought the SRF loan amount down to $4,598,703, which resulted in DWI converting the additional portions of
our proposed loan to a grant. 

As explained in the Lowell Council work session on May 30, 2024, staff and our consultant believes the SDF
Loan/Grant offered to the City is the lowest cost funding to prepare Lowell for future growth and assure
wastewater treatment capacity moving forward.

Also, see the attached budget amendment (Agenda Item 5E) to use System Development Fees (SDF) to fund the
additional $188,000 for this SRP-W-ARP-0301 project to complete the engineering and permits to have bid
documents ready regarding the Lowell WWTP regionalization project.

 

Attachments

AMENDED GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE - LOWELL WWTP PLANNING (SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf
GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE DATED 12-04-2023.pdf
WRE Task Order Lowell WWTP Decommissioning and PS Signed.pdf
Minutes City Council Meeting 12-4-2023.pdf
Minutes City Council Meeting 10-10-2023.pdf

99

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FAMENDED%20GRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20-%20LOWELL%20WWTP%20PLANNING%20(SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf?alt=media&token=86e69d70-7f88-48b2-9388-2aa42a34ed32
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FAMENDED%20GRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20-%20LOWELL%20WWTP%20PLANNING%20(SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf?alt=media&token=86e69d70-7f88-48b2-9388-2aa42a34ed32
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FAMENDED%20GRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20-%20LOWELL%20WWTP%20PLANNING%20(SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf?alt=media&token=86e69d70-7f88-48b2-9388-2aa42a34ed32
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FGRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20DATED%2012-04-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=1c688d81-b4ec-4a50-a7f4-4b12ae349bc2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FGRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20DATED%2012-04-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=1c688d81-b4ec-4a50-a7f4-4b12ae349bc2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FGRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20DATED%2012-04-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=1c688d81-b4ec-4a50-a7f4-4b12ae349bc2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FWRE%20Task%20Order%20Lowell%20WWTP%20Decommissioning%20and%20PS%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=abdb2097-c8cc-49b8-9f80-b1f5edbbde07
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FWRE%20Task%20Order%20Lowell%20WWTP%20Decommissioning%20and%20PS%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=abdb2097-c8cc-49b8-9f80-b1f5edbbde07
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FWRE%20Task%20Order%20Lowell%20WWTP%20Decommissioning%20and%20PS%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=abdb2097-c8cc-49b8-9f80-b1f5edbbde07
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FMinutes%20City%20Council%20Meeting%2012-4-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=c26424bd-02a9-4758-8850-730eb0a1c654
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FMinutes%20City%20Council%20Meeting%2012-4-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=c26424bd-02a9-4758-8850-730eb0a1c654
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FMinutes%20City%20Council%20Meeting%2012-4-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=c26424bd-02a9-4758-8850-730eb0a1c654
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FMinutes%20City%20Council%20Meeting%2010-10-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=256b1a20-1a9c-4c8d-8fd5-e8c2d8d51fcb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FMinutes%20City%20Council%20Meeting%2010-10-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=256b1a20-1a9c-4c8d-8fd5-e8c2d8d51fcb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ed236a59310044ac0f01%2FMinutes%20City%20Council%20Meeting%2010-10-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=256b1a20-1a9c-4c8d-8fd5-e8c2d8d51fcb


CITY OF LOWELL 
WASTEWATER PRE-CONSTRUCTION PLANNING GRANT 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GRANT 
PROJECT# SRP-W-ARP-0301 

AMENDED GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE 

Be it ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that pursuant to section 13.2 of 

Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following Grant Project Ordinance is hereby 

adopted. 

 
Section 1: The Project authorized is the Wastewater Pre-Construction Planning project (grant project 

number SRP-W-ARP-0301) to be to be financed by the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant 

funds awarded to the City of Lowell by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 

Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI). 

 
Section 2: The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the grant project within the 

terms of the board resolution, grant documents, the rules and regulations of the Division of Water 

Infrastructure (DWI), and the budget contained herein. 

 
Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the project revenues: 

 
ARPA Grant Proceeds $   400,000 
Local Funds $   188,000 

 
Total $   588,000 

 
Section 4: The following amounts are appropriated for the project expenses: 

 
Engineering and Administration Services $   588,000 

 
Total $   588,000 

 
Section 5: The finance officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Wastewater Pre-Construction Grant 

Fund sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency, the 

grant agreements, and federal regulations. 

 
Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the Water & Sewer Fund for the purpose of making payments as 

due. Reimbursement requests should be made to the State grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner. 

Compliance with all federal and state procurement regulations is required. 

 
Section 7: The finance officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of each project 

element in section 4 and on the total grant revenues received or claimed. 

 
Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and revenues 

on this capital project in every budget submission made to this board. 

100



Section 9: Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk, the Budget Officer, and the 

Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 
 

Adopted this the _____ day of ____________, 2024 at the City of Lowell, North Carolina. 
 
 
 
 
       
 __________________________________                           _ 
        ________________________________ 

Larry Simonds, Mayor 
                                            
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________                                    

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 
 

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #15

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5E

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6/5/2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #15

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #15 to receive funds from System Development Fees-Water & Sewer
in the amount of $164,940.00. The City of Lowell has collected $164,940.00 more than what was budgeted for this
revenue. This provides local funds needed for the SRP-W-0301 project from the System Development Fees. These
fees are paid by new developments occurring in the City of Lowell.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #15 FY 2023-2024.pdf

128

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6661e6f1ff577a004433b433%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2315%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ed1a1473-a824-4c84-99f4-a20c7d654c1d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6661e6f1ff577a004433b433%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2315%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ed1a1473-a824-4c84-99f4-a20c7d654c1d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6661e6f1ff577a004433b433%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2315%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ed1a1473-a824-4c84-99f4-a20c7d654c1d


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #15 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
30-3730-0300 System Development Fee-Water                         $  36,180.00 
30-3730-0400 System Development Fee-Sewer             $128,760.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $164,940.00 in the Water/Sewer Fund estimated revenues, bringing 
the revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $1,973,230.24 to $2,138,170.24. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
30-8200-0400 WWTP Professional Services              $164,940.00 
 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $164,940.00 in the WWTP appropriations for 
Professional Services in FY 23-24 from $77,521.00 to $242,461.00. 
 
This amendment is to receive funds from System Development Fees to be used for funding the SRP-
W-ARP-0301 project to complete the engineering and permits to have bid documents ready regarding 
the Lowell WWTP. 
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

129



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Budget Ordinance

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5F

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 6-6-2024

Re: Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Annual Budget Ordinance, Set the FY 24-25
Property Tax Rate, and Adopt the FY 24-25 Rates, Fees, and Charges

The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Draft Budget Message and Budget Ordinance were presented at the May 14, 2024
Regular City Council meeting and they are attached for your review and consideration.

 

Attachments

Full City Managers FY25 Budget Message and Proposed Budget Packet 5_14_24 Revised 2.pdf

130

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665de6d27b6f61004485ceee%2FFull%20City%20Managers%20FY25%20Budget%20Message%20and%20Proposed%20Budget%20Packet%205_14_24%20Revised%202.pdf?alt=media&token=dccb9508-d3fe-4424-a832-fe6764593085
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665de6d27b6f61004485ceee%2FFull%20City%20Managers%20FY25%20Budget%20Message%20and%20Proposed%20Budget%20Packet%205_14_24%20Revised%202.pdf?alt=media&token=dccb9508-d3fe-4424-a832-fe6764593085
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665de6d27b6f61004485ceee%2FFull%20City%20Managers%20FY25%20Budget%20Message%20and%20Proposed%20Budget%20Packet%205_14_24%20Revised%202.pdf?alt=media&token=dccb9508-d3fe-4424-a832-fe6764593085


              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

 

 

 

 

City Manager’s Budget Message FY 2024-2025 
 

May 14, 2024 

Lowell Mayor Larry Simonds  

Members of Lowell City Council 

City of Lowell 

North Carolina 

 
Dear Mayor and Council, 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
In accordance with Chapter 159, Article 3 of the NC General Statutes, the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act, I am pleased to submit the proposed City of Lowell annual 
budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 for your review and consideration.  The annual budget is our 
financial plan that will guide Lowell through the upcoming fiscal year.  Under the general 
direction of the Mayor and City Council, staff will implement and manage the new budget in a 
way that takes advantages of opportunities and prepares the City for future challenges, while 
maintaining the character of the Lowell that we all appreciate.  I would like to thank all of our 
employees for their hard work in preparing this budget. 
 
Throughout the budget message, I will focus on the major characteristics of this proposed budget 
as they relate to the Council’s FY 22-24 Strategic Vision and Goals.  Also, highlighting the 
continuance of the General Fund Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), and the development of a 
Community Investment Fund (CIF).  In the current year of budget planning, the new City 
Council have emphasized the importance of reducing fees and property taxes. 
 
Two budget retreats were held in January and February, as well as budget work session Council 
meetings in March and April. 
 
 
 

131



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT FUND (CIF) and PROPOSED TAX RATE 
 
 
One cent of ad valorem property tax per $100 of assessed value provides the City with $66,329 
of tax revenue to support City operations. These figures are subject to change with the final 
collection of the Gaston County Tax Office, but are representative of a 99% collection rate of 
FY24 ad valorem taxes.  
 
Considering the increased rate of collection of ad valorem taxes, and the Council’s desire to 
reduce taxes and fees, the proposed budget contains a recommended tax rate decrease of 5.5 
cents, from 49 cents to a tax rate of 43.5 cents per $100 of assessed value, and provides 4.5 cents 
of the 43.5 cents, or $298,480, to the Community Investment Fund (CIF) in order to begin and/or 
continue of the following projects within the CIP, in full or in part: 
 

 
 

Mitch Brigulio with Davenport Public Finance and the City Manager explained the background 
of establishing the CIF fund during the budget retreats in early 2024. The CIF fund is a type of 
fund for existing and future capital expenditures which laid out a best practice approach to 
capital planning and debt modeling which has been in use in cities for many years, and offers 
Lowell an opportunity to leverage a proven tool to help ensure future success.  
 
The purpose of the fund is for all future capital needs of the City, including, but not limited to, 
city infrastructure projects, capital equipment, property acquisition, grant matches, etc. Funds 
that were traditionally spent out of the various general fund departments and shown in the capital 

132



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

budget will reside in this separate fund structure. This fund will specifically be funded by the 
current fund balance that exceeds 50% of General Fund Expenditures Goal and a specific 
allocation of the tax rate as mentioned above. The prior establishment of this fund has authorized 
staff to make transfers to the CIF and provide a continuous flow of funds to the CIF when there 
are funds available above the [future] fund balance % to GF expenditures goal. 
 
The City has worked to plan and fund capital improvements using sound financial management 
and responsible stewardship alongside the Council’s priorities. Strong debt policies and debt 
modeling have served the City well, as reflected in Lowell’s Financial Statements. This proven 
tool will enable the City to continue funding the General Fund CIP. The proposed budget 
includes $298,480 (or 4.5 cents) being allocated to the CIF Fund for capital projects and 
infrastructure. More funding will be needed in the future to address City Hall and Police 
Department facility needs. 
 
COUNCIL GOALS 
 
The City Council reviewed their FY 22-24 Goals during the budget retreats in early 2024 and plan 
to complete a new strategic vision during the 24-25 fiscal year with increased citizen involvement.  
The strategic vision is the policy document that staff use to integrate the Council’s Vision into the 
relevant departments and service deliveries. Below are the existing goals that were not changed 
during the FY25 budget retreats. A new plan is planned for this Fall. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE BUDGET GRANTS and OTHER DIRECT FUNDING 
 
During the adoption of the State of North Carolina’s last budget, the City of Lowell received 
$8.25 million in direct appropriations for water and sewer projects and $150,000 from the 
Regional Economic Development Reserve funds for the purchase of a downtown parking lot and 
interior repairs to the Lowell Community Center. 

Current Goals FY22-FY24
Continuosly Improve and Expand Water, 
Sewer, and Stormwater Infrastructure

Continuosly Improve and Expand City 
Streets and Sidewalks

Develop and Update Public Facilities
Enhance Multi-Generational Parks and 
Recreational Activities
Develop Land Use Master Plans for 
Targeted Areas

133



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

FISCAL SUMMARY 
 
General Fund 
 
The City of Lowell’s fiscal position is positive due to conservative fiscal management and strict 
adherence to the Fiscal Policy.  With the approved residential and commercial developments that 
have occurred during prior years, there are future revenues that will continue to sustain 
operations and necessary planning for the future.  Over the last four years the City has 
accomplished a number of strategic goals, all while increasing the City’s General Fund 
Unobligated Fund balance to a healthy level.  The current unassigned fund balance increased 
from $2,107,230 to $3,737,187 (up 77.35% since year prior) which equated to 79.8%  of General 
Fund expenditures. Overall, maintaining a strong fund balance allows for fiscal resiliency that is 
needed to withstand uncertainty. This is an indicator that the City is in a much better position to 
deal with unexpected needs that may arise such as weather disasters, inflation, and aging 
infrastructure needs. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Strategic Vision to Develop and Update Public Facilities for 
the citizens, the Council established the Community Investment Fund (CIF) during the February 
14, 2023 Council meeting for revenues beyond the 50% goal of the General Fund Unobligated 
Balance. The current balance of the CIF is $1,716,449. 
 
OTHER GRANTS 
 
The City continues to be aggressive in seeking grant funding and will continue to do so with 
adequate resources. In this upcoming fiscal year, the City will prioritize state directed grants, 
complete the Water AIA mapping grant, and closeout prior CDBG grants and the Gaston County 
Township grant.  
 
In accordance with the Council’s Strategic Vision to Enhance Multi-Generational Parks and 
Recreational Activities, $1 million in funding for Harold Rankin Park has been secured during 
FY 24 through the Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PART-F) in the amount of $500,000 and 
the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) in the amount of $500,000. Each grant offsets 
the match from one another. Attention to grant requirements and project management is 
paramount to effectively utilizing these funds. Staff support is critical to aid in this grant 
administration, along with our on-call engineering partners. See the map on the following page 
of the Harold Rankin Park improvements that $1 million in grant funds have been applied for: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The City was awarded a $127,080 grant from the Carolina Thread Trail (CTT) during FY 23 and 
the City is expected to implement construction of the Carolina Thread Trail with the CTT grant 
and matching ARPA funds of $50,000 during FY 25 jointly with Gaston County to connect 
substantially to Spencer Mountain and the future Spencer Ridge subdivision. This trail will be 
approximately 50% of the entire Lowell trail segment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This project includes constructing a natural surface trail estimated to be 2,752 linear feet long 
and 6 feet wide                                  
 
Water/Sewer Fund 
The sustainability of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund has been a major focus of the City 
Council. This self-sufficient fund may not be supported by tax dollars but by user fees. The 
unrestricted net position, per the FY 23 Audit is $442,946. This fund balance will need to 
continue to grow to handle emergency repairs. It is imperative to maintain a plan to address the 
maintenance and capital improvements necessary to ensure the City can continue to provide 
water and sewer service to its customers well into the future. In 2024, the City Manager 
commissioned an update to the 2023-2024 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to ensure the best 

135



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

use of awarded grant funds from the State and an analysis of the water and sewer fees. This 10-
year plan provides the blueprint to meet our current and future needs while the rate 
recommendations provide the recommended means to fund the CIP.  System Development Fees 
(SDF) are estimated to substantially rise with new developments occurring in Lowell. This is an 
equitable way to distribute expenses to the water and sewer infrastructure and ensure that new 
development pays their fair share of system improvements and maintenance.   
 
The NCDEQ Pre-Construction Planning Grant to engineer plans to send all of Lowell’s 
wastewater to a Two Rivers pump station in McAdenville will be completed in June of 2024. 
The City also secured a State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan/Grant for the construction of the 
pump station listed above and to decommission the Lowell WWTP. The SRF funding consists of 
a $2,806,357 Sewer Overflow and Stormwater Reuse Grant and an SRF loan of up to $5,098,357 
that will be repayable at an interest rate of .76%. Up to $500,000 of the principal amount of the 
loan will be forgiven. The City Council will continue to review this option to manage future 
increased demands from new sewer customers in the City of Lowell. A decision to proceed is 
required during 2024 to advance this project. 
 
Stormwater Fund 
In January 2020, the State of North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality issued the 
City of Lowell a Notice of Violation regarding our MS4 Stormwater Permit. To avoid costly 
fines from NCDEQ and the EPA, Lowell was required to submit a Stormwater Management Plan 
(SWMP) that NCDEQ had a guiding hand in developing, in order to sufficiently address 
stormwater quality within our city limits.   
 
The FY24 budget included a full-time Stormwater Administrator to meet the needs as listed 
above. This department is funded entirely by user fees. Capital equipment is included in this 
budget to enable city crews to do stormwater repairs throughout the City. The Council indicated 
the desire to reduce the stormwater fee to $4.75 per equivalent residential unit (ERU), which is a 
$2 decrease from prior years. Compliance with NCDEQ MS4 requirements and minor in-house 
repairs are the focus of the Stormwater budget. More funding will be required to perform needed 
stormwater utility repairs in the future. It is recommended to pursue FEMA BRIC Grants and 
other funding to aid Lowell in this process.   
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 
The City’s total long-term debt across both major funds decreased from $1,166,823 to 
$1,008,082, a decrease of $158,741. This is an extremely low debt service number and equates to 
about $272 per person in the City.  The City will utilize some of this debt capacity this fiscal year 
for needed capital items with long useful lives.  The city’s great fiscal standing permit low 
interest rates.  The use of debt financing for capital equipment or infrastructure projects is 
justified and an equitable approach for the City due to the benefits received over many years that 
will benefit future users as well as current taxpayers. Therefore, the cost of the public investment 
should be borne by both.  Using a portion of a taxpayer’s dollars to pay off the debt for the 
capital expense is one way to ensure that future taxpayers bear their fair share of the cost. A list 
of capital projects is included in the budget document. 

136



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

 
 
REVENUE-GENERAL FUND 
 
The General Fund consists of most of the traditional governmental functions of the City of 
Lowell, such as police, administration, sanitation, public works, and parks and recreation. The 
proposed General Fund Revenue for FY24-25 totals $5,659,163 which is approximately a 13.7% 
increase from the current fiscal year. This is due in part to an increased collection percentage, 
increase in sales tax revenue, and increased development and review fees. 
  
The largest revenue source within the General Fund is Ad Valorem Taxes. The assessed value of 
all personal property values totals $669,373,994 (a 16.3% increase from current FY) equating the 
total Ad Valorem Tax levy to $2,885,300.02 based on our new proposed tax rate of .435 cents 
per $100 of evaluation. This assumes a collection rate of 99%. This is the revenue source that 
you (the Council) have complete control over. Other revenues are controlled by the NC General 
Assembly or the Gaston County Board of Commissioners. Ad Valorem revenues account for 
52% of total revenue.  
 
Local sales tax continues to grow at rates that have not been observed before in Lowell, but this 
growth is beginning to flatten. This revenue accounts for $850,000 (or 15%) of general fund 
revenues and is expected to increase by 6.25% from the current fiscal year. Plan review and 
inspections accounts for $955,437 which is substantially used to pay for our on-call engineers to 
review plans and inspect construction activities of new development. The remaining funds are 
used for relevant general government operations. This revenue is anticipated to decline in future 
years after development occurs. 
 
During the FY 2024, the Council has operated a full year of the Pay-As-You-Throw bulk 
program in effort to clean up the City and offer a service to our residents to dispose of items 
weekly, instead of waiting for the free quarterly bulk pickup. The Council has instructed staff to 
begin a monthly bulk pickup (instead of quarterly) in FY25. The impacts to the Pay-As-You-
Throw revenue are yet to be known, but a decrease is accounted for in projected revenues. The 
current garbage collection fee of $12.00 will remain unchanged for residential customers.  
Secondary containers will remain at $8.00 for residential customers.  Commercial customers will 
remain at $22.00 for both primary and secondary containers. These fees result in a projected cost 
coverage of 68% of the expenses for the sanitation department, which includes the staffed 
recycling center. Per guidance from UNC School of Government, these user fees should sustain 
the total expenditures of the department and the City is making progress of reaching a 100% 
sustainable department and transitioning this department to an enterprise fund.  
 
The City Council wishes to eliminate the vehicle license tax of $10 per vehicle from the FY25 
Budget. This revenue was previously dedicated to repairing and resurfacing our city streets and 
general government use. $5.00 was previously used for General purposes and $5.00 of the tax 
levied for maintaining, repairing, constructing, reconstructing, widening, or improving public 
streets in the city that do not form a part of the State highway system. This revenue formerly 

137



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

supplemented the estimated $100,000 that the City will receive annually in Powell Bill funding 
from the State of North Carolina. Powell Bill funding is the City’s portion of the state gasoline 
tax, and it is dedicated to transportation improvements such as street resurfacing and sidewalk 
repair. Additional funding will be needed to provide for street repairs. 
 
Please see the graph below for sources of revenue within the General Fund: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
EXPENDITURES–DEPARTMENT HIGHLIGHTS 
 
     In accordance with the mission statement: The City of Lowell delivers excellent public 
services through transparent leadership and community engagement, it has been paramount to 
provide professional personnel to meet the challenges of service delivery. In order to retain great 
employees, the City Manager ordered a pay and classification study during FY24 to update the 
pay scale during FY25. 
The current analysis found that Lowell was deficient in certain positions for compensation. In 
prior years, this has resulted in an expensive turnover from staff leaving for increased pay 
elsewhere and department heads have been faced with vacancies and costly training for new 
hires. The Consumer Price Index indicated the need for a COLA increase of 3.5%. The salary 
study produced 2 options for implementing other recommended pay increases. Option 1 costs 
$24,464 and Option 2 costs $26,213. During the last Council work session in April, the Council 
indicated going forward with Option 1, a COLA increase of 2.5%, and a merit increase of 0-1%. 
This is a decrease from the FY24 merit increase of 0-3%.  It is important for the City of Lowell 
to invest in their staff who work tirelessly to deliver excellent public services to Lowell residents. 

138



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

As we are nearly at the end of FY24, our turnover rate has increased to 28% for the fiscal year.  
 
The proposed budget contains a 2.5% COLA, or, across the board, salary increase of employee 
salaries. The cost to implement this recommended increase of 2.5% COLA to existing employees 
and adjust the positions named above is $56,296 and merit increases of up to 1% is 
approximately $11,256. In the proposed budget, the wellness and training programs are 
scheduled to continue and vision insurance and a health assessment are included. 
 
Additionally, the NC State Retirement System increased the City’s contribution percentage. The 
City will see an increase of .75% in retirement expenses for the non-police salaries and 1% for 
police salaries. This increase will cost the city an additional $37,431 this fiscal year. The 
increases are as follows across the three funds: $42,204.79 in General Fund, $5,834 in 
Water/Sewer Fund, and a decrease of $10,608 in the Stormwater Fund. The decrease in 
Stormwater Fund is indicative of a reallocation of employee salary percentages away from the 
Stormwater Fund to the General Fund. These increases include the new proposed positions. 
Below is a graph that depicts the operating expenditures across the FY24 Proposed Budget 
 

 
 
Administration  
Administration encompasses a wide range of activities including Council expenses, Manager, 
Finance, Human Resources, Planning, Beautification and other general expenses.   

Personnel  $1,021,279 
Operations $1,300,290 
Capital $3,762 
EDA Repayment $509,305 
Total $2,834,636 

139



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

Administration accounts for approximately 
49.4% of General Fund expenditures in the 
proposed budget. Administration expenses are 
projected to increase by 26.3% from the current 
fiscal year due to several factors. Increased costs 
for plan review and inspections are required for 
ongoing developments, but they are directly 
subsidized by the fees the developers pay. 
Professional services and contracted services 
have increased due to increased costs for 
products and additional attorney needs for 
developments and operations. The Planning 
Board has scheduled training in FY24 for 
additional development hearings and additional 
training is continued for in the proposed FY 24-
25 budget. 
 
Public Safety 
Public safety makes up nearly one-fourth of the Lowell fiscal year budget at 24%. The Police 
Department received an Administrative Secretary position in FY24 to do many clerical and 
administrative duties during office hours, Monday through Friday. The continuation of a recently  
updated RMS system for the department is incorporated, the continuance of specialized training, 
and recruitment strategies are included.  
 
Personnel  $1,099,013 
Operations $178,702 
Capital $96,571 
Total  $1,374,286 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

140



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

Public Works-Streets 
 
Personnel  $232,166 
Operations $148,870 
Capital $11,730 
Total $392,766 

 
 
Public Works-Streets Department accounts for 
approximately 7% of the General Fund 
expenditures in the proposed budget. The 
proposed budget contains a 17% increase in 
expenditures from the current fiscal year. This 
increase is the result of an increase in salary 
allocations from the Stormwater Department. 
Public Works provides a variety of services that 
meet the needs of our citizens every day from 
streets to landscape maintenance.  
 
 
 
Sanitation 
 
Personnel $196,532 
Operations $133,500 
Capital $33,683 
Total $ 363,715 

 
The Sanitation Department accounts for 7% of 
General Fund expenditures, up 5% from the current 
fiscal year.  The proposed FY 24-25 budget for 
Sanitation is partially supported by fees (68%) with 
the remainder supported by tax dollars.  Increases in 
sanitation expenses result from increased costs from 
the Gaston County landfill, personnel, materials, and 
fuel. As stated above, there is not a proposed increase in sanitation rates in the proposed budget. 
The staffed recycling center continues to be a huge success and continues to be a model to 
neighboring municipalities as curbside recycling programs have become too costly due to 
excessive contamination. The Pay-As-You-Throw Bulk Program began in FY 23 as an effort to 
clean up the City and offer a service to our residents to dispose of items weekly, instead of 
waiting for the free bulk pickup, which the City Council has requested to increase to monthly 
instead of quarterly.   
      

141



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
Parks and Recreation 
 
Personnel $153,561 
Operations $136,115 
Capital $5,604 
Total $295,280 

 
Parks and Recreation is much more than 
athletics and the department has grown to 
provide a broad range of offerings to increase 
the quality of life for our residents. Parks and 
recreation is essential to create a sense of place 
and community people so commonly desire.  
The proposed FY 24-25 budget includes 5% of all General Fund expenditures for the Parks and 
Recreation Department.  During FY 24, staff began discussions with the YMCA regarding 
athletic programming and a possible partnership with the newly acquired recreation center, 
formerly the Lowell Boys and Girls Club. Discussions are ongoing and the City Council will 
decide on this possibility in the next few months. During the current fiscal year, staff also began 
a PART-F and LWCG Grant project at Harold Rankin Park to remodel and add amenities with 
$1 million in grant funds. Additional funds have been acquired from direct state funding to make 
improvements to the interior of the Lowell Community Center in 2024-2025. The FY 25 
opportunities will continue the focus on two (2) important goals of the City Council’s Strategic 
Vision; (1) Develop and Update Public Facilities (2) Enhance Multi-Generational Parks and 
Recreational Activities  

142



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

 
 
 

 
Water and Sewer Fund 
Continuously Improve and Expand Water, Sewer and Stormwater Infrastructure The proposed 
FY 24-25 budget contains a large increase, over the current fiscal year, of 96%, due to the 
increased amount of System Development Fees (SDF) that are anticipated from approved 
developments. These funds must be utilized in approved way per NCGS162A-211. An update to 
Water and Sewer CIP was completed in 2024 which lays out 10 years of maintenance and 
projects needed to keep the Water and Sewer Fund functioning appropriately. WWTP plans to 
regionalize with Two Rivers are being considered by the City Council, along with the grant 
funds needed to do so. The direct funds from the state budget were prioritized in the update to 
the Water and Sewer CIP. To cover increased costs from Two Rivers and to meet the demands of 
the Capital Improvement Plan a 6% increase in water and 3% increase in sewer is recommended 
for FY25. The EPA Lead Service Line Inventory continues with W/S staff and the GIS Analyst 
to meet this mandate. 
 
Water and Sewer  
Personnel $563,408 
Operations $2,339,457 
Capital $102,063 
Sub-Total $3,004,928 
Wastewater Treatment  
Personnel $65,000 
Operations $345,676 
Capital $9,416 
Sub-Total $420,092 
  
Total $3,439,340 

The City of Lowell’s proposed rates, are below the median rate in the State of North Carolina.  

143



              
            Mission Statement                                                                                                              Core Values 
         The City of Lowell delivers                                                                                   Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency,                                                                                                          
   excellent public services through                                                                           Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community                                                                   
                    engagement. 

On the following page is a diagram that compares Lowell’s average water and sewer bill against 
all other cities within North Carolina. 
 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144



 Mission Statement     Core Values 
  The City of Lowell delivers          Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency, 

   excellent public services through            Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community 

    engagement. 

Stormwater Fund 

Continuously Improve and Expand Water, Sewer, and Stormwater Infrastructure  
A Stormwater Utility was adopted in the 
FY 21-22 budget in order to create a 
sustainable revenue stream for the 
requirements of Lowell’s MS4 Stormwater 
Permit. The National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal 
Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) 
Program is mandated under the federal 
Clean Water Act.  An NPDES MS4 permit 
is required for every MS4 owner or 
operator that has jurisdiction in a U.S. 
Census Bureau designated Urbanized Area. 
The City of Lowell is one of those areas 
because our population exceeds 1,000 and 
we are considered an urban area. The 
Stormwater Department was formerly housed in the 
General Fund where it was minimally funded. This was prefaced by an audit of the City of 
Lowell’s stormwater program in October of 2019 that resulted in a Notice of Violation from 
NCDEQ.  Staff worked tirelessly on a way to resolve the violation and NCDEQ has accepted the 
City of Lowell’s Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) as of April 7, 2021. This is a 5-year 
plan that coincides with the 5-year MS4 permit. It provides a roadmap of how the City intends to 
address stormwater as it relates to public education, public involvement, illicit discharge and 
detection, construction site runoff control program, post construction site runoff controls, and 
good housekeeping and pollution prevention. The resulting SWMP lists 259 Best Management 
Practices (BMP’s) that we are mandated to carry out for controlling flooding, reducing erosion 
and sedimentation, and improving water quality. The current adopted fee is $6.75/month for all 
residential customers and $6.75/month per 2,827 square feet of impervious surface for all non-
residential customers. This methodology is the most widely used fee structure in the state of 
North Carolina. During the budget retreats and work sessions in 2024, the Council sought to 
bring the fee below $5. The proposed fee for FY25 is $4.75 per residential customer and 
$4.75/ERU.  
Personnel $178,292 
Operations $59,173 
Capital $49,856 
Total $ 287,320 

The proposed FY 24-25 budget contains a 68% decrease from the last fiscal year due to 
reallocation of salaries away from the Stormwater Fund and to the General Fund. The 
unrestricted net position of the Stormwater Department remains $157,227 and the proposed 

145



 Mission Statement     Core Values 
  The City of Lowell delivers          Integrity, Inclusiveness, Transparency, 

   excellent public services through            Fairness, Accountability, & Compassion 
transparent leadership and community 

    engagement. 

revenue from a budgeted fund balance transfer 
of $27,703.35 from FY24 may not be needed 
before June 30, 2024, therefore remaining in the 
fund balance. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

New or expanded expenditures are carefully evaluated and need to be viewed as an investment to 
the City of Lowell.  We must ask ourselves, is this the best use of scarce resources? Can we do it 
another way? Are we willing to decrease service delivery to offset the lack of equipment?  Staff 
will continue to provide an excellent level of service with the addition of needed capital 
investments. 

The total of all capital needs is $95,000 in the proposed FY 2024-2025 Budget. The Water/Sewer 
Fund accounts for 100% of the proposed capital expenditure for a new dump truck to replace a 
1997 model.   

CONCLUSION 

In conclusion, the FY24-FY25 budget reflects our commitment to fiscal responsibility and 
strategic investment in the future of Lowell. Through meticulous planning and collaboration, we 
have crafted a budget that addresses critical needs while ensuring long-term sustainability and 
accomplishing the City Council's Strategic Vision for Lowell. I extend my deepest appreciation 
to the dedicated staff of the City of Lowell whose unwavering commitment and hard work have 
been instrumental in shaping this budget. Their dedication to serving our community is truly 
commendable, and it is their efforts that enable us to fulfill our mission of delivering essential 
services and positioning Lowell for a prosperous future. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Scott Attaway 

City Manager 

146



General Fund Revenue
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget  Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments
Ad Valorem Taxes-Prior Years 27,000 14,760 27,000.00 44,783.69 15,000.00 40,000.00 Prior year delinquent tax payments 
Gross Receipts Rev Tax 100,000 178,919 150,000.00 139,877.43 165,000.00 150,000.00  Rental Car Tax  - added Enterprise in FY 18 
Ad Valorem Taxes 1,522,825 1,562,001 1,559,845.00 1,586,110.65 2,856,534.13 2,885,300.02 Real & Personnal 
Tax Penalties & Interest 2,000 237 2,000.00 2,133.11 250.00 1,500.00 Assessed from Delinquent Taxes
Interest Income 16,000 2,906 12,000.00 1,908.40 5,000.00 150,000.00 Interest Earnings From Cash and Investments

Ballfield Rent 1,881.00 0.00 2,631.00 2,500.00 750.00
Harold Rankin fields(reduced for construction timeline) YMCA would zero 
out

Shelter Rentals 0.00 70.00 150.00 75.00  Harold Rankin shelter (reduced for construction timeline)  
Beer & Wine Tax 17,500 14,546 17,500.00 17,086.90 15,000.00 17,500.00
DMV Tag Tax 31,000 26,560 31,000.00 30,710.00 31,000.00 0.00  3153 Registered Tags ($10.00) REMOVE TAG FEE 
Asset Forfeiture 47 500.00 3,540.31 500.00 1,000.00
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,000 48,317 2,000.00 23,191.30 2,000.00 2,000.00  Unclassified Revenue i.e. Insurance Claims 
Insurance Proceeds 2,000 5,450 2,000.00 3,649.68 2,000.00 2,000.00
Donations Received 0 10,000.00 0.00 10,500.00 500.00
Utilities Franchise Tax 195,000 196,246 195,000.00 211,853.67 195,000.00 210,000.00 % of the revenues derived from sales of utilities

Solid Waste Disposal 2,900 2,838 2,900.00 2,212.76 2,800.00 2,800.00  From State on Per Capita Basis 
Powell Bill Receipts 85,450 102,320 88,000.00 103,274.77 100,000.00 100,000.00  Per Gen Assembly calculation  
Local Sales Tax 535,000 672,917 650,000.00 831,928.66 800,000.00 850,000.00 Local portion of Sales Tax
Zoning Permits 15,000 27,849 20,000.00 12,225.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 Zoning Permit Fees

Plan Review and Inspections 4,645.00 500,000.00 955,437.00
 Willow Creek Meadows (Inspections), Spencer Ridge (Review/Construction 
Inspections), Misc. Commercial, etc 

Development Agreements 0.00 15,000.00 5,250.00 5,250 per agreement
Sanitation Fees 152,000 157,842 239,000.00 227,344.31 240,000.00 240,000.00  Sanitation Service Revenue  
Bulk/Pay as You Throw Fees 1,436.19 1,500.00 3,500.00  Pay as You Throw fees billed to customer 
Other Landfill Fees 2,000 1,823 2,000.00 1,349.53 2,000.00 1,500.00  Rental truck landfill fee reimbursement 
Athletics Revenue 9,675 3,522 3,941.00 7,879.63 8,000.00 0.00 YMCA Partnership to remove revenue

Community Center 1,000 1,160 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 15,000.00
 Based off of 68% of available dates and possible downtime from 
construction 

Festivals & Events 4,500 6,184 7,200.00 7,362.13 6,000.00 7,300.00
 Offer Smaller Events (BBQ Cookoff, Senior Lunches, etc), Includes Caromont 
Grant of $5,500 

Merchandise 824 2,000.00 467.77 500.00 500.00 t-shirts, hats, stickers, mugs, etc
Concessions 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Grants - Recreation 48,156 0 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 250.00
Lease Proceeds 0 0.00
Sales of Fixed Assets 0 8,000.00 9,210.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

Fund Balance Appropriated 0 215,000.00
FB Powell Bill 0.00

Totals $2,916,007 $3,029,148 3,254,386.00 3,741,881.89 5,000,734.13 5,659,163.00

147



Administration
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments

Council 16,000 17,527 $22,100 19,327.00 $31,940 $31,940 Salaries for Six Elected Officials / Travel and Training for Council

Administrative Salaries 325,116 216,441 $323,000 304,375.76 $559,729 $714,619

Admin Salaries-Manager, Planning/Zoning Dir, Planning Technician/Inspections, 
Finance Dir, Clerk, CSR to Utility Billing Manager new grade, CSR/Account Tech, 
Payroll/Payables tech, 30%, GIS (now 50% was 30%), PT Communications 
Director

FICA Expenses 15,309 17,554 $24,710 24,219.97 $42,819 $54,541 7.65% of salaries is FICA expense

Health Insurance 43,023 35,001 $45,000 41,940.99 $56,000 $69,069  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 

Retirement Expenses 22,713 23,001 $39,083 36,059.59 $71,925 $96,962 13.6% of salaries is retirement.  Increased from 12.85% per NC
401(K) Retirement 10,006 9,984 $16,150 14,900.65 $27,986 $35,648 5.0% 401K match
Unemployment Benefits 750 215 $750 618.70 $750 $2,500 No change from FY22

Professional Services 94,663 145,953 $120,000 118,517.23 $120,000 $125,429
Legal ($35,000), Audit ($42,700), NCLM ($4,900), Southern Software Support 
($3,614), Misc. Engineering, Cavanaugh MacDonald ($4,000)(OPEB), Misc.

Engineering Review and Inspections 0.00 $425,000 $812,121 Review and Inspections to on-call engineers
Telephone & Postage 13,900 13,873 $17,500 11,296.90 $18,000 $18,500 VOIP Phones, Cell Phones, Postage, tablet service
Electric Utilities 5,750 5,560 $13,500 7,410.09 $13,600 $14,000 Utilities for City Hall

Travel & Training 7,500 14,032 $29,000 25,772.68 $31,500 $30,000

Professional Development:CZO; City Vision ; Clerk; NCLM; NCCCMA ; ICMA 
Annual ; Planning ; GIS; Southern Software ; Finance ; Tuition Reimbursement 
Program; Clerk Academy; UNCSOG; Leadership Gaston $600

Main. & Repairs - Bldg 9,000 83,228 $16,000 17,301.95 $16,200 $18,000 Facility Use, Downstairs Additional, Council Chambers
Main. & Repairs - Equip 4,000 3,232 $4,000 2,455.89 $7,422 $8,000 General maintenance (HVAC, etc.)
Election Expenses 4,175 4,317 $4,500 0.00 $4,750 $4,800 Per Gaston County Board of Elections
Checking Acct 5,000 6,525 $5,250 5,251.86 $6,550 $6,000 Bank Fees
Advertising 4,000 4,681 $6,000 4,068.70 $6,500 $6,500 Gaston Gazette Legal Fees

Supplies 15,000 17,599 $31,231 30,780.50 $32,000 $36,000
 Office supplies, new copier lease ($2,484), 2 computers, 2 monitors ($7,500), 
2nd copier lease ($2,500), etc 

Auto Fuel 0.00 $2,750 $800  Bronco 

Beautification 5,000 2,744 $14,700 12,200.63 $5,500 $10,000  banners, flowers, downtown improvements 
Christmas Decorations 0.00 $6,000 $6,000 X-mas trees, Christmas décor and repair
Zoning Board 1,800 1,900 $5,100 1,025.00 $5,100 $4,000 Payment to Board Members for Attendance; Training Planning Board $3,000
Code Enforcement 9,000 0 $9,000 0.00 $9,000 $9,000 Inspection Fees / Title Searches / Minimum Housing
LCC/Master Planning Committee 125 0.00 $12,500 $12,500 Façade Grant(s) and other Projects
Rental Expense 9,000 8,700 $9,000 8,355.00 $9,000 $7,140 McCord Park

Contracted Services 80,000 98,556 $115,000 80,131.47 $141,578 $125,000

Master Planning, Architecture, Civil/Plans/Environmental,IT Cyber Security 
Compliance, CodeRed, Cleaning, Archive Social, Polimorphic, C.D.S., YMCA, 
Website, Misc. Comm Software, Misc.

Tax Collection Fees 9,900 14,577 $15,000 19,950.38 $15,000 $22,000  Cost for Gaston County to Collect Taxes *Increase per Gaston County 

Dues & Subscriptions 10,500 11,660 $13,500 8,051.22 $14,000 $14,680
UNCSOG ($550), Centralina, MPO, Montcross, GBA, Civic Orgs, ICMA, 
NCCCMA,CZO, etc.

Insurance & Bonds 7,325 10,182 $8,000 10,548.75 $13,671 $16,000
Estimated workers comp & prop/liability (bronco insurance)* increase per ratio 
of salaries

Miscellaneous Expenses 6,500 2,510 $9,000 9,056.63 $10,000 $10,000  Volunteer dinner, Employee Appreciation, Other Misc 
Capital Outlay - Equip 0 $4,000 0.00
Capital Outlay-Building 0 0.00
Principal Maturities 233.38 $3,422 $3,421 Vehicle for Code Enforcement, stormwater, planning (70%)
Interest on Debt 0 140.04 $410 $341

13,040 $1,576 0.00 Contingency
EDA Repayment 0.00 525,305.00 $509,305 Newell/Npoint Economic Development Agreement Grant
Totals $747,970 $769,675 $996,649 $814,224 $2,245,908 $2,834,636

148



Public Safety
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments

Police Salaries 560,856      507,258      $625,473 642,953.89 $728,047 $716,916 11 Sworn LEO
Police Admin Salaries $44,180 Admin Asst
FICA Expenses 42,905        37,368        $47,849 47,779.88 $55,696 $54,844 7.65% of salaries is FICA expense
FICA Expenses $3,380 7.65% of salaries is FICA expense
Retirement Expenses $6,008 13.6% for non sworn LEO
401(K) Retirement Expense $2,209 5% 401k
401(K) Retirement Expense 28,043        24,070        $31,274 31,790.55 $36,402 $35,846 5.0% 401K match

Health Insurance 131,164      96,947        $135,000 109,045.01 $122,934 $112,876  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 

Retirement Expenses 67,527        59,246        $81,562 86,312.90 $102,655 $108,254
15.1% of salaries is retirement for LEO; increase from 14.10% per NC

Telephone & Postage 8,500           7,683           $11,000 8,386.64 $11,000 $11,550 3 phones, aircards
Electric Utilities Expense 6,000           5,608           $6,000 5,869.10 $6,000 $11,300 Utilities for Office, *Added Fiber $400*12=$4,800

Travel & Training 2,500           3,060           $5,500 4,909.13 $12,500 $12,000
Training and meal reimbursement / Tuition reimbursement 4k, Specialized 
Training

Main & Repairs - Bldg 1,000           1,282           $1,000 35.98 $1,000 $1,000 Maintenance for Building

Main & Repairs - Equip 1,000           1,762           $2,279 458.50 $2,500 $2,500
Copier Contract, Hand Held & In Car Radios, Radars +5% anticipated increase 
from Motorola maintenance. +5% anticipated increase.

Main & Repairs - Autos 15,300        16,867        $15,300 16,898.58 $14,650 $16,005 Vehicle Maintenance
Automotive Supplies / Fuel 30,000        40,239        $37,000 37,384.65 $44,334 $43,648 Wex contract for 11 officers; carwash

Departmental Supplies 23,000        37,415        $26,839 28,729.60 $26,500 $20,000 Office Supplies/copier/ammo/misc IT supplies
Police Uniforms 7,051           6,384           $9,085 7,755.79 $8,575 $9,000 Replace 4 vests due to expire, Uniforms, Boots, Duty Gear

Contracted Services 6,200           8,111           $11,200 6,883.48 $35,630 $43,949

Cleaning Contract $3,900, Southern Software RMS Annual Support, Verizon 
Connect (GPS for vehicles)$3,432; $33,134.84 payment to Gaston County and 
Gastonia for RMS, $2,782 Southern, misc.

Dues & Subscriptions 332              340              $850 150.00 $850 $2,250
DCI Fee $150 per car, Gaston County Law Enforcement Assoc, Chief 
memberships

Insurance & Bonds 20,865        8,837           $26,000 33,170.23 $13,671 $14,500 Estimated workers comp & prop/liability
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,100           2,251           $4,500 4,549.64 $3,500 $5,500 National Night Out and Miscellaneous expenses, Recruitment Program  
Asset Forfeiture -               $500 510.00

Capital Outlay 34,209        15,833        $5,374 0.00 $45,067 $5,578  $5373.92 for body cams through fy25-26

Principal Maturities 54,276        47,021        $77,964 69,978.46 $51,919 $85,085

Generator ($2,431), Police Radios ($12,826), Police Vehicles ($12,066), Police 
Computers ($6,646.96) Enterprise ($20,351) 3 police vehicles for 2 new 
positions ($23,643)+ 2024 debt ($25,250.17)

Interest on Debt 2,299           2,333           $3,515 3,011.16 $1,786 $5,908

Generator ($165), Police Radios ($512), Police Vehicles ($623), Police Computers 
($426.51), 3 police vehicles for 2 new positions ($1,788), 2024 interest 
($4,708.61)

Fire Protection 292,059      -               0.00 * County Fire District began FY 23
Totals $1,337,185 $929,913 $1,165,063 $1,146,563 $1,325,215 $1,374,286

149



Streets
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanation/Comments

Salaries and wages 71,017 61,336 81,050 55,433.72 $106,540 $149,483
Salaries & Wages (add new position that is 50/50 split 
with Stormwater)

FICA Expenses 5,433 4,324 6,200 4,072.86 8,150 11,435 Employer FICA (7.65% of wages)

Health Insurance 17,473 16,037 21,000 10,035.33 $19,849 $29,644  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 

Retirement Expenses 8,060 7,445 9,807 6,707.41 $13,690 $20,330
13.6% of salaries is retirement. Increase from 12.85% per 
NC

401(K) Retirement 3,551 2,938 4,053 2,771.72 $5,327 $7,474 5% of salaries is 401(K) expense
Professional Services 0 0.00
Utilities 61,000 48,185 57,258 62,937.05 54,600 58,000 Utilities, Streetlights, etc.
Travel & Training 500 92 500 400.04 $500 $2,490 Training; NCDOA Pest License
Maint & Repairs-Building 1,500 1,306 8,500 6.94 $1,500 $1,500 Repair, Misc.

Maint & Repairs-Equipment 11,000 5,775 11,000 6,150.91 $11,550 $11,550 Mower maintenance, misc. equipment maintenance
Maint & Repairs-Trucks 7,000 4,588 15,000 6,998.26 $8,000 $8,000 Reg repairs, wash
Automotive Supplies/Fuel 10,000 16,994 15,000 17,965.54 $15,500 17,500.00 Fuel increase and auto supplies
Departmental Supplies 15,000 11,346 18,000 14,365.99 $16,000 $16,000 Signage, Materials, etc
Uniforms 3,600 3,971 3,600 742.22 $3,980 $1,600 Uniform contract; 5% increase uniform

Contracted Services 37,000 14,954 77,000 13,384.61 $15,000 $31,230
Includes Verizon Connect  tablets, tablet service, 
crosswalks, striping/marking

Insurance & Bonds 10,000 4,835 10,000 8,325.52 $13,671 $13,800  NCLM 
Miscellaneous 1,000 916 1,000 200.00 $1,000 $1,000
Capital Outlay-Improvement 0 0.00
Capital Outlay-Equipment 0 3,300 0.00

Principal Maturities 11,990 15,309 12,193 12,514.54 $22,033 $10,830
2019 Chevy 1500 paid in full in 2024,F-750 Dump Truck 
($6750.26), 2023 Capital ($2025.38), need 2024 Capital

Interest 954 1,437 752 945.05 $1,295 $900
F-750 Dump Truck ($315.03), 2023 Capital ($201.80),
need 2024 capital

Totals $276,078 $221,788 355,212$             223,958$             318,186$             392,766$                 

150



Powell Bill
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments
Professional Services 2,000$          936$                2,000$           $             829  $            2,000  $ 2,000 Engineering and Surveying
Departmental Supplies 1,175$            3,000$           $          3,019  $            3,000  $ 3,000 Directional Signs, cones, lights, caution tape 
Sidewalks 20,000$        150$                46,000$         $        16,600  $          44,090  $ 15,000 Sidewalk Repair
Contracted Maintenance 65,000$        177,704$        35,000$         $        15,555  $          45,000  $ 20,000 Street Repairs not water and sewer related
Miscellaneous -$                  $ -   
Cap. Outlay - Other Imp. -$                  $ -   Downtown Improvements 

Cap. Outlay - Equipment  $ -    $            5,910 
City Signs 2,000$          2,000$            2,000$           $ -   Signs
Transfer to Capital Project  $ 60,000 Road Projects combined with fund balance

Totals 89,000$        181,965$        88,000$        36,002$        100,000$        100,000$                  

151



Sanitation
FY 21 FY 21 FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments
Sanitation Salaries 65,876   84,167    95,745     89,721    $115,630 113,802.37 $123,000 $127,744 Salaries & Wages
FICA Expenses 4,993      6,356       7,324       6,697       $8,846 8,557.93 $9,410 $9,772 Employer FICA (7.65% of wages)

Health Insurance 15,586   17,497    19,642     21,169    $18,000 21,641.66 $23,215 $21,755  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 

Retirement 4,761      7,390       10,867     9,009       $13,991 11,936.73 $15,806 $17,373
13.6% of salaries retirement. Increased from 12.85% per 
NC

401K 2,254      3,640       4,787       3,969       $5,782 4,932.44 $6,150 $6,387 5.0% 401K match
Main. & Repairs 12,000   26,991    12,000     15,692    $16,500 13,837.70 $18,000 $18,000 Maintenance to Trash Truck, Tires twice per year
Automotive/Fuel 9,100      12,049    9,500       13,533    $10,500 13,512.65 $12,000 $14,000 Fuel for Trash Truck
Departmental Supplies 6,500      5,757       6,500       7,498       $10,770 19,851.53 $7,700 $7,500 General Supplies
Recycling/Contract Svcs 14,500   26,777    14,500     29,855    $45,000 29,014.18 $30,000 $31,500 Recycling Costs are 28-30k 

Landfill Tipping Fees 44,253   52,589    45,000     46,173    $50,000 45,500.93 $52,500 $62,000
Cost of Landfill Disposal; Increase Proposed by GC; Bulk 
increase pickup; Add $500/month for monthly bulk

Insurance & Bonds 5,000      7,476       5,000       3,117       $5,000 10,834.70 $13,671 $13,500 Estimated workers comp & prop/liability
Miscellaneous 500         536          243          $500 307.53 $500 $500 Small Miscellaneous Uncatagorized Expenses
Capital Outlay 35,850   125,287  $300.00 0.00
Principal Maturities 7,656       30,929     30,929    $31,424 31,423.87 $31,926 $32,437 New Trash Truck Payment
Interest on Debt 765          2,753       2,753       $2,259 2,258.77 $1,756 $1,245 Interest paid on trash truck

Totals $221,173 $384,933 $264,548 280,658  $334,201 $327,413 $345,634 $363,714

152



Parks & Recreation
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments

Salaries 75,716     52,517    60,000.00    54,600.34 102,730.00               104,100.00 
1 full-time position and 1 PT Gym/Athletics Supervisor, 1 PT 10 hour 
Maintainence Tech position

FICA 4,262       4,018      4,590.00       4,176.92 7,858.85 7,963.65 7.65% of salaries is FICA expense
Health Insurance -           0.00 8,463.60 8,463.60  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 
Retirement 3,991       4,377      7,260.00       5,132.65 13,200.81                 14,157.60 13.6% of salaries is retirement
401(K) -           - 0.00 5,136.50 5,205.00 5.0% 401K match
Telephone & Postage 2,800       1,501      2,800.00       1,512.50 3,400.00 4,570.00 Cell Phone ($720) / VOIP Line ($2,340) and postage/misc. $349
CC Telephone & Postage
Utilities Harold Rankin 5,000       5,111      5,000.00       6,052.87 5,000.00 6,100.00  Utilities at Recreation Facilities  
Utilities Community Center 4,500       4,013      5,000.00       3,981.89 5,000.00 4,400.00  Utilities at Community Center *Simplisafe Security 
Utilities Recreation Center                 22,395.00 *New Dominion, Duke ($4,500), AT&T, Fire Monitoring/Security

Travel & Training 1,500       315          1,500.00       575.00 5,000.00 3,000.00  Conferences ($2,000), Training, Memberships (NCRPA $205, NCFE $156) 

Main.& Repairs 51,906     7,463      11,000.00    10,680.91 16,600.00                 16,600.00 Field Surfacing (4k), Fire Ant Treatment (1600), Mulch (3K,) Misc, Repairs (5K);

Main.& Repairs CC (385)        100,000.00  48,946.38 5,000.00 5,000.00  Community Center Repairs, misc.  

Main.& Repairs RC

P&R Vehicle Repairs 250.00 
Automotive Fuel*Change to 
Auto Expenses 750          -           750.00          151.80 750.00 800.00  Fuel for Truck and Reimbursement money to Staff in the event truck is in use 

Supplies 4,500       1,897      4,500.00       4,237.42 5,000.00                 11,700.00 
 Field Chalk, staff shirts, Basic Office Supplies, Cleaners, 2 New Computers; 
Retractable Bed Cover $1,500, Advanced Copier $3,600 lease 

Athletics 7,000       3,845      7,000.00       9,225.57 9,000.00 -   
 Stack Sports Fees, Uniforms for 3 seasons, League Fees, Umpire Fees, baseball 
Equipment; not budgeted due to YMCA 

Special Events 16,400     18,668    30,350.00    22,031.12 40,000.00 42,000.00                Community Events, *increased cost for food and enlarged events* 
Contracted Services 22,000     17,750    67,060.00    6,785.00 5,800.00                 19,300.00 Terminix ($1850), Cleaning CC, Cleaning Recreation Center
Insurance & Bonds 2,900       2,727      2,900.00       3,404.20 13,671.00 $13,671  Estimated workers comp & prop/liability
Capital Outlay -           5,550.00       0.00
Principal Maturities -           811.41 4,981.40 5,096.31 Ford Ranger Principal
Interest on Debt 0 486.91 596.06 507.78 Ford Ranger Interest

Totals $203,225 123,818  $315,260 $182,792.89 257,188.22 295,279.94

153



Water/Sewer Utility Fund 
Revenues

FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025
Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments

Interest-Investments 5 8 5 248.91 $5 $30,000 Increased interest yield*
Loan Proceeds 0 0.00 $0
Miscellaneous Income 2,500 4,814 18,000 22,520.30 $21,000 $204,400 Debt Setoff; Meter Set Fee ($350*584=$17,500)
Water Revenue 728,228 640,623 852,026 803,331.93 $850,104 $947,866 increase of 6% and 4% increase for growth
Sewer Revenue 550,868 557,300 662,676 639,880.51 $665,380 $741,898 increase of 3% and 4% increase for growth

Water Tap Fees 4,000 6,000 5,000 2,500.00 $5,500 $5,000 Based on 5 taps ($1000 per tap):

Sewer Tap Fees 5,000 5,200 6,875 1,250.00 $6,720 $6,875 Based on 5 taps ($1375 per tap)
System Development Fee-Water 10,000 8,100 27,000 30,780.00 $32,400 $315,360  ($540 per home) 584
System Development Fee-Sewer 24,000 15,600 95,500 114,600.00 $114,600 $1,115,440 ($1910 per home) 584
Reconnects & Late Fee 15,000 46,695 15,000 59,406.51 $42,000 $50,000 Reconnects and Late Fees

Activation Fee 10,000 11,732 10,000 15,450.00 $18,000 $22,500
New Customer Activation Fee $18k normal + 
70*50=3500

Fund Balance Appropriated 0 0.00
Sale of Fixed Assets 0 4000 0.00 Surplus vehicle

Totals $1,384,601 $1,296,071 1,696,082.00$   1,689,968.16$   1,755,709.24$   3,439,340.00$             

154



Water and Sewer
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanation/Comments

Salaries 224,906      226,788      $301,900 292,244.89 $343,204 $381,495 5 FT Employees @100%; 45% PW Director
FICA 17,205         16,662         $23,095 21,553.90 $26,255 $29,184 7.65% of salaries is FICA expense

Health Insurance 50,163         40,508         $66,000 52,691.04 $54,984 $60,770  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 

Retirement 25,527         $36,530 35,361.73 $44,102 $51,883 13.6% of salaries is retirement. Increase from 12.85%
401(K) 11,245         10,852         $15,095 14,612.50 $17,160 $19,075 5.0% 401K match
Professional Services 35,000         47,646         $40,000 30,033.13 $40,000 $22,000 Inspections Engineering

Telephone & Postage 12,450         10,901         $7,000 14,703.22 $11,000 $18,000

Postage Water Bills & Cell Phones and Desk Phones (50% of 
postage due to SW, add tablets and service) Increase in 
Postage*

Electric Utilities 18,500         13,432         $20,000 15,934.52 $18,000 For all facillities i.e. lift stations
Travel & Training 1,000           382              $2,000 920.69 $3,000 $3,000 Water and Sewer Certification classes and testing 
Main. & Repairs 24,000         29,322         $30,000 26,531.53 $30,000 $20,000 In-House and outsource repairs / Lift Stations
Main. & Repairs Trucks 65                1,161.72 $10,000 added
Checking Acct Expense 1,500           115              $1,500 1,730.54 $1,500 $3,900 Bank Fees
Automotive Suplies (Fuel) 10,000         11,216         $18,500 10,954.42 $18,500 $15,000 Wex fuel Contract

Supplies 34,058         56,455         $40,000 59,660.57 $50,000 $99,777
Repair parts, supplies and tools; Water meters parts 
increase offset by SW materials being expensed to that fund

Uniforms 3,000           199              $3,000 1,569.53 $3,000 $3,000 Uniform Contract

Contracted Services 34,000         52,194         $82,224 97,866.23 $75,000 $75,000
Outsourced repairs, Lift Station Pump and Haul; Mueller 
$18,915; Sentryx

Water Purchase 434,000      411,564      $460,000 451,443.13 $475,000 $542,380
Water purchased from TRU, 7.5% TRU increase, 10% 
customer base increase

Sewer Treatment 80,010         71,781         $85,000 61,600.08 $85,000 $72,000 Fair Street Lift Station - TRU, 7.5% increase TRU
Dues & Subscriptions 2,500           3,696           $2,800 2,543.00 $3,250 $3,100 NCRWA,WPCSOCC,AWWA,DWR
Insurance & Bonds 12,895         8,961           $12,895 13,987.60 $20,506 $21,000 Estimated workers comp & prop/liability
Misc Expenses $3,500 Violations/Fines from spills
USE SDF for system wide repairs 
and expansion $1,430,800 Per CIP and statute

Capital Outlay-Equipment 39,644         19,006         $8,400 0.00 $13,716 $25,081
2023 F-650 Dump Truck ($17,249.28 principal) and 
($4208.28 interest)

Prin. Maturities $39,494 39,971.15 $47,261 57,213.04

2019 3500-Paid in full; Push Cam ($1272.68); Jet Vac 
($6474.25); Water Meters ($20276.90); Backhoe loader 
($7456.09); 2023 Capital ($7607.62); 2024 Capital 
($15152.79) Total $58240.33

Interest on Debt 21,916         38,229         $17,789 19,052.82 $18,283 19,768.78

Push Cam ($28.06); Jet Vac ($248.59); Water meters 
($15782.96); Backhoe loader ($317.07); 2023 Capital 
($757.99); 2024 Capital ($2825.67). Total $19960.34

Contingency 0.00
Totals 1,093,520   1,069,973   $1,313,222 $1,266,128 $1,380,721 $3,004,928

155



Wastewater
Treatment Plant

FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025
Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanation/Comments

Professional Services 4,000               11,989             10,000$             527.63 10,000$         $10,000 Engineering
Telephone and Internet 780 277 800$  6,856.67 800$               $1,000 Land Line, Fax, Internet, Mix Network
Electric Utilities 37,000             29,229             40,000$             34,225.92 40,000$         $40,000 Looked at Current Year Duke Billing
Maint-Buildings & Grounds 13,000             208 69,967$             0.00 62,092$         $81,956 Sandblast and Paint Building/CIP Related/Maint update
Maint & Repair-Equipment 10,000             15,789             10,000$             13,441.55 10,000$         $15,000 WWTP Repairs

Chemical Supplies 35,000             33,612              $            40,000 36,478.46  $         40,000 $47,500
 Atco, Jones Chemical, Univar, Maryland Biochemical,  Bio Chem 
Resources*increase 

Departmental Supplies 4,500               8,266               9,000$               10,277.47 9,000$           $10,000 Bluebook Purchases 
Contract Services 48,000             42,730             55,180$             54,842.50 55,180$         $62,000 Plant Operator 
Sampling and Analysis 45,000             48,931             48,000$             48,498.00 48,000$         $52,400 K&W Labs Increased sampling cost
Sludge Disposal 45,000             15,296             45,000$             31,134.62 45,000$         $45,000 EMA Pump and Haul plus Republic Services Dumpsters

Contract Maintenance 35,000             3,775                $            40,000 20,169.50  $         40,000 $40,000
  Kemp Inc, Snyder Tech, Piedmont Chlorinator, Fortech, LB Electric, Kemp Inc 
(dry-bed maintenance) 

Dues and Subscriptions 1,470               1,820               1,500$               1,820.00 1,500$           $1,820 Required Dues to State NCDEQ
Miscellaneous 500 378 1,000$               1,628.16 1,000$           $1,000 Misc
Insurance & Bonds 2,415               2,727               3,000$               3,246.74 3,000$           $3,000 Estimated workers comp & prop/liability
Capital Outlay 0.00
Principal on Debt 8,658               8,658                $              8,851 8,854.05 $9,054 $9,259  ($8,851) WWTP Pump  
Interest on Debt 758$                758$                562$  561.75 $361 $157 WWTP Pump ($562)

Totals 291,081          224,442          382,860$          272,563$          374,988$       420,092$                 

156



Stormwater Utility Fund Revenues
FY 2021-22 FY 2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Line Item Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments

Fees 337,919.00 312,116.99 392,919.00 397,270.63 395,571.09 287,120.40 Stormwater Fees
Fund Balance Appropriated 0.00 27,703.35 for Stormwater Repairs
Stormwater Merchandise 57.00 500.00 200.00

Totals $337,919 $312,117 $392,919 $397,328 $423,774 287,320.40$          

157



Stormwater
FY 22 FY 22 FY 23 FY 23 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

Acct Description Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Proposed Budget Explanations/Comments

Salaries 88,173$  72,448$     170,630$  139,551.40  $       209,573  $                124,816 
Salaries & Wages; Reclassify existing staff percentages away from SW fund; 20% GIS; 
15% Both UB employees; 15% PW Director; 50/50 Streets Position

FICA 6,745$     5,448$       13,053$     10,420.64 16,032$          9,548$                    Employer FICA (7.65% of wages)

Health Insurance 21,060$  16,195$     40,000$     21,952.80  $          34,894 $19,211  Health, Dental, Vision, Life, AD 
Retirement 10,008$  8,006$        $    20,646 16,885.83  $          26,930  $                  16,975 13.6% of salaries is retirement. Increase from 12.10%
401(K) 4,409$     2,996$       8,532$       6,977.40 10,479$          6,241$                    5% of salaries is 401(K) expense
Professional Services 50,000$  7,861$       32,302$     0.00 5,000$            13,000$                  Engineering, Mapping of infrastructure/outfalls, SWMP/CIP; BRIC App

Postage 500$        3,514$        $       5,000 5,673.98  $            7,000  $                    9,325 BMP #'s mailers, Utility bills increase

Travel & Training 1,750$     -$                3,100$       419.30  $            1,000  $                    1,000 Swater Finance and Budgeting, Other training and travel
Main. & Repairs 15,000$  618$           $    15,774 2,020.00  $          24,122  $                  20,647 Grates, Pipes, Boxes, Repairs; In house repairs
Checking Acct Expense 1,500$     76$             1,500$       0.00 250$                50$         BB&T Fees for Utility Fund
Automotive Supplies (Fuel) 3,500$     -$                4,000$       530.82 2,000$            800$                        Auto fuel; (Using 35% of PW Fuel* ); wash

Supplies 8,500$     1,952$        $    10,501 10,524.17  $          10,500  $                    9,500 10 Spill Kits ($550), Educational Materials, Promo materials for events*
Contracted Services -$                 $    25,000 3,638.48  $          14,000  $                    3,201 Verizon, outsourced repairs, misc.

Dues & Subscriptions 1,350$     1,610$       2,169$       2,124.25  $            2,250  $                    1,650 Permit Fee ($860) and Regional SW Partnership Dues ($825) 
Insurance & Bonds 1,948$       120.77 6,835$            1,500$                    WC and Prop Liability

Capital Outlay 1,181$       2,220$       0.00 12,043$          

Prin. Maturities 31,547$  28,936$     36,081$     36,671.35  $          38,721 46,110.00

Leaf Vac 100% ($14,506.69), Backhoe 50% ($7456.09), F-750 Dump Truck 40% 
($4,500.17), Jet Vac 40% ($4,316), Push Cam 50% ($1272.68) Bronco, +$13,320.81 for 
2024 debt, $1,764.50 for 2023 debt

Interest on Debt 2,730$     2,450$       2,481$       2,835.30  $            2,145  $                    3,746 

Leaf Vac ($557.03), Backhoe 50% ($317.07), F-750 Dump Truck 40% ($210), Jet Vac 
40% ($166), Push Cam 50% ($28.06) Bronco, $2,484.04 for 2024 interest, ($175.81) 
for 2023 interest

Anticipated Fund Balance 
Transfer 157,731$  0.00

Totals $246,771 $312,971 392,989$  260,346$     423,774$        287,320$                

158



WATER SEWER FUND Cost Priority FY Useful Life Explanation Annual Payment Terms

Dump Truck $95,000.00 High 24/25 10 years Dump truck needed to replace the 1997 F800 25,081.00 5 years

TOTAL $95,000.00 25,081.00

New Capital Expenses

159



Budget Ordinance-Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
City of Lowell 

     BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina: 

     Section 1:  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the 
operation of the city government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 
and ending June 30, 2025, in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore established for 
this City: 

Purpose Amount 
Administration $2,834,636 
Public Safety $1,374,286 
Public Works $392,766 
Sanitation $363,715 
Parks and Recreation $295,280 
Powell Bill $100,000 
Community Investment Fund (CIF) Capital Projects $298,480 
Total Appropriations $5,659,163 

     Section 2:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the General 
Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025: 

Revenue Source Amount 
Current year Property Tax & Vehicle Motor Tax $2,926,800 
Local Sales Tax $850,000 
Fees for Services $1,243,813 
Powell Bill for Streets $100,000 
All other revenues $1,338,550 
Total Revenues $5,659,163 

      Section 3:  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Water and Sewer Fund 
for the operation of the water and sewer utilities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 
and ending June 30, 2025, in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore approved for 
the City: 

Purpose Amount 
Water & Sewer Collection & Distribution $3,004,928 
Wastewater Treatment $420,092 
Total Appropriations $3,439,340 

  Section 4:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Water 
and Sewer Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025: 
Revenue Source Amount 
Water User Charges $947,866 

160



Wastewater User Charges $741,898 
All Other $1,749,576 
Total Revenues $3,439,340 

     Section 5:  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Stormwater Utility 
Fund for the operation of the stormwater department for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2024 and ending June 30, 2025, in accordance with the chart of accounts heretofore approved 
for the City: 

Purpose Amount 
Stormwater Personnel $178,292 
Operation and Maintenance $59,173 
Debt Service $49,855 
Total Appropriations $287,320 

     Section 6:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Stormwater 
Utility Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025: 

Revenue Source Amount 
Stormwater User Fees $287,120 
Stormwater Merchandise $200 
Total Revenues $287,320 

     Section 7:  There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of forty-three and a half cents ($0.435) 
per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of property as listed for taxes as of January 1, 2024, 
for the purpose of raising the revenue listed “Current Year’s Property Taxes” in the General 
Fund in Section 2 of this ordinance. 

     This rate is based on estimated total valuation of taxable real property and motor vehicles 
within the city limits totaling $611,852,757 based on a 99% rate of collection, and the 
estimated taxable value of Public Service Companies of $20,072,360 with a 100% collection 
rate, and the estimated total taxable value of personal property listed in the corporate limits of 
$37,448,877 at an estimated collection rate of 99%. 

     Section 8:  A registration tag fee of $10.00 per vehicle will be removed and not collected 
beginning FY25. 

     Section 9:  The City Manager or a designee is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations 
as contained herein under the following conditions: 

a. Transfers between line-item expenditures within a department without limitation
and without a report being required. These changes must not result in increases in
recurring obligations such as salaries.

b. Transfers between departments within the same fund, including contingency
appropriations, not to exceed 10% of the appropriated monies for the department

161



whose allocation is reduced. Notice of all such transfers shall be made to the 
Council at the next regular meeting of the Council. 

c. The budget officer is hereby authorized to carry over appropriations in the fiscal
year any previously approved purchase orders and accompanying budget

d. Grant funding not depleted during the prior fiscal year may be carried over with
the City Manager's approval. Special Revenue funding not depleted during the
prior fiscal year may be carried over with the City Manager's approval.

e. Transfer $298,480 to the Community Investment Fund (CIF).
f. Excess revenues above the 50% General Fund Balance goal shall be transferred to

the Community Investment Fund (CIF).

     Section 10:  The City Manager or a designee may make cash advances between funds for 
periods not to exceed 60 days without reporting to the Governing Board. Any advances that 
extend beyond 60 days must be approved by the Board. All advances that will be outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year must be approved by the Board. 

     Section 11:  Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to the Board 
and to the Budget Officer and Finance Officer to be kept on file by them for their direction in 
the disbursement of funds. 

     Section 12:  The attached document entitled, “Rates, Fees and Charges FY 2024-2025” is 
hereby incorporated and adopted as part of this ordinance.  

     Section 13:  The attached document entitled, “City of Lowell Classification and Pay 
Update” is hereby incorporated and adopted as part of this ordinance. 

Adopted this __th day of June, 2024. 

________________________________ 
  Larry Simonds, Mayor  

________________________________ 
Mayor Temp Scott Bates   

  ________________________________ 
Councilmember Phil Bonham 

162



 
Attest: 
 
         ________________________________ 
________________________________       Councilmember DeWayne Chitwood 
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk        
        
         ________________________________ 
                   Councilmember Shane Robinson 
        
 
         ________________________________ 
                         Councilmember Travis Smith 

163



 CITY OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA
FY 2024-2025 Proposed Rates Fees, and 

Charges (Proposed changes shown in red) 

1

WATER RATES 

RESIDENTIAL Inside City Limits Outside City Limits 

Minimum 1,500 Gallons $11.67 12.37 $23.34 24.74 

Per 1,000 Gallons after Minimum $8.96 9.50 $17.92 19.00 

COMMERCIAL 

Minimum 1,500 Gallons $16.32 17.30 $32.63 34.59 

Per 1,000 Gallons after Minimum $11.86 12.57 $23.76 25.15 

IRRIGATION 

Per 1,000 Gallons $7.37 7.81 $7.37 7.81 

SEWER RATES 

RESIDENTIAL Inside City Limits Outside City Limits 

Minimum 1,500 Gallons $13.03 13.42 $26.04 26.82 

Per 1,000 Gallons after Minimum $7.68 7.91 $15.38 15.84 

COMMERCIAL 

Minimum 1,500 Gallons $18.22 18.77 $28.34 29.19 

Per 1,000 Gallons after Minimum $9.80 10.09 $15.99 16.47 

SEWER CUSTOMER ONLY 

Per 1,000 Gallons $13.29 13.68 $13.29 13.68 

SEPTIC SEWER - Minimum $4.84 

Per 1,000 Gallons $2.86 2.94 $2.86 2.94 

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT FEE (SDF)  ***No System Development Fees for Fire Protection Meters*** 

Water Tap Size Water Fee Sewer Fee 

¾ in $540 $1,910 

1 in $1,350 $4,775 

164



165



CITY OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA 

FY 2023-2024 Adopted Rates, Fees, and Charges 

GARBAGE COLLECTION CHARGES 

RESIDENTIAL 

Roll Cart (1) $12.00 

Each Additional Roll Cart $8.00 

COMMERCIAL 

Roll Cart (1) $22.00 

Each Additional Roll Cart $22.00 

BULK ITEMS CHARGES 

Electronic s Curbside Collection (per Item) $25.00 

White Goods/Appliances Collection (per item) $25.00 

Tires ON RIM (per tire) $8.00 

Tires OFF RIM (per tire) $5.00 

Excess Household Trash, Less Than or Equal to 1 00lbs $15.00 

Excess Household Trash, Greater than 100 lbs. $25.00 

Excess Household Trash, Greater than 300 lbs. Work will require heavy equipment removal and will be billed 
according to equipment costs. 

STORMWATER CHARGES (BILLED MONTHLY) 

Residential Stormwater Charge 

Non-Residential Stormwater Charge 

$6.75 $4.75

$6. 75 $4.75 PER 2,827 square feet of impervious 

surface 

MISCELLANEOUS UTILITY SERVICE CHARGES 

New Account Activation Fee $50.00 

Deposit (Waived for homeowners - but must show proof of $150.00 
ownership) 

Penalty/ Late Fee - If not paid by due date on bill $5.00 

Returned Item Fee $30.00 

Delinquent Service Charge (Scheduled for Cut-Off) $50.00 

Water Meter Calibration Request (Defective meter replaced free $10.00 
of charge) 

Page 3 of 8 

166



167



168



169



170



171



 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LOWELL 
 
 

CLASSIFICATION AND PAY UPDATE 
 
 

APRIL 2024 
 
 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 
The Management and Personnel Services Group 

(MAPS) Inc. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

172



STUDY METHODOLOGY 
 

This study updates the classification and pay plan for the City of Lowell.  The MAPS Group 
has conducted previous studies for the City, the most recent being April 2021. 
 

Classification.  The study assigns positions to classifications based on their degree of 
similarity and difference in the following factors: 
 

* difficulty of work (complexity and variety); 
* judgement and responsibility; 
* education and experience requirements; 
* nature and extent of public contact; 
* physical effort and hazards; and  
* supervision given and received. 

 
Compensation.  As part of this study, recommendations are being made for a salary 

schedule, position classification plan, and costs for implementing the salary plan.  In selecting which 
classes to survey for salary comparisons, we chose at least one entry level and one supervisory 
position in each occupational series.  We then evaluated salary data to determine if there was a 
comparable position and whether the position was stronger or weaker in terms of scope of 
responsibilities.   
 

The labor market was selected to provide the following information: 
 

 * the prevailing rate of pay in the immediate geographic area; 
 * comparison of jobs similar to those in the City of Lowell; and 
 * prevailing rates of pay with employers who directly compete with the City for the 

 same or similar pool of workers with specific job skills. 
 

The prevailing rate of pay in the immediate geographic area is important because these wage 
rates reflect the cost of living in the area and the employment rate.  Employers in the same 
geographic area who hire for similar jobs are also those employers with whom the City competes 
most directly for skilled workers.  Setting competitive salaries that allow the City to hire qualified 
employees and retain the experienced and valuable workforce it has are important components of 
any salary survey.  Salary grade assignments are based on an analysis of the labor market as to 
which comparison positions are stronger, weaker, and the closest match, and on reporting 
relationships of which positions within the City are stronger, weaker, and similar and the degree of 
these differences. 
 
  
  

173



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAY PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION  
 

Overview 

174



 
MAPS conducted a market survey of minimum and maximum salaries for the selected jobs.  Range 
percentages (the difference between the minimum and maximum of the range) varied as follows: 
 

Belmont     50% 
   Bessemer Cityi    50% 

Dallas      50% 
Forest City     50% 

   Gastonia     varies 
Kings Mountain    50% 
Mt. Holly     50% 
Shelby      52% 
Gaston County    70% 

 
Average     53.14% 
 
Lowell Recommended   55% 

 
The salary ranges in the recommended pay table are approximately 55% from hiring to maximum 
salary.  Grades 5% apart have been established.  An open range salary schedule has been 
recommended to provide flexibility in providing in-range salary increases.  These ranges provide for 
employee advancement as a result of increased value to the City because of increased experience, 
and as an incentive and reward for increased performance.  When annual market adjustments (cost 
of living adjustments) are made to pay ranges to account for inflation and local labor market changes, 
the whole table should reflect the adjustment, thus maintaining competitive entry rates of pay.  A 
linked spreadsheet has been provided to the City to facilitate this process. 
 
Compression.   Normally, given the seniority of City employees, one would expect to find half of the 
City’s employees below Midpoint and half above Midpoint.  When this is not the case, as we have 
found, we call this a compressed distribution.  There are two primary disadvantages to a compressed 
distribution.  The first is that long term high performing employees are making the same pay or nearly 
the same pay as employees with less tenure.  There are often morale problems associated with this 
and it can lead to turnover.  The second problem is that when the City has the opportunity to hire 
highly qualified candidates, it is very difficult to offer such prospects salaries above entry level when 
employees with a number of years of service are compensated near those same entry levels.   
 

Implementation Strategy 
 
Option I: 
 
Employee salaries are adjusted to at least the Hiring Rate of the new range and at least at the 
Minimum of the range if the employee has passed probation, consistent with the personnel policy 
recommendation.  In addition, employees are moved into the range based on 1/4% per year of 
service in their current position.  
 

Initial cost to implement Option I   $24,464 for a full year 
Cost as a percentage of payroll      1.2% 

Option II: 
 
In this option employees are adjusted to at least the Hiring Rate of the new range and at least at the 
Minimum of the range if the employee has passed probation.  In addition, employees are moved into 
the range based on 1/2% per year of service in their current position.   

175



 
Initial cost to implement Option II   $26,213 for a full year 
Cost as a percentage of payroll      1.3% 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Because of the minor impact of the cost of implementation, we recommend Option II be considered 
the desired implementation strategy.  Employees should be placed in the new pay ranges at the 
beginning of the fiscal year and receive any associated change in pay.  The full cost to implement 
Option II will need to be included in the FY2025 budget.     
 
Additionally, it is also recommended that the City maintain its practice of granting a cost of living 
adjustment for its employees.  While this adjustment may typically be implemented effective July 1, 
the cost of living adjustment for FY2025 could be deferred to later in the fiscal year, perhaps until 
January 1, 2025, to reduce overall personnel costs for FY2025.  At the time any cost of living 
adjustment may be granted, it is strongly recommended that the City adjust the pay ranges by the 
same amount as the cost of living adjustment to take into account movement of pay ranges at other 
jurisdictions that were used for study comparisons.  Additionally, based on discussions with the City 
Manager, the City of Lowell is to be commended for utilizing merit pay for its employees and it is 
recommended that merit pay also be incorporated into the FY2025 budget.   
 
Because the recommendations are based on jobs, not people, we also recommend that the City 
Manager have the authority to withold or delay increases for any individual employee where there 
are documented disciplinary actions indicating that the employee is not fulfilling job requirements. 
 
Important Notes:   
 
1. The costs identified above reflect the annual implementation cost.    
 
2. The costs reflected above represent salary cost only and do not reflect the cost of benefits 

associated with salaries. 
 
3. The ranges recommended are competitive as of now.  Effective July 1, 2024, many of the 

same organizations we surveyed will adjust their ranges with market adjustments/cost of 
living adjustments.  This means that if the City does not also adjust the ranges each year, the 
ranges will fall behind the City’s competition. 

 
   
 
 
 
 

176



City of Lowell
List of Classifications by Grade

`

FLSA HIRING
GRADE CLASSIFICATION STATUS RATE MAXIMUM

8 Sanitation Technician 33,771 52,345

9 Public Works Technician I 35,460 54,963
Utility Accounts Technician

10 Public Works Technician II 37,233 57,711

11 Sanitation Equipment Operator 39,095 60,597

12 Administrative Assistant 41,050 63,628
Utility Technician

13 43,103 66,810

14 Utility Services Manager 45,258 70,150

15 Finance Technician 47,521 73,658
Water/Sewer Supervisor

16 Police Officer 49,897 77,340

17 Planner 52,392 81,208

18 GIS Specialiist 55,012 85,269
Police Sergeant
Stormwater Administrator

19 City Clerk/Human Resource Director 57,763 89,533
Communications Director (part time-30 hours/wk)

20 60,651 94,009

21 Police Captain 63,684 98,710

22 66,868 103,645

177



City of Lowell
List of Classifications by Grade

23 Parks & Recreation Director 70,211 108,827
Planning Director

24 Police Asst. Chief 73,722 114,269

25 Finance Director 77,408 119,982
Public Works Director

26 81,278 125,981

27 85,342 132,280

28 Police Chief 89,609 138,894

178



Salary Schedule
July 1, 2024

HIRING
GRADE RATE MINIMUM MID POINT MAXIMUM GRADE

6 30,631        32,163        39,055        47,478        6

7 32,163        33,771        41,008        49,853        7
8 33,771        35,460        43,058        52,345        8
9 35,460        37,233        45,212        54,963        9

10 37,233        39,095        47,472        57,711        10
11 39,095        41,050        49,846        60,597        11
12 41,050        43,103        52,339        63,628        12
13 43,103        45,258        54,957        66,810        13
14 45,258        47,521        57,704        70,150        14
15 47,521        49,897        60,590        73,658        15
16 49,897        52,392        63,619        77,340        16
17 52,392        55,012        66,800        81,208        17
18 55,012        57,763        70,141        85,269        18
19 57,763        60,651        73,648        89,533        19
20 60,651        63,684        77,330        94,009        20
21 63,684        66,868        81,197        98,710        21
22 66,868        70,211        85,257        103,645      22
23 70,211        73,722        89,519        108,827      23
24 73,722        77,408        93,996        114,269      24
25 77,408        81,278        98,695        119,982      25
26 81,278        85,342        103,630      125,981      26
27 85,342        89,609        108,811      132,280      27
28 89,609        94,089        114,252      138,894      28
29 94,089        98,793        119,964      145,838      29
30 98,793        103,733      125,961      153,129      30
31 103,733      108,920      132,260      160,786      31
32 108,920      114,366      138,873      168,826      32
33 114,366      120,084      145,817      177,267      33

179



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration to Approve the Audit Contract for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6A

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 6-6-2024

Re: Consideration to Approve the Audit Contract for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024

Please see the attached Audit Contract for your approval for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2024.

 

Attachments

FY 23-FY 25 Signed Audit Contract.pdf
Audit Contract for FY ending June 30 2024.pdf

180

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66588c496a59310044a9177c%2FFY%2023-FY%2025%20Signed%20Audit%20Contract.pdf?alt=media&token=990df10b-5bf5-41e3-86be-39e7cb184f5e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66588c496a59310044a9177c%2FFY%2023-FY%2025%20Signed%20Audit%20Contract.pdf?alt=media&token=990df10b-5bf5-41e3-86be-39e7cb184f5e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66588c496a59310044a9177c%2FFY%2023-FY%2025%20Signed%20Audit%20Contract.pdf?alt=media&token=990df10b-5bf5-41e3-86be-39e7cb184f5e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66588c496a59310044a9177c%2FAudit%20Contract%20for%20FY%20ending%20June%2030%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=3c94ad70-bcaa-4312-89b3-440d75c5e22e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66588c496a59310044a9177c%2FAudit%20Contract%20for%20FY%20ending%20June%2030%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=3c94ad70-bcaa-4312-89b3-440d75c5e22e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66588c496a59310044a9177c%2FAudit%20Contract%20for%20FY%20ending%20June%2030%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=3c94ad70-bcaa-4312-89b3-440d75c5e22e


181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Ordinance 2-2024 To Allow for a Reserve Police Officer/Auxiliary Police Officer Department

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6B

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk

Date: 6-6-24

Re: To Allow for a Volunteer Reserve/Auxiliary Police Department

In working on the annual Worker's Compensation and Property Liability surveys to determine the amount of
insurance the city will be billed for the next fiscal year, one of the questions asked was if the City of Lowell had a
volunteer Auxiliary Police force and if there was an ordinance in place.  The City has one volunteer/reserve officer. 
In a discussion with a Workers Compensation Underwriter for the North Carolina League of Municipalities (NCLM),
it was recommended to have an ordinance in place allowing this volunteer/reserve department.  Please see the
attached Ordinance to be reviewed and approved by the Mayor and Council.

Because the Police Department did not initially have a policy in place for the Volunteer Auxiliary Police Department,
which is also referred to as a Volunteer Reserve Police Department, the Lowell Police Department developed a
policy that would allow for a Volunteer Reserve/Auxiliary Department.  Please see the attached policy as well.

 

Attachments

02-2024 To allow for a Volunteer Reserve;Auxiliary Police Department.pdf
Revised Lowell Police-Auxiliary Officer Policy.pdf

192

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665b27697b6f61004484917f%2F02-2024%20To%20allow%20for%20a%20Volunteer%20Reserve%3BAuxiliary%20Police%20Department.pdf?alt=media&token=11ca07e5-d2cb-466e-b19a-4dbab65b4e3f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665b27697b6f61004484917f%2F02-2024%20To%20allow%20for%20a%20Volunteer%20Reserve%3BAuxiliary%20Police%20Department.pdf?alt=media&token=11ca07e5-d2cb-466e-b19a-4dbab65b4e3f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665b27697b6f61004484917f%2F02-2024%20To%20allow%20for%20a%20Volunteer%20Reserve%3BAuxiliary%20Police%20Department.pdf?alt=media&token=11ca07e5-d2cb-466e-b19a-4dbab65b4e3f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665b27697b6f61004484917f%2FRevised%20Lowell%20Police-Auxiliary%20Officer%20Policy.pdf?alt=media&token=8e2fd37b-eabc-4ce5-9dc5-9a94340569e7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665b27697b6f61004484917f%2FRevised%20Lowell%20Police-Auxiliary%20Officer%20Policy.pdf?alt=media&token=8e2fd37b-eabc-4ce5-9dc5-9a94340569e7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665b27697b6f61004484917f%2FRevised%20Lowell%20Police-Auxiliary%20Officer%20Policy.pdf?alt=media&token=8e2fd37b-eabc-4ce5-9dc5-9a94340569e7


 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2-2024 

 

TO ALLOW FOR A RESERVE POLICE OFFICER/AUXILIARY OFFICER 
DEPARTMENT 

  

WHEREAS, PURSUANT TO North Carolina General Statutes 160A-282 (a) and (b), a  City 
may by ordinance provide for the organization of an Auxiliary Police Department made up of volunteer 
members: and by enactment of an ordinance, may provide that while undergoing official training and 
while performing duties on behalf of the city pursuant to orders or instructions of the Chief of Police of 
the City of Lowell, Reserve/Auxiliary law-enforcement personnel shall be entitled to benefits under the 
North Carolina Workers-Compensation Act and to any fringe benefits for which such volunteer personnel 
qualify. 

 

WHERAS, There is hereby established within the City of Lowell police department, as a division thereof, 
a Reserve/Auxiliary Police Department.  The Reserve/Auxiliary Police Department shall be a volunteer 
organization of sworn personnel, whose members shall serve without compensation, composed of as 
many members as may from time to time be determined by the Chief of Police and approved by the City 
Manager. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____________ day of _________________, 2024. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________    ____________________________ 

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk     Larry Simonds, Mayor 

 

193



194



195



196



197



198



199



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Adopting the Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6C

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 6-6-2024

Re: Consideration of Adopting the Updated Water and Sewer CIP

Please see the attached Water and Sewer CIP updated by staff and Withers Ravenel Engineering firm this current
fiscal year.

 

Attachments

Water Sewer Updated CIP 6_6_24.pdf

200

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665f39797b6f610044883517%2FWater%20Sewer%20Updated%20CIP%206_6_24.pdf?alt=media&token=3df74d46-31b9-4c03-a866-7b41fb34a66d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665f39797b6f610044883517%2FWater%20Sewer%20Updated%20CIP%206_6_24.pdf?alt=media&token=3df74d46-31b9-4c03-a866-7b41fb34a66d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F665f39797b6f610044883517%2FWater%20Sewer%20Updated%20CIP%206_6_24.pdf?alt=media&token=3df74d46-31b9-4c03-a866-7b41fb34a66d


CUMULATIVE YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR 6 YEAR 7 YEAR 8 YEAR 9 YEAR 10

PROJECT NAME COST 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

WATER AND SEWER IMPROVEMENTS

CAMERA SYSTEM (COST SHARE WITH STORMWATER) 65,000 65,000

WATER AND SEWER IMPROVEMENTS SUBTOTAL 65,000 0 65,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

WATER IMPROVEMENTS

Redundant Lines Identification and Repair 128,600 11,000 11,400 11,800 12,200 12,600 13,000 13,400 13,900 14,400 14,900

HWY 7 Line Improvements to Alternative Meter Point 1,055,000 1,055,000 STATE APPROPRIATION

Water Loss Study 30,000 30,000

Asset Inventory and Assessment (GRANT MATCH) 9,750 9,750

WATER IMPROVEMENTS SUBTOTAL 1,223,350 1,105,750 11,400 11,800 12,200 12,600 13,000 13,400 13,900 14,400 14,900

WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS

I&I Study and Sewer Flow Metering 150,000 150,000 STATE APPROPRIATION

Systemwide Collection System Rehabilitation 3,000,000 3,000,000 INSTALLMENT LOAN

Systemwide Manhole Rehabilitation 519,900 50,000 51,500 53,100 56,400 58,100 59,900 61,700 63,600 65,600

Lynn Street Pump Station Replacement (CDBG funded) 1,200,000 1,200,000 700,000 CDBG GRANT & 800,000 FEDERAL APPROPRIATION

Infiltration and Inflow / System Repairs 336,900 33,000 34,000 35,100 36,200 37,300 38,500 39,700 40,900 42,200

Pre-Construction Planning Grant for a Wastewater Interconnection with Two Rivers Utilities 588,000 588,000 $400,000 GRANT FUNDED

Wastewater Interconnection with Two Rivers and Decommission 5,818,560 SRF LOAN

Generators 770,000 170,000 180,000 200,000 220,000

General System Repairs 6,797,500 6,797,500 STATE APPROPRIATION

WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS SUBTOTAL 19,180,860 788,000 6,884,600 35,100 262,600 3,275,400 98,400 301,400 104,500 327,800

TOTAL 20,469,210 1,893,750 6,896,400 47,300 275,200 3,288,400 111,800 315,300 118,900 342,700

DEBT 1 DEBT 2
DEBT PACKAGES 8,818,560 3,000,000

ANNUAL DEBT 8,818,560 3,000,000
GRANTS / APPROPRIATIONS 9,547,500 1,550,000 1,200,000 6,797,500
ANNUAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,103,150 343,750 160,900 98,900 47,300 275,200 288,400 111,800 315,300 118,900 342,700

TABLE 4
CITY OF LOWELL

WATER AND SEWER FUND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

Printed / 2024 

336,900336,900

1,200,0001,200,000

astewater Interconnection with Two Rivers Utilities 588,000 588,000 $400,000 GRANT FUNDEDastewater Interconnection with Two Rivers Utilities 588,000 588,000 $400,000 GRANT FUNDED

519,900519,900 50,000 51,500 53,100

5,818,5605,818,560

3,000,0003,000,000

150,000 150,000 STATE APPROPRIATION150,000 150,000 STATE APPROPRIATION

1,223,3501,223,350 1,105,7501,105,750 11,400

9,750 9,7509,750 9,750

30,000 30,00030,000 30,000

1,055,000 1,055,000 STATE APPROPRIATION1,055,000 1,055,000 STATE APPROPRIATION

150,000 150,000 STATE APPROPRIATION150,000 150,000 STATE APPROPRIATION

11,000 11,400 11,800 12,200 12,600 13,000 13,400 13,900 14,400 14,90011,000 11,400 11,800 12,200 12,600 13,000 13,400 13,900 14,400 14,900

00

201



City of Lowell Water and Sewer CIP, Financial Analysis and Rate Study

Debt Service Requirements
The water and sewer fund has six (6) outstanding debt obligations in FY 2024. One loan for the sewer plant
pump matures in FY 2025 and one that funded a push cam will mature in FY 2026. Additionally, in FY 2027.
three loans will mature, requiring only the water meter loan to remain in FY 2028. Consequently, over
$90,000 of annual financial capacity will become available to the fund. A summary of the existing debt
packages is shown in Table 5.

202



YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR 6 YEAR 7 YEAR 8 YEAR 9 YEAR 10
TYPE NAME 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

WATER WATER METERS 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253
WATER & SEWER HOMETRUST 25,157 63,742 58,430 63,742
SEWER WWTP PUMP 9,416 9,416
WATER & SEWER (75% AFTER FY 21) JETTER 8,404 8,404 8,404 6,303
WATER & SEWER (60% AFTER FY 21) BACKHOE 9,328 9,328 9,328 9,328
WATER & SEWER (50% AFTER FY 21) PUSH CAM 1,301 1,301 976
TOTAL 96,133 128,443 113,390 115,626 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253

TABLE 5
CITY OF LOWELL

WATER AND SEWER FUND

DEBT SERVICE SUMMARY

96,133 128,443 113,390 115,626 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,25396,133 128,443 113,390 115,626 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253

WATER WATER METERS 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253WATER WATER METERS 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253 36,253
WATER & SEWER HOMETRUST 25,157 63,742 58,430 63,742WATER & SEWER HOMETRUST 25,157 63,742 58,430 63,742

WATER & SEWER (75% AFTER FY 21) JETTER 8,404 8,404 8,404 6,303WATER & SEWER (75% AFTER FY 21) JETTER 8,404 8,404 8,404 6,303
WATER & SEWER (60% AFTER FY 21) BACKHOE 9,328 9,328 9,328 9,328WATER & SEWER (60% AFTER FY 21) BACKHOE 9,328 9,328 9,328 9,328
WATER & SEWER (50% AFTER FY 21) PUSH CAM 1,301 1,301 976WATER & SEWER (50% AFTER FY 21) PUSH CAM 1,301 1,301 976

203



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #16

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6D

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-5-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #16

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #16 to receive grant funds from N. C. Interlocal Risk Management
Agency for a Workers' Compensation Safety Grant. These funds were utilized to add secure access to City Hall and
the Police Department.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #16 FY 2023-2024.pdf

204

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659eafb6a59310044ac0859%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2316%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1d7d44ff-1728-4566-96d7-679f3953d7c5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659eafb6a59310044ac0859%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2316%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1d7d44ff-1728-4566-96d7-679f3953d7c5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659eafb6a59310044ac0859%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2316%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1d7d44ff-1728-4566-96d7-679f3953d7c5


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #16 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the General Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows:  
   
 General Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
10-3306-0000 Workers’ Compensation Safety Grant                             $3,997.50 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $3,997.50 in the General Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $5,040,073.98 to $5,044,071.48. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 General Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
10-4100-4500 Contracted Services                 $1,998.75 
10-5100-4500 Contracted Services      $1,998.75 
 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $1,998.75 in the Administration appropriations for 
Contracted Services in FY 23-24 from $141,578.00 to $143,576.75. This will also result in an increase 
of $1,998.75 in the Public Safety appropriations for Contracted Services in FY 23-24 from $35,630.00 
to $37,628.75. 
 
This amendment is for grant funds received from N. C. Interlocal Risk Management Agency for a 
Workers’ Compensation Safety Grant. 
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

205



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #17

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6E

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-5-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #17

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #16 to receive grants funds from the SRP-W-ARP-0301 Pre-
Construction Wastewater Planning Grant. These funds are to pay Withers Ravenel for their task order contract from
2023 which will provide engineered plans, permits, and bid docs for regionalization of the WWTP.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #17 FY 2023-2024.pdf

206

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ec096a59310044ac0e6a%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2317%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ce71c385-30cd-4c7e-8b43-b3fd5524437d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ec096a59310044ac0e6a%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2317%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ce71c385-30cd-4c7e-8b43-b3fd5524437d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6659ec096a59310044ac0e6a%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2317%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ce71c385-30cd-4c7e-8b43-b3fd5524437d


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #17 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
30-3304-0000 SRP-W-ARP-0301 Pre-Con Planning Grant                        $343,432.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $343,432.00 in the Water/Sewer Fund estimated revenues, bringing 
the revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $2,138,170.24 to $2,481,602.24. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
30-8200-0400 WWTP Professional Services              $343,432.00 
 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $343,432.00 in the WWTP appropriations for 
Professional Services in FY 23-24 from $242,461.00 to $585,893.00. 
 
 
This amendment is to receive funds from SRP-W-ARP-0301 Pre-Construction Wastewater Planning 
Grant. 
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

207



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #18

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6F

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #18

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #18 to receive interest earned on Powell Bill funds. These funds will
be used to pay the Powell Bill portion of equipment purchased.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #18 FY 2023-2024.pdf

208

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F666053677b6f6100448b174a%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2318%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1eb581a8-9bf6-41d2-8b74-188bd14175e9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F666053677b6f6100448b174a%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2318%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1eb581a8-9bf6-41d2-8b74-188bd14175e9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F666053677b6f6100448b174a%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2318%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=1eb581a8-9bf6-41d2-8b74-188bd14175e9


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #18 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the General Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows:  
   
 General Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
10-3290-0100 Interest Earned Powell Bill                             $31,460.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $31,460.00 in the General Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $5,044,071.48 to $5,075,531.48. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 General Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
10-4510-7400 Capital Outlay-Equipment              $31,460.00 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $31,460.00 in the Powell Bill appropriations for Capital 
Outlay-Equipment from $5,910.04 to $37,370.04.  
 
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on Powell Bill funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

209



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #19

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6G

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #19

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #19 to receive interest earned on City funds. This additional revenue
is due to the City changing banking institutions. These funds are allocated equally over the departments in the
General Fund to have a balanced budget.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #19 FY 2023-2024.pdf

210

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6660540c7b6f6100448b180d%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2319%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=8089654f-2d29-43a6-867e-5ccdfe61b08e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6660540c7b6f6100448b180d%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2319%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=8089654f-2d29-43a6-867e-5ccdfe61b08e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6660540c7b6f6100448b180d%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2319%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=8089654f-2d29-43a6-867e-5ccdfe61b08e


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #19 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the General Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows:  
   
 General Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
10-3290-0000 MRS Interest-Investments                             $160,400.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $160,400.00 in the General Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $5,075,531.48 to $5,235,931.48. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 General Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
10-4100-3300 Departmental Supplies-Admin             $32,080.00 
10-5100-3300 Departmental Supplies-Public Safety             $32,080.00 
10-5600-3300 Departmental Supplies-Streets             $32,080.00 
10-5800-3300 Departmental Supplies-Sanitation             $32,080.00 
10-6120-3300 Departmental Supplies-Parks & Rec             $32,080.00 
   
 
This amendment will result in an increase of $32,080.00 in the Administration appropriations for 
Departmental Supplies in FY 23-24 from $32,000.00 to $64,080.00. This will result in an increase of 
$32,080.00 in the Public Safety appropriations for Departmental Supplies in FY 23-24 from 
$26,500.00 to $58,580.00. This will result in an increase of $32,080.00 in the Streets appropriations for 
Departmental Supplies in FY 23-24 from $16,000.00 to $48,080.00. This will result in an increase of 
$32,080.00 in the Sanitation appropriations for Departmental Supplies in FY 23-24 from $7,700.00 to 
$39,780.00. This will result in an increase of $32,080.00 in the Parks & Rec appropriations for 
Departmental Supplies in FY 23-24 from $5,000.00 to $37,080.00.  
 
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on City funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 
 
 
 
 211



 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

212



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #20

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6H

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #20

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #20 to receive interest earned on City funds. This additional revenue
is due to the City changing banking institutions. These funds are being used to pay for expenditures that were
incurred for the pillar repair on sewer main, asphalt repairs due to water leaks,  repairs to the lift stations, and for
sludge removal at the waste water treatment plant for replacement of the aerators at the bottom of the tank.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #20 FY 2023-2024.pdf

213

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F666062d77b6f6100448b313e%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2320%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=22961120-6eac-485a-92f2-448688d03bd6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F666062d77b6f6100448b313e%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2320%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=22961120-6eac-485a-92f2-448688d03bd6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F666062d77b6f6100448b313e%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2320%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=22961120-6eac-485a-92f2-448688d03bd6


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #20 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
30-3290-0000 MRS Interest-Investments                             $56,690.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $56,690.00 in the Water/Sewer Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $2,481,602.24 to $2,538,292.24. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
30-8100-4500 Contracted Services-Water              $28,345.00 
30-8200-4503 WWTP Sludge Disposal              $28,345.00 
   
 
This amendment will result in an increase of $28,345.00 in the Water/Sewer appropriations for 
Contracted Services-Water in FY 23-24 from $75,000.00 to $103,345.00. This will result in an 
increase of $28,345.00 in the Water/Sewer appropriations for WWTP Sludge Disposal in FY 23-24 
from $45,000.00 to $73,345.00.  
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on City funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

214



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #21

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6I

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #21

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #21 to receive interest earned on City funds. This additional revenue
is due to the City changing banking institutions. These funds are being allocated to Stormwater supplies to have a
balanced budget.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #21 FY 2023-2024.pdf

215

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66606672ff577a00442f82c4%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2321%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=e2ee6302-5d10-4d02-a0d8-2bdb7faa7aa9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66606672ff577a00442f82c4%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2321%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=e2ee6302-5d10-4d02-a0d8-2bdb7faa7aa9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66606672ff577a00442f82c4%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2321%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=e2ee6302-5d10-4d02-a0d8-2bdb7faa7aa9


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #21 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Stormwater Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Stormwater Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
90-3290-0000 MRS Interest-Investments                             $14,200.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $14,200.00 in the Stormwater Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $423,774.44 to $437,974.44. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the Stormwater Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Stormwater Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
90-9000-3300 Supplies                $14,200.00 
   
 
This amendment will result in an increase of $14,200.00 in the Stormwater appropriations for Supplies 
in FY 23-24 from $10,500.00 to $24,700.00.  
 
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on City funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

216



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #22

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6J

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #22

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #22 to receive interest earned on SCIF Grant funds. This additional
revenue is due to the City changing banking institutions. These funds are allocated to Professional Services so that
these can be used for additional work at 1602 N Main Street, Lowell, NC as needed.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #22 FY 2023-2024.pdf

217

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66606c53ff577a00442f9402%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2322%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=fc0b615d-4a0a-4a16-bf7e-8b2df6ca97e5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66606c53ff577a00442f9402%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2322%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=fc0b615d-4a0a-4a16-bf7e-8b2df6ca97e5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66606c53ff577a00442f9402%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2322%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=fc0b615d-4a0a-4a16-bf7e-8b2df6ca97e5


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #22 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the SCIF Grant, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows:  
   
 SCIF Grant: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
65-3290-0000 MRS Interest-Investments                             $48,200.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $48,200.00 in the SCIF Grant estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted from $2,000,000.00 to $2,048,200.00. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the SCIF Grant, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 SCIF Grant: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
65-4100-0400 Professional Services               $48,200.00 
   
 
This amendment will result in an increase of $48,200.00 in the SCIF Grant appropriations for 
Professional Services from $2,000,000.00 to $2,048,200.00.  
 
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on SCIF Grant funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

218



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #23

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6K

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #23

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #23 to receive interest earned on City Cemetery funds. This additional
revenue is due to the City changing banking institutions. These funds are being allocated to Miscellaneous expense
to balance the budget. These funds can be used at a later date to make needed improvements/repairs to the
cemetery.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #23 FY 2023-2024.pdf

219

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607af2ff577a00442fe13b%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2323%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=2d656c39-57e2-4ada-8e67-0a11e1ad3f8c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607af2ff577a00442fe13b%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2323%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=2d656c39-57e2-4ada-8e67-0a11e1ad3f8c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607af2ff577a00442fe13b%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2323%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=2d656c39-57e2-4ada-8e67-0a11e1ad3f8c


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #23 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Cemetery Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Cemetery Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
72-3290-0000 MRS Interest-Investments                             $1,860.00 
72-3290-1000 CD Interest                $   700.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $2,560.00 in the Cemetery Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $0.00 to $2,560.00. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the Cemetery Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Cemetery Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
72-4700-5700 Miscellaneous Expense              $2,560.00 
   
 
This amendment will result in an increase of $2,560.00 in the Cemetery appropriations for 
Miscellaneous Expense in FY 23-24 from $0.00 to $2,560.00.  
 
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on City Cemetery funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

220



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #24

Meeting

Tuesday, June 11, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6L

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  6-6-2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #24

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #24 to receive interest earned on City funds in North Carolina Capital
Management Trust. The funds in the North Carolina Management Trust account are from debt set-off payments
received from delinquent utility accounts. These funds are being allocated to automotive supplies in the Sanitation
department to cover upcoming repairs to the trash truck.

 

Attachments

Budget Amendment #24 FY 2023-2024.pdf

221

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607b5cff577a00442fe230%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2324%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=cb5505ec-7aae-4f45-a02f-291705577f14
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607b5cff577a00442fe230%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2324%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=cb5505ec-7aae-4f45-a02f-291705577f14
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66607b5cff577a00442fe230%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2324%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=cb5505ec-7aae-4f45-a02f-291705577f14


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #24 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the General Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows:  
   
 General Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
10-3290-3000 Interest/Dividend Reinvestment-NCCMT                           $18,750.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $18,750.00 in the General Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $5,235,931.48 to $5,254,681.48. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 General Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
10-5800-3100 Automotive Supplies               $18,750.00 
   
 
This amendment will result in an increase of $18,750.00 in the Sanitation appropriations for 
Automotive Supplies in FY 23-24 from $12,000.00 to $30,750.00.  
 
 
This amendment is to receive interest earned on City NCCMT funds.  
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of June, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

222


	RegularCityCouncilMeeting-2024-06-11.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Regular-City-Council-Meeting-05-14-2024-minutesdraft.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	PR04-2024 -Juneteenth 2024, June 19, 2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	03-31-2024 Dashboard.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Version 2.0 202022-08-30 - Spencer Mountain - Rezoning Plan.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO 3-24 Spencer Ridge DA ordinance 6-2024.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 3-2024
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LOWELL DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA


	Spencer Ridge - Development Agreement v13 RL.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #13 FY 2023-2024 Revised.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	AMENDED GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE - LOWELL WWTP PLANNING (SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf
	GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE DATED 12-04-2023.pdf
	WRE Task Order Lowell WWTP Decommissioning and PS Signed.pdf
	Minutes City Council Meeting 12-4-2023.pdf
	Minutes City Council Meeting 10-10-2023.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #15 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Full City Managers FY25 Budget Message and Proposed Budget Packet 5_14_24 Revised 2.pdf
	Full City Managers FY25 Budget Message and Proposed Budget Packet 5_14_24 Revised.pdf
	Full City Managers FY25 Budget Message and Proposed Budget Packet.pdf
	City Manager's Budget Message FY25 1.pdf
	GF Revenue.pdf
	GF Rev

	Admin.pdf
	Administration

	PD.pdf
	Public Safety

	PW.pdf
	Public Works-Streets

	Powell.pdf
	Powell

	Sanitation.pdf
	Sanitation

	PR.pdf
	P&R

	WS Revenue.pdf
	W&S Rev

	Water and Sewer.pdf
	Water

	WWTP.pdf
	Sewer

	SW Revenue.pdf
	SW Revenue

	SW.pdf
	Stormwater

	Capital.pdf
	Capital

	Budget Ordinance FY 24-25.pdf


	Proposed Fee Scheduled - New Format - 2024-2025.docx.pdf
	Fee Schdeule page 1
	Fee Schdeule page 2-8

	Full City Managers FY25 Budget Message and Proposed Budget Packet 5_14_24 Revised
	MAPS Lowell Presentation 2024 (002).pdf
	The Management and Personnel Services Group
	PAY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION


	Full City Managers FY25 Budget Message and Proposed Budget Packet
	Copy of MAPS Lowell Presentation Spreadsheets 2024 (003).pdf
	Grade List
	Salary Schedule




	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	FY 23-FY 25 Signed Audit Contract.pdf
	Audit Contract for FY ending June 30 2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	02-2024 To allow for a Volunteer Reserve;Auxiliary Police Department.pdf
	Revised Lowell Police-Auxiliary Officer Policy.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Water Sewer Updated CIP 6_6_24.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #16 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #17 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #18 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #19 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #20 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #21 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #22 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #23 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	print_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #24 FY 2023-2024.pdf

